
Notice of Meeting

CABINET

Tuesday, 16 December 2014 - 6:00 pm
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barking

Members: Cllr Darren Rodwell (Chair); Cllr Saima Ashraf (Deputy Chair) and Cllr 
Dominic Twomey (Deputy Chair); Cllr Laila Butt, Cllr Evelyn Carpenter, Cllr Cameron 
Geddes, Cllr James Ogungbose, Cllr Lynda Rice, Cllr Bill Turner and Cllr Maureen Worby

Date of publication: 5 December 2014 Graham Farrant
Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Alan Dawson
Tel. 020 8227 2348

E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk

AGENDA
 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declaration of Members' Interests  

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare any 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting. 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 18 
November 2014 (Pages 3 - 16) 

4. Call-In of Decision re: Employment of a Political Assistant and a Leader and 
Members' Services Manager (Pages 17 - 22) 

5. Budget Monitoring 2014/15 - April to October 2014 (Month 7) (Pages 23 - 50) 

6. Budget Strategy 2015/16 (Pages 51 - 101) 

7. Corporate Delivery Plan 2014/15 - Quarter 2 Update (Pages 103 - 134) 



8. Future Delivery of Vehicle Maintenance and Related Services (Pages 135 - 146) 

9. The Broadway Theatre - New Management Arrangements (Pages 147 - 159) 

10. Debt Management Performance and Write-Offs 2014/15 (Quarter 2) (Pages 161 
- 179) 

11. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent  

12. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to exclude 
the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to the nature of 
the business to be transacted.  

Private Business

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Cabinet, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the private 
part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant paragraph of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).   

13. Rationalisation of Corporate Office Portfolio (Pages 181 - 212) 

Contains information relating to the financial and business affairs of the Council 
(paragraph 3) 

14. Review of the Elevate Contract (Pages 213 - 222) 

Contains information relating to the financial and business affairs of the Council and 
contractors (paragraph 3) 

15. Compulsory Purchase of Eyesore Properties (Pages 223 - 233) 

Contains information relating to the financial affairs of an individual and the 
proposed issuing of a compulsory purchase order (paragraphs 3 and 6) 

16. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent  





This page is intentionally left blank



Barking and Dagenham’s Vision

“One borough; one community; London’s growth opportunity”

Priorities

To achieve the vision for Barking and Dagenham there are three key 
priorities that underpin its delivery:

Encouraging civic pride 
 Build pride, respect and cohesion across our borough 
 Promote a welcoming, safe, and resilient community 
 Build civic responsibility and help residents shape their quality of life 
 Promote and protect our green and public open spaces 
 Narrow the gap in attainment and realise high aspirations for every child

Enabling social responsibility
 Support residents to take responsibility for themselves, their homes and 

their community
 Protect the most vulnerable, keeping adults and children healthy and 

safe 
 Ensure everyone can access good quality healthcare when they need it 
 Ensure children and young people are well-educated and realise their 

potential
 Fully integrate services for vulnerable children, young people and 

families

Growing the borough
 Build high quality homes and a sustainable community
 Develop a local, skilled workforce and improve employment 

opportunities
 Support investment in housing, leisure, the creative industries and 

public spaces to enhance our environment
 Work with London partners to deliver homes and jobs across our growth 

hubs
 Enhance the borough's image to attract investment and business 

growth

Page 1

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF
CABINET

Tuesday, 18 November 2014
(6:03  - 8:02 pm) 

Present: Cllr Darren Rodwell (Chair), Cllr Saima Ashraf (Deputy Chair), Cllr 
Dominic Twomey (Deputy Chair), Cllr Laila Butt, Cllr Evelyn Carpenter, Cllr 
Cameron Geddes, Cllr James Ogungbose, Cllr Bill Turner and Cllr Maureen 
Worby

Also Present: Cllr Syed Ahammad, Cllr Edna Fergus, Cllr Rocky Gill, Cllr 
Margaret Mullane and Cllr Dan Young

Apologies: Cllr Lynda Rice

47. Declaration of Members' Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

48. Minutes (21 October 2014)

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2014 were confirmed as correct.

49. Budget Monitoring 2014/15 - April to September 2014 (Month 6)

The Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the report on the Council’s capital 
and revenue position for the 2014/15 financial year, as at 30 September 2014.

The General Fund showed a projected end of year spend of £168.49m against the 
total approved budget of £165.32m.  Whilst this represented an improvement of 
£1.1m on the position as at 31 August 2014 due to the implementation of spending 
control measures across Council services, there remained a projected year-end 
overspend of £3.17m.  The Cabinet Member for Finance advised that the 
Children’s Services budget was continuing to show considerable in-year pressures 
totalling £4.652m and he had asked the Corporate Director of Children’s Services 
to report to this meeting on the reasons for the forecast overspend, together with 
options to bring expenditure levels into line and reduce the likelihood of the 
Council having to use reserves to achieve a balanced budget.

In respect of other issues relating to the General Fund, the Cabinet Member 
referred to the proposal to reduce the saving within the Democratic Services 
function (CEX/SAV/09) by £148,280.  This was in response to the views expressed 
by the Public Accounts and Audit Select Committee during its recent consideration 
of the budget saving proposals that a post of Scrutiny Officer should not be 
deleted, as well as proposals to enhance the direct support available to Members 
which had been strongly recommended in the recent Corporate Peer Challenge.  
As a consequence, a new post of Leader and Members’ Services Manager was 
proposed and the vacant Political Assistant post would be appointed to.  Another 
issue was the delay in the planned closure of 2 and 90 Stour Road offices, which 
would result in a shortfall of £295,000 in the planned £300,000 saving.  The 
Cabinet Member added that all directorates were looking at innovative ways to 

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 3



reduce the current overspend position and build a firmer financial position going 
forward.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) continued to show a projected break-even 
position for the year, although it was noted that a projected £500,000 overspend in 
the Repairs and Maintenance service was being mitigated by underspends in other 
areas.  The Cabinet Member also referred to the failure to achieve any of the 
£318,000 saving in respect of energy billing for communal housing areas and 
shortfalls in respect of staffing restructures which may require future reports to the 
Cabinet.

The Capital Programme showed a projected spend of £142.12m against the 
original budget of £156.69m and the Cabinet Member for Finance referred to 
several amendments to budgets to reflect current delivery programmes.  In 
response to comments regarding the slippage that occurs on the annual Capital 
Programme, it was agreed that the Chief Finance Officer should report to a future 
meeting on the issue.

The Cabinet Member for Education and Schools commented on the hard work of 
the Children’s Services Asset Management team for delivering the extensive 
school improvement and expansion programme, while the Leader of the Council 
recognised the efforts of all staff in the drive to mitigate the financial pressures 
being faced by the Council.  

With regard to the budget overspend within the area of children’s social care, the 
Corporate Director of Children’s Services presented a paper (Appendix E to the 
report) and referred to the continual pressure on services and budgets due, in the 
main, to the demographic growth in the Borough.  The paper included details of 
steps taken over the past few years to achieve an overall balanced budget within 
the directorate while also contributing to the Council’s savings targets.

A range of measures totalling £1.12m had been identified to offset the overspend 
in the current year and a number of other, more radical, options had also been 
developed.  In respect of the latter, the Corporate Director referred to the cessation 
of non-statutory case file audit activity and the cessation of non-statutory SEN 
transport which were proposed for immediate implementation.  The Corporate 
Director also advised on weekly management budget meetings that were being 
held and other activities to drive down costs.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Note the projected outturn position for 2014/15 of the Council’s General 
Fund revenue budget at 30 September 2014, as detailed in paragraphs 2.4 
to 2.10 and Appendix A of the report;

(ii) Note the impact on the outturn position of expenditure restrictions and early 
savings implementation agreed by Minute 31 (7 October 2014);

(iii) Note the potential actions identified by the Chief Finance Officer to return to 
a balanced budget by year end, as detailed in paragraph 2.2 of the report;

(iv) Agree not to call on General Fund balances at the current time but to 

Page 4



instruct the Chief Finance Officer to reinforce the spend freeze with all 
budget managers in order to contribute to delivering a balanced position by 
year end;

(v) Note the progress against the agreed 2014/15 savings at 30 September 
2014, as detailed in paragraph 2.11 and Appendix B of the report;

(vi) Note the Corporate Director of Children’s Services addendum at Appendix 
E to the report and:

(a) Accept the savings actions identified at paragraphs 2.3.2, 2.8 and 
2.10 of Appendix E to the report and require the Children’s Services 
directorate to bring forward further cost reductions by implementing, 
wherever possible, agreed savings for 2015/16;

(b) Note the additional options for potential savings outlined in section 3 
of Appendix E to the report and agree that the options relating to the 
cessation of non-statutory case file audit activity and the cessation of 
non-statutory SEN transport (paragraphs 3.1.3 and 3.1.5 
respectively) be implemented; and

(c) Agree that reports be presented to future meetings of the Cabinet as 
follows:

 27 January 2015 - information from the planned external reviews 
of spend and the impact on cost reduction to date.

 24 March 2015 - pressures on and the implications for Medium 
Term Financial Planning and the impact on cost reduction actions 
undertaken.

(vii) Note progress against the agreed 2014/15 Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) savings as detailed in paragraph 2.12 and Appendix B of the report;

(viii) Note the overall position for the HRA at 30 September 2014, as detailed in 
paragraph 2.12 and Appendix C of the report;

(ix) Approve the 2014/15 budget re-profiles and increases in funding on capital 
budgets, as detailed in paragraph 2.13 and Appendix D of the report;

(x) Approve a new capital budget of £283,000 to develop the Council’s website 
as detailed in paragraph 2.13 of the report;

(xi) Agree to withdraw £148,000 of the saving CEX/SAV/09 presented to 
Cabinet on 7 October 2014 in order to continue the employment of a 
Scrutiny Officer and to employ a Political Assistant and a Leader and 
Members’ Services Manager in Democratic Services, as detailed in 
paragraph 2.9 of the report; and

(xii) Request officers to report to a future meeting on the issue of slippage within 
the Capital Programme.

Page 5



50. Fees and Charges 2015

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented a report on the proposed fees and 
charges for Council services, the majority of which were proposed to come into 
effect from 1 January 2015 as a means of assisting in achieving a balanced 
budget by the end of the current financial year.

The Cabinet Member advised that rather than apply an across-the-board increase, 
officers had been tasked with ensuring that charges were reflective of competitive 
market rates for each service.  During the discussions, the following issues were 
raised:

 Hire of Eastbury Manor House – the proposals were aimed at increasing take-
up and enhancing the range of packages and entertainment on offer.  In that 
respect, it was suggested that the service would benefit from improved 
publicity.

 Hire of Sports Pitches – the new charges were reflective of the full cost of 
providing and maintaining sports pitches and facilities, with grant funding to be 
made available to enable qualifying applicants to receive a contribution towards 
their costs.

 Highways and Dropped Kerbs – officers confirmed that applicants would be 
eligible to make payments over an extended period to help towards the overall 
cost.

 Pest Control Services – it was suggested that the charges were high and 
alternative options such as joint working with other local authorities should be 
explored to reduce costs.  The Divisional Director of Environment undertook to 
look into the matter and advise Cabinet Members accordingly.

 On-Street Business / Trade Permits – it was suggested that the charge was too 
low and that it should be increased in the future.

 Sex Shop Licences – the Divisional Director of Environment advised on the 
background to the reduction and confirmed that the issue would be kept under 
review.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Agree the proposed fees and charges as set out in Appendix A to the 
report, to be effective from 1 January 2015 unless otherwise stated and 
subject to (iii) below;

(ii) Note the fees and charges no longer applicable from 1 January 2015, as set 
out in Appendix B to the report;

(iii) Note that the parking charges (reference no’s 399 – 461 in Appendix A) 
shall be subject to further consideration by the Cabinet on 16 December 
2014 following the scrutiny and public consultation of the savings proposals 
endorsed by Minute 31(iii) (7 October 2014); and

(iv) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Children’s Services, in 
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer and the Cabinet Members for 
Finance and Education and Schools, to set fees and charges which are 
applied from September for schools and academic year based activities.

Page 6



51. Proposed Changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme 2015/16

The Cabinet Member for Finance reported on proposed changes to the London 
Borough of Barking and Dagenham Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS).

The Cabinet Member explained that the Council had held a high cap in respect of 
its CTSS in the past in order to protect the most vulnerable in the local community.  
However, the unprecedented financial challenge being faced by the Council meant 
that all areas of income and expenditure had to be assessed and the difficult 
decision had been taken to reduce certain protections, albeit that some key 
protections would be retained and a discretionary exceptional hardship fund would 
be established to help mitigate the impact of the changes on those affected.  

The Cabinet Member advised on some of the potential implications for the Council 
of the proposed changes, which included lower collection rates, and that all those 
affected by the proposals would be contacted direct as part of the consultation 
arrangements.  The Cabinet Member also commented that the Council may need 
to look at ending the six-year freeze of Council Tax levels in view of the current 
financial situation. 

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Agree to issue for consultation the revised CTSS for 2015/16 for working 
aged residents, as set out at Appendix A to the report, which proposes:

(a) Amending the maximum liability level for assessment from 85% to 
75%;

(b) Withdrawing the Second Adult Rebate Scheme;
(c) Reducing the capital threshold for working age to £6,000.
(d) Retaining the following discretionary areas:

 To continue to disregard War Widows and War Disablement 
income from income assessment for the scheme.

 Continue the extended payment scheme in line with the Housing 
Benefit scheme.

(ii) Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Finance, to carry out the required consultation and to 
make any appropriate amendments to the draft scheme arising from the 
consultation process, and to present the final draft scheme to the Assembly 
on 21 January 2015; and

(iii) Recommend to the Assembly the creation of a discretionary exceptional 
hardship fund, initially of £50,000, from the additional income generated 
across all savings proposals related to Council Tax for 2015/16.

52. Education Strategy 2014-2017 and Annual Performance Review (Schools)

The Cabinet Member for Education and Schools presented the draft Education 
Strategy for 2014-17 together with a summary of schools’ performance in national 
tests and examinations for 2014.

The Cabinet Member explained that the Education Strategy had been framed 

Page 7



around the Council’s new vision and priorities and would be a useful toolkit for 
schools and the Council’s School Improvement Service.   The importance of 
having an effective partnership with all schools in the Borough was highlighted as 
key to achieving the two overarching objectives of the Strategy:

1. A place in a good or outstanding school or early years setting for every child 
or young person.

2. Exceeding national standards and then London standards.

It was noted that the key areas of improvement were reading at Key Stage 2 and 
mathematics at secondary school level.  The Cabinet Member for Education and 
Schools confirmed that while the Council did not support the Coalition 
Government’s policy of forcing schools into Academy status, it was important to 
work with all schools in the Borough to ensure that children receive the best 
possible education.

The Cabinet Member agreed to include additional comparative and other data in 
future update reports and advised that she would be working closely with the 
Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care to tackle ongoing issues relating to 
NEETs (young people not in education, employment or training).

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Approve the Education Strategy 2014-2017 as set out at Appendix 1 to the 
report and endorse the Council’s commitment to continuing the strong 
partnership with all schools in the borough to achieve the best possible 
outcomes and opportunities for its children and young people; and

(ii) Note the performance of schools in national tests and examinations in 2014 
as set out in Appendix 2 to the report.

53. Treasury Management Strategy Statement Mid-Year Review 2014/15

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented an update report on the treasury 
management activities during the current financial year and highlighted the 
following two main points:

 Counterparty Lending Limits – the Assembly would be asked to review the 
position when it considers the 2015/16 Treasury Management Strategy in 
February 2015.

 Interest Rates – the current investment approach may be reviewed to enable 
the Council to benefit from higher interest rates available in the market.

Cabinet resolved to recommend the Assembly to:

(i) Note the Treasury Management Strategy Statement Mid-Year Review 
2014/15;

(ii) Note that in the first half of the current financial year the Council complied 
with all 2014/15 treasury management indicators; 

(iii) Note the borrowing of £89m through a loan facility from the European 

Page 8



Investment Bank (EIB) to support an urban regeneration and economic 
growth programme agreed by the Assembly on 17 September 2014; and

(iv) Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Finance, to proportionally amend the counterparty 
lending limits agreed within the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
for the duration of the 2014/15 financial year, subject to a review of this 
authority in the February 2015 Treasury Management Strategy report to 
take into account any potential additional borrowing from the EIB agreed 
previously by the Cabinet.

54. Polling Districts and Polling Places Review 2014/15

The Chief Executive introduced a report on the outcome of a statutory review of 
polling districts (areas within ward boundaries) and associated polling places 
(stations) which was carried out between 19 August and 19 September 2014.

The Chief Executive advised that, arising from the review, changes were proposed 
in 8 of the 17 wards and the Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care stressed 
the need for a new polling station to be located in the Great Fleete area of Thames 
ward.  The Legal Officer also explained the position regarding the formal approval 
of the review proposals, which rested with the Assembly.

Cabinet resolved to recommend the Assembly to:

(i) Approve for publication the final proposals arising from the review of polling 
districts and associated polling places as detailed in Appendix A to the 
report; and

(ii) Authorise the Chief Executive to agree any permanent or temporary 
arrangements until the commencement of the next review that are deemed 
appropriate in respect of alternative polling stations and/or reconfiguration 
of polling districts, subject to consultations with relevant ward councillors.

55. Investors in People (IiP) Bronze Level Accreditation

The Cabinet Member for Central Services presented a report on the Council’s 
success in achieving Bronze level accreditation against the Investors In People 
(IiP) Standard.

The Cabinet Member explained that the Council had held IiP status since 2005 but 
had agreed to be assessed against the Bronze level for the latest review which 
took place between October 2013 and October 2014.  The assessor had identified 
a number of improvements and strengths since the previous review in 2011, while 
the aspects requiring approval had been built in to the Council’s People Strategy 
2014/15 which was approved by Cabinet on 25 September 2014 (Minute 25).

Issues raised during the discussions included:

 The need for the Council to have a consistent approach to home working;
 The improvements expected from the centralisation of departmental learning 

and development functions and budgets and the need to ensure that all staff’s 

Page 9



needs and requirements are addressed under the new approach; and
 The important role that organisations such as the Adult College can have in 

supporting the Council’s learning and development programme.

The Cabinet Member placed on record his appreciation of the HR team and all 
Members and officers that contributed to the achievement of Bronze status.

Cabinet resolved to accept the Investors in People Report 2014 attached at 
Appendix A to the report and agree the priority actions of ‘Skills and Ways of 
Working’, ‘Leading and Managing Through Change’ and ‘The Deal for Our 
Workforce’.

56. School Funding Formula 2015/16

The Cabinet Member for Education and Schools reported on the proposed 
allocation of funding to schools for 2015/16.

The Cabinet Member referred to the main issues that had been discussed by the 
Schools Forum during the consultation and commented that the preferred option, 
Model B, represented the fairest approach.  It was noted, however, that the 
Schools Forum was to undertake further analysis work in respect of the Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DCG) funding block prior to the submission deadline to the 
Education Funding Agency (EFA). 

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Note the outcome of the School Funding Formula briefing sessions at the 
Schools’ Forum, as referred to in paragraphs 2.5 to 2.6 of the report;

(ii) Agree to adopt Model B as the method for allocating school funding in 
2015/16 as set out in section 2 of the report, subject to (iii) below; and

(iii) Delegate authority to Corporate Director of Children Services, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Education and Schools, to 
approve the final submission to the EFA following the review by the Schools 
Forum working group as referred to in paragraph 2.9 of the report.

57. Growth Boroughs Joint Committee

Further to Minute 112 (15 February 2011), the Leader of the Council reported on 
the creation of a new joint committee with the London Boroughs of Hackney, 
Greenwich, Newham, Tower Hamlets and Waltham Forest which would replace 
the Joint Committee of the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Host Boroughs.

The Leader referred to the role of the new Growth Boroughs Joint Committee and 
acknowledged that issues such as employment and training were as important as 
the main transport and infrastructure objectives.  The Leader confirmed that those 
issues had already been discussed with the representatives of the Joint 
Committee and he also referred to the role of the North East London Strategic 
Alliance (NELSA), which included the London Boroughs of Enfield, Havering and 
Redbridge, in helping the Council to deliver its priority of “Growing the Borough”.

Page 10



Officers were asked to ensure that details of the new Joint Committee’s forward 
plan and agenda papers are made available to Cabinet Members.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Approve the disestablishment of the existing Joint Committee of the London 
2012 Olympic and Paralympic Host Boroughs and the establishment, with 
immediate effect, of a new Growth Boroughs Joint Committee;

(ii) Agree that the Council joins and participates as a member of the Growth 
Boroughs Joint Committee;

(iii) Agree that the Council:

(a) enters into and signs up to the revised Inter-Authority Agreement and 
the revised Memorandum of Understanding (Annex A to this report) 
and any other necessary documents to be entered into by or 
between the six Growth Boroughs, and 

(b) delegates power to the Chief Executive to do everything and give 
effect to any matter necessary to achieve the Joint Committee’s 
objectives.

(iv) Agree the Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee as specified in 
Appendix 1 to the Inter-Authority Agreement and Memorandum of 
Understanding;

(v) Agree that all executive powers, duties and functions required to be 
executed by the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham to facilitate the 
objectives of the Growth Boroughs Joint Committee are delegated to and be 
discharged by the Joint Committee; and

(vi) Appoint Councillors Ashraf and Rodwell as the Council’s representatives on 
the new Growth Boroughs Joint Committee.

58. Procurement of a Framework for Lower Value Construction Projects

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration presented a report on the proposed 
procurement of a Framework Agreement for lower value (£50,000 - £500,000) 
construction projects.

The Cabinet Member advised that the approach taken for the new Framework was 
intended to attract smaller, more local firms and make vacancies available to local 
people.  Furthermore, the successful contractors would be required to sign up to 
the Memorandum of Understanding with Barking and Dagenham College to 
engage students on shorter term arrangements.  The Leader welcomed the 
arrangements and commented that the Council should aim to give 25% of its 
capital work to local business.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Agree that the Council proceeds with the procurement of a Framework 
Agreement for Lower Value Construction Projects for the provision of the 

Page 11



services in accordance with the strategy set out in this report;

(ii) Request that Cabinet Members be kept informed of the progress of the 
procurement and award of the contract, and

(iii) Delegate authority to the Divisional Director of Regeneration, in consultation 
with the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services, to conduct the procurement and award the contract to the 
successful bidders in accordance with the strategy set out in the report.

59. Disaggregation of  Barking and Dagenham and Havering Youth Offending 
Services

Further to Minute 114 (19 March 2013), the Cabinet Member for Crime and 
Enforcement reported on the cessation of the joint Youth Offending Service (YOS) 
arrangement with the London Borough of Havering.

The Cabinet Member outlined the reasons for Havering Council wishing to bring its 
service management back in-house and commended the work of the Barking and 
Dagenham YOS in helping to bring Havering’s service from a poor inspection 
rating prior to the merger to a “performing well” judgement.  It was also noted that 
the Leader of Havering Council had expressed his appreciation of the work of the 
Barking and Dagenham YOS team.

In response to a the suggestion by the Cabinet Member for Social Care that it 
would be useful to understand the positives and negatives of the joint working 
arrangement, the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services undertook 
to circulate details of the assessment by the YOS Chief Officers’ Group to Cabinet 
Members.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Acknowledge the improvements made to Havering Council’s YOS by the 
joint service, which created a high performing service; and

(ii) Note the strategic and operational direction of the Barking and Dagenham 
YOS.

60. Children's Social Care Annual Report 2013/14

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care presented the Children’s Social 
Care Annual Report for 2013/14 which included details of the key achievements 
during the year, the implications for the service of the increasing local demand 
pressures and the outcome of the Ofsted inspection of services for children in 
need, looked after children and care leavers.

It was noted that there had been significant increases in the number of social care 
contacts and the number of contacts progressing to a statutory referral.  In turn, 
the number of children receiving a statutory social care service had also increased 
significantly, from 1,482 in 2009/10 to 2,183 in 2013/14 which represented a 48% 
increase over the period.  The Cabinet Member advised that the predominant child 
protection issues related to emotional abuse and the impact on children where 

Page 12



domestic violence was a factor within the family home.  The data showed that the 
increase in cases and the nature of the referrals reflected changing demographics 
in the Borough and, in response to a question, the Cabinet Member clarified that 
there was a significant over-representation of cases relating to eastern European 
families where alcohol abuse was a factor.

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care also commented on data on the 
number of families moving into the Borough requiring extensive support services 
and suggested that Barking and Dagenham was receiving a disproportionate 
number of placements from other London local authorities, which was borne out by 
the statistics included in the Corporate Director of Children’s Services paper as 
part of the Budget Monitoring report considered earlier in the meeting.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Note the service improvements contained within the review report and 
action taken in response to local demand pressures; and

(ii) Note the content and outcomes of the Ofsted inspection of services for 
children in need, looked after children, care leavers and the Local Authority 
Children’s Services' Improvement Plan.

61. Adoption Agency Annual Report 2013-14

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care introduced the Adoption Agency 
Annual Report for 2013/14 which summarised the work of the service during the 
year and the priorities aimed at improving the service, a number of which had 
stemmed from an external adoption challenge by the British Association for 
Adoption and Fostering.

The Cabinet Member advised on the high threshold for placing children for 
adoption and the difficulties faced in attracting prospective adopters from across all 
spectrums of the community, including individuals as well as couples.  The Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care and Health referred to the lengthy process that 
prospective adopters had to go through to be selected and suggested that it would 
be a helpful to use the experiences of those who had gone through the process in 
the recruitment material.

In response to a question regarding the potential loss of three posts within the 
service, the Corporate Director of Children’s Services advised that Adoption Grant 
funding levels from central Government had already reduced by £600,000 in the 
current year and further cuts were likely.  The Chief Executive explained that it was 
almost inevitable that cuts would have to be made to grant funded services when 
that funding was reduced or ceased, due to the existing pressures on Council 
funding.

Cabinet resolved to note the Adoption Agency Annual Report 2013/14 at 
Appendix 1 to the report and the 2014/5 priorities of “Improve permanency 
planning for children”, “Recruit more potential adoptive parents” and “Increase 
membership of the Adoption Panel”.

Page 13



62. Campaign Against Domestic Abuse

The Leader of the Council reminded Members of the Council’s campaign against 
domestic abuse and encouraged everyone in the Council to support the various 
initiatives that would be taking place over the coming weeks, which included the 
‘16 Days of Activism’ programme commencing from White Ribbon Day on 
Thursday 25 November to Human Rights day on Wednesday 10 December.

63. Private Business

Cabinet resolved to exclude the public and press for the remainder of the meeting 
by reason of the nature of the business to be discussed which included information 
exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

64. Arrangements for Future Delivery of Barking Market and Street Trading 
Management

The Cabinet Member for Crime and Enforcement presented a report on proposals 
relating to the future delivery of Barking Market and street trading management 
arrangements.

It was noted that the current partnership agreement with Charfleets Limited for the 
running of the Barking Town Centre Market and Street Trading Management 
Services would expire on 24 April 2015.  The Cabinet Member referred to the 
options appraisal which had been carried out by officers and advised that the 
preferred option was to bring the management arrangements in-house for an 
interim period of two years.  That proposal would also involve a formal review 
being carried out after 18 months to assess the benefits of the in-house 
arrangements which would, in turn, inform a decision on whether to retain the in-
house arrangement or to procure an initial three-year contract with a service 
provider.

The Cabinet Member confirmed that the proposals in the report supported the 
objectives of the Barking Town Centre Strategy 2014-18 agreed by Minute 21 (25 
September 2014) and the Council’s new vision and priorities.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Agree that the management of Barking Market and Street Trading Services 
return to an in-house service on an interim basis at the cessation of the 
current contract, with a full review to be conducted after 18 months following 
which the service shall either continue in-house or be procured in line with 
the Council’s Contract Rules and EU legislation; 

(ii) Agree, in the event that procurement is recommended following the review 
process, that a procurement exercise be undertaken in line with the strategy 
detailed in the report, for a contract term of three years with the option to 
extend for a further year; and

(iii) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 
Services, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of 

Page 14



Legal and Democratic Services, to award the new contract following a 
procurement exercise and to approve any subsequent extension of the 
contract.

65. Care City and Abbey Sports Centre Site - Update

Further to Minutes 66 (19 November 2013) and 12 (4 August 2014), the Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration presented a report on the progress of the plans to bring 
a mixed use commercial leisure-led development, incorporating a permanent base 
for the Care City initiative, to the site of the existing Abbey Sports Centre in 
Barking Town Centre.

Following the decision to include the accommodation for the Care City initiative 
into the specification for the development, tenderers had resubmitted bids based 
on options for the ground floor and residential uses to be acquired on either a 
freehold or leasehold arrangement and for either one or two storeys of office space 
for Care City.  The Cabinet Member referred to the evaluation of the bids and 
advised that the preferred option included a cinema and restaurant on the ground 
floor, first floor office space for Care City and seven storeys of residential 
accommodation via a 125-year lease arrangement.  The Cabinet Member 
commented that the proposed development would make a substantial contribution 
to the regeneration of Barking Town Centre and he had asked officers to consider 
potential use options for the Abbey Sports Centre for the period leading up to its 
demolition. 

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care referred to his previous 
observations on other regeneration reports in relation to the Council’s ability to 
restrict on-letting at a rental profit by Buy-to-Let investors.  The Divisional Director 
of Regeneration confirmed that the issue would be discussed with the 
development partner and undertook to present a more detailed report on the 
development proposals to a future meeting of the Cabinet.

Cabinet resolved to:

(i) Approve the selection of Lindhill as the preferred development partner for 
the redevelopment of the Abbey Sports Centre site under a 125-year lease 
arrangement; 

(ii) Agree the components and development parameters associated with the 
proposed Scheme submitted by Lindhill whilst noting that the detailed 
Scheme will be subject to a formal planning application and the decision of 
the Development Control Board at a future date; 

(iii) Authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services, to finalise the sale terms and complete the necessary 
legal agreements with Lindhill and NELFT; 

(iv) Agree to enter into an early works order with Lindhill or the Council’s own 
contractor to demolish Abbey Sports Centre when it becomes vacant, whilst 
noting that the upfront costs will be reimbursed when the Development 
Agreement becomes unconditional;

Page 15



(v) Agree to front fund any works required to complete the commercial and 
legal agreements with Care City and Lindhill, whilst noting that these upfront 
costs will be reimbursed when the Development Agreement becomes 
unconditional; and

(vi) Request officers to present to a future meeting a detailed report on the new 
development.

Page 16



CABINET

16 December 2014

Title: Call-In of Decision Made by Cabinet on 18 November 2014 under Minute 49(xi) 
re. Employment of a Political Assistant and a Leader and Members’ Services Manager

Report of the Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Alan Dawson, Democratic 
Services Manager, Legal and Democratic 
Services

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8227 2348
E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Divisional Director: Fiona Taylor, Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services and Monitoring Officer

Accountable Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive  

Summary

The Public Accounts and Audit Select Committee met on 2 December 2014 to consider 
a call-in, submitted by Councillors Mullane and Reason, in respect of Minute 49(xi) of 
the Cabinet on 18 November 2014, which related to the withdrawal of part of saving 
CEX/SAV/09 (presented to Cabinet on 7 October 2014) in order to recruit a Leader and 
Members’ Services Manager and a Political Assistant in the Democratic Services 
section.

The Select Committee upheld the call-in on the following grounds:

(a) Proportionality - the withdrawal of £100,794 from saving proposal CEX/SAV/09 
was inappropriate in the context of the financial pressures currently faced by the 
Council and would have an adverse impact on front-line services;

(b) Due consultation - there had been no prior consultation on the proposals, non-
Cabinet Members were refused permission to ask any questions at the Cabinet 
meeting where the proposal was agreed and detailed information known at the 
time of the Select Committee’s consideration of the original saving proposal on 
29 October was not shared with Members; and 

(c) Clarity of aims and desired outcomes - there was a lack of openness and 
transparency.

The Select Committee acknowledged points made by the Cabinet Member for Finance 
regarding the need for the new leadership to be supported at the present time.  Taking 
that into account, the Select Committee agreed the following recommendations to the 
Cabinet:

(i) That the post of Leader and Members’ Services Manager was unnecessary and 
unjustified in the context of the Council’s current financial situation, and should 
not be recruited to; and

(ii) That the recruitment of a Political Assistant was supported on the basis that the 
duties of the post should be expanded to take on responsibility for non-
management elements of the Leader and Members’ Services Manager job 

Page 17

AGENDA ITEM 4



description.  

The relevant extract from the draft, unconfirmed minutes of the Select Committee 
meeting is attached at Appendix 1.

Recommendation(s)

The Cabinet is asked to:

(i) Note the outcome of the Select Committee’s consideration of the matter; and 

(ii) Decide whether to amend its decision made under Minute 49(xi) in the light of 
the recommendations of PAASC or to confirm the proposal to recruit a Leader 
and Members’ Services Manager and a Political Assistant.

Reason(s)

To accord with the Council’s Call-In processes. 

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 

 Report to Cabinet, 7 October 2014, entitled “Budget Strategy 2015/16”
 Report to PAASC, 2 December 2014, entitled “Call-In of Cabinet Decision re. Leader 

and Members’ Services Manager and Political Assistant posts”

List of appendices: 

 Appendix 1 – Extract from the draft, unconfirmed minutes of the PAASC meeting 2 
December 2014

Page 18



Appendix 1

Extract from the Draft, Unconfirmed Minutes of the Public Accounts and 
Audit Select Committee, 2 December 2014

Minute 20 - Call-In of Cabinet Decision re. Leader and Members' Services Manager 
and Political Assistant posts

The Monitoring Officer introduced a report on a call-in that had been received from 
Councillors Mullane and Reason in respect of Minute 49 (xi) of the Cabinet on 18 
November 2014, which related to the withdrawal of part of saving CEX/SAV/09 (presented 
to Cabinet on 7 October 2014) in order to recruit a Leader and Members’ Services 
Manager and a Political Assistant in the Democratic Services section.

The Monitoring Officer advised that the call-in had been assessed against the three 
relevant criteria of (a) was the decision in line with the Council’s Policy Framework; (b) was 
the decision in line with the Council’s Budget Framework; and (c) was the decision taken in 
line with the ‘principles of decision-making’ set out in the Council Constitution.  In respect 
of (a) and (b), the Monitoring Officer explained the reasons why those criteria had not been 
considered valid.  In respect of (c), the Monitoring Officer confirmed that the call-in had 
met the threshold for consideration under the grounds of proportionality, due consultation 
and clarity of aims and desired outcomes.  Councillors Waker and Young made arguments 
against the application of the call-in assessment criteria and the determination by the 
Monitoring Officer that the decision had not contravened the Budget and Policy 
Frameworks.

In line with the procedure, the Lead Member invited the Councillors that had made the call-
in to present their reasons for the call-in.  

Councillor Mullane introduced the call-in and referred to the need for councillors to 
properly represent the interests of local residents through protecting front-line services.  
The decision by the Cabinet to appoint a Leader and Members’ Services Manager and a 
Political Assistant would reduce the level of saving proposed via CEX/SAV/09 by 
approximately £100,000, which she believed would have a knock-on effect on front-line 
services.  A further key reason for the call-in was that neither officers or the Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Councillor Twomey, had specifically referred to the posts when 
savings proposal CEX/SAV/09 was considered by the Select Committee at its meeting on 
29 October 2014, despite them being known of at that time and, as was now understood, 
the recruitment process being commenced for at least one of the posts.  Councillor 
Mullane added that the recommendation stemming from the Corporate Peer Review to 
increase the support to the new Leader and Cabinet was merely a recommendation and 
should have been considered in the context of the extreme financial difficulties faced by 
the Council at the present time.

Councillor Reason elaborated on the reasons for the call-in and made specific reference to 
Cabinet Manager and Political Assistant postholders who had supported the previous 
Cabinet, the decision by the Leader of the Council not to allow questions from non-Cabinet 
Members at the meeting of the Cabinet on 18 November 2014 and the option to continue 
the current voluntary support arrangement that was in place for the new Cabinet.  
Councillor Reason also reiterated the importance of minimising the impact of the Council’s 
budget savings on front-line services and suggested that the funding for the Leader and 

Page 19



Members’ Services Manager and a Political Assistant posts could be better served 
elsewhere.

Councillor Young enquired as to any steps that Councillor Mullane had taken prior to 
submitting the call-in.  Councillor Mullane advised that she had been reviewing the 
Council’s Forward Plan in order to see when the issue was due to be debated by the 
Cabinet and had attended the meeting on 18 November with the intention of raising her 
concerns but was advised by officers shortly before the meeting commenced that the 
Leader had indicated that he was not prepared to take questions from non-Cabinet 
Members.  Councillor Young clarified that he had submitted a number of written questions 
to the Leader on the afternoon of 18 November but had received the same response.

Councillor Gill asked his colleagues whether anyone had seen the advertisements for 
either of the two posts.  Councillor Mullane responded that she had been made aware by a 
member of the public of an advert for the Leader and Members’ Services Manager post 
and had contacted the Chief Executive to express her concern.  The Monitoring Officer 
clarified that the Leader and Members’ Services Manager post had been advertised in mid 
October while the recruitment process for a Political Assistant had not begun.  With 
reference to the discussions regarding the former Cabinet Manager post, the Monitoring 
Officer advised that the post formerly occupied by DW was that of Scrutiny Manager, 
although that point was contested by Councillor Mullane. 

Members of the Select Committee expressed concern that no mention had been made at 
the meeting on 29 October to the specific proposals to recruit a Leader and Members’ 
Services Manager and a Political Assistant, nor that the recruitment process for one of the 
posts had begun.  Councillor Twomey referred to the presentation to the Select Committee 
on 29 October for savings proposal CEX/SAV/09 which stated that the full £195,000 
saving may be reduced following a review of support to the Cabinet in the light of the 
Corporate Peer Review report.  Whilst Members of the Select Committee agreed that had 
been the case, the point was made that the handling of the matter and the lack of 
openness, particularly on the part of officers who were responsible for giving impartial 
advice and support to all councillors, had undermined Members’ position as democratically 
elected representatives of the local community.  

Councillor Twomey acknowledged the concerns but suggested that the Select 
Committee’s focus should be on the call-in made by Councillors Mullane and Reason and 
other issues that Members may have regarding the recruitment and appointment 
arrangements should be dealt with elsewhere.  With regard to the specific point that 
Members’ democratic role was being undermined, Councillor Twomey commented that the 
purpose of the call-in process was to provide non-Cabinet Members with an opportunity to 
exercise their democratic rights.  The Monitoring Officer also clarified that the original 
savings proposal had been developed in April based on the corporate direction that all 
vacant posts should be put forward for consideration.  The posts of Scrutiny Manager and 
Political Assistant had been vacant for several months so were included in the proposals 
but the subsequent Corporate Peer Review and the ambitions of the new leadership led to 
a reconsideration of the support that would be required.

Other points / questions raised by Members included:

 Whether the Cabinet’s decision to withdraw approximately £100,000 of the planned 
saving of £195,000 from the Democratic Services section to support the recruitment of 

Page 20



a Leader and Members’ Services Manager and a Political Assistant meant that the 
Cabinet was undermining its own policies.

 The diversion of circa £100,000 from the planned Democratic Services saving, the 
additional cost associated with the employment of a full-time Chief Executive and the 
continued use of agency staff in many departments placed a considerable additional 
burden on the Council’s finances.  Following on from that point, Councillor Young 
acknowledged that the appointment of a full-time Chief Executive was likely to lead to 
efficiencies being realised elsewhere in excess of that specific extra cost but he found it 
hard to understand how a Leader and Members’ Services Manager and a Political 
Assistant could deliver savings comparative to the level of expenditure.

In response to a number of the points raised and in presenting the Cabinet’s response to 
the call-in, Councillor Twomey referred to the following:

 Saving proposal CEX/SAV/09 was originally listed for management implementation but 
was moved into ‘schedule B’ to enable scrutiny by the Select Committee.

 The previous leadership had introduced the role of Political Assistant several years 
before and the last postholder was brought in by the previous Leader in 2012 before 
the appointment was formalised in 2013 and at a time when budget savings were being 
made.  

 There were no objections to the Political Assistant role at that time.
 The previous Cabinet had received similar management level support in the past.

Councillor Twomey explained that a lot of issues had been taken into account before 
reaching the decision to recruit a Leader and Members’ Services Manager and a Political 
Assistant.  He gave examples of where the added value was expected to be achieved and 
did not feel that the proposal created unnecessary pressure, adding that those involved in 
the Corporate Peer Review had been well aware of the Council’s financial situation so 
would not have made their recommendation lightly.  Councillor Twomey concluded that the 
previous leadership had overseen considerable budget reductions yet had seen the 
benefits of having dedicated managerial and political support for the Cabinet at the same 
time, and he felt that the support was even more important now due to the significant 
challenges ahead and the vision and priorities of the new leadership.

Councillor Young spoke on the value of the political assistant role and acknowledged that 
he had argued for increased support in the past.  He felt, however, that the current 
pressures on front-line services placed the Council in a different position and he suggested 
that Councillors should be encouraged to carry out their own research.  Councillor Waker 
concurred with the view that the situation was different now as a result of the extreme 
financial constraints and questioned the role of the Leader and Members’ Services 
Manager post, suggesting that other officers could provide the service.  

Councillor Twomey responded that the postholder would be responsible for bringing 
together all of the current support provided to councillors including the Members’ casework 
service, ensuring service efficiency and keeping everyone informed.  It was acknowledged 
that there was not the capacity within the Democratic Services section to take on the 
responsibilities.  

With reference to Members’ casework, Councillor Reason advised that she had previously 
taken the lead on issues that fell under her former Cabinet portfolio responsibilities and felt 
that having a ‘middle man’ would detract from the relationship between Cabinet and non-
Cabinet Councillors.

Page 21



Councillor Gill asked whether alternative arrangements such as shared services with 
neighbouring boroughs had been considered as a way of providing the expertise needed 
but at a reduced cost.  Councillor Twomey responded that if that was to be a proposal of 
the Select Committee he would take it back to the Cabinet for consideration, along with 
any other proposals recommended by the Select Committee.

The Select Committee retired at 18:10 to deliberate and returned at 18:35 to announce its 
decision.

Decision

The Select Committee upheld the call-in on the following grounds:

(a) Proportionality - the withdrawal of £100,794 from saving proposal CEX/SAV/09 was 
inappropriate in the context of the financial pressures currently faced by the Council 
and would have an adverse impact on front-line services;

(b) Due consultation - there had been no prior consultation on the proposals, non-
Cabinet Members were refused permission to ask any questions at the Cabinet 
meeting where the proposal was agreed and detailed information known at the time 
of the Select Committee’s consideration of the original saving proposal on 29 
October was not shared with Members; and 

(c) Clarity of aims and desired outcomes – there was a lack of openness and 
transparency.

The Select Committee acknowledged, however, the points made by the Cabinet Member 
for Finance regarding the need for the new leadership to be supported at the present time.  
Taking that into account, the Select Committee agreed the following recommendations to 
the Cabinet:

(i) That the post of Leader and Members’ Services Manager was unnecessary and 
unjustified in the context of the Council’s current financial situation, and should not 
be recruited to; and

(ii) That the recruitment of a Political Assistant was supported on the basis that the 
duties of the post should be expanded to take on responsibility for non-
management elements of the Leader and Members’ Services Manager job 
description.

Page 22



CABINET

16 December 2014

Title: Budget Monitoring 2014/15 - April to October 2014 (Month 7)

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: Steve Pearson
Group Accountant, Corporate Finance

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8227 5215
E-mail: steve.pearson@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Director: Jonathan Bunt, Chief Finance Officer

Summary

This report provides Cabinet with an update of the Council’s revenue and capital position 
for the seven months to the end of October 2014, projected to the year end.  
 
The Council began the current year in a better financial position than the previous year 
with a General Fund (GF) balance of £27.1m. The Council’s approved budget of £165.3m 
for 2014/15 includes a budgeted drawdown from reserves of £1.0m, agreed by Assembly 
in February 2014. This budget gap forms part of the savings requirement for 2015/16.
 
At the end of October 2014 (Month 7), there is a projected overspend of £1.3m, 
predominantly on the Children’s Services budget after the agreed application of the 
remainder of the Children’s Services reserve. The Executive Director of Children’s 
Services presented a report to the last Cabinet meeting detailing measures being taken by 
the service to reduce its expenditure.  Alongside these measures Cabinet has agreed that 
all Chief Officers and budget managers should authorise only essential expenditure 
relating to their service areas and that any savings proposals agreed for future years 
should be implemented this year where possible. These initiatives have lead to a reduction 
in the forecast overspend for this financial year, with the projected overspend reducing by 
£1.9m from the September position.

The total service expenditure for the full year is currently projected to be £166.6m against 
the budget of £165.3m. The projected year end overspend coupled with the reserve 
drawdown will reduce the General Fund balance to £24.8m at the year end. The Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) is projected to break-even, leaving the HRA reserve at £8.7m.  
The HRA is a ring-fenced account and cannot make or receive contributions to/from the 
General Fund.

The Capital Programme budget now stands at £142.4m, following the re-profiling agreed 
at November’s Cabinet. Capital budgets cannot contribute to the General Fund revenue 
position although officers ensure that all appropriate capitalisations occur.

Page 23

AGENDA ITEM 5

mailto:steve.pearson@lbbd.gov.uk


Recommendation(s)

The Cabinet is recommended to:

(i) Note the projected outturn position for 2014/15 of the Council’s General Fund 
revenue budget at 31 October 2014, as detailed in paragraphs 2.4 to 2.10 and 
Appendix A of the report;

(ii) Note the impact on the outturn position of expenditure restrictions and early savings 
implementation agreed at 25 September Cabinet and detailed in paragraph 2.2;

(iii) Note the progress against the agreed 2014/15 savings at 31 October 2014, as 
detailed in paragraph 2.11 and Appendix B of the report;

(iv) Note progress against the agreed 2014/15 HRA savings as detailed in paragraph 
2.12 and Appendix B of the report;

(v) Note the overall position for the HRA at 31 October 2014, as detailed in paragraph 
2.12 and Appendix C of the report;

(vi) Approve the drawdown of £270k from Children’s Services reserve as detailed in 
paragraph 2.5.

Reason(s)

As a matter of good financial practice, the Cabinet should be regularly updated with the 
position on spend against the Council’s budget.  In particular, this report alerts Members to 
particular efforts to reduce in-year expenditure in order to manage the financial position 
effectively.

1 Introduction and Background

1.1 This report provides a summary of the Council’s General Fund and HRA revenue 
and capital positions.  It also provides an update on progress made to date in the 
delivery of the agreed savings targets built into the 2014/15 budget, setting out 
risks to anticipated savings and action plans to mitigate these risks.

1.2 It is important that the Council regularly monitors its revenue and capital budgets 
to ensure good financial management.  This is achieved within the Council by 
monitoring the financial results on a monthly basis through briefings to the 
Cabinet Member for Finance and reports to Cabinet.  This ensures Members are 
regularly updated on the Council’s overall financial position and enables the 
Cabinet to make relevant financial and operational decisions to meet its budgets.

1.3 The Budget report to Assembly in February 2014 provided for a target of £15.0m 
for the General Fund balance. The revenue outturn for 2013/14 led to a General 
Fund balance of £27.1m.  The current projected position, unless addressed, 
would mean a reduction in the General Fund balance to £24.4m, but still above 
the target general fund balance of £15.0m.

Page 24



1.4 The additional level of reserves above the minimum level provides the Council 
with some flexibility in its future financial planning but, to take advantage of that, 
it is essential that services are delivered within the approved budget for the year.  
Overspends within directorate budgets will erode the available reserves and 
therefore limit the options that reserves could present in the medium term.

2 Current Overall Position

2.1 The following tables summarise the spend position and the forecast position of 
the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balances.

Council Summary
2014/15

Net
Budget

Full year
forecast
at end 

October 
2014

Over/(under)
spend 

Forecast

£000 £000 £000
Directorate Expenditure
Adult and Community Services 55,377 54,670 (707)
Children’s Services 62,119 66,185 4,066
Housing (GF) 3,586 3,586 -
Environment
Chief Executive

20,499
21,332

20,499
20,848

-
(484)

Central Expenses 3,451 1,901 (1,550)
Total Service Expenditure 166,364 167,689 1,325
Budgeted reserve drawdown
(to Central Expenses budget)

(1,044) (1,044) -

Total Expenditure 165,320 166,645 1,325

Balance at 
1 April 
2014

Forecast 
Balance at 
31 March 

2015

£000 £000

General Fund 27,138 24,769*
Housing Revenue Account 8,736 8,736

*The forecast general fund balance includes the £1.3m projected overspend plus 
the £1m planned drawdown from reserves.

2.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments

The current Directorate revenue projections indicate an overspend of £1.3m for the 
end of the financial year, made up as follows:

 £0.5m underspend in the Chief Executive directorate mainly as a result of 
vacancies within the directorate; 

 £0.7m underspend in the Adult & Community Services directorate as a result 
of widening the use of the Public Health grant;

Page 25



 £1.6m underspend in the Central Expenses budget due to VAT refunds and 
reduced borrowing costs as a result of well managed cash flow; and

 £4.1m overspend in Children’s Services due to demand pressures in the 
Complex Needs and Social Care division.  

As noted above, the current forecast overspend within Children’s Services 
represents the greatest area of risk to delivering a balanced budget for 2014/15. 
November’s Cabinet received a report from the Director of Children’s Services that 
set out options for reducing expenditure in the current financial year. These options 
are anticipated to reduce expenditure by the end of the year and £0.6m has been 
factored into the current forecast. Alongside the actions by Children’s Services, 
September Cabinet agreed that Chief Officers and budget managers only authorise 
expenditure on areas that are essential to the delivery of their service. The effects 
of these measures are starting to show in the monitoring and it is anticipated that 
forecast spend will reduce further as the measures become fully effective.  

On 7 October, Cabinet agreed a number of savings items for the next three years 
for management implementation and at its 21 October meeting, Cabinet agreed that 
these should be implemented immediately wherever possible to assist with the in 
year position.  Included in those proposals was the transfer of the funding of c£700k 
of services from the General Fund to the Public Health grant from April 2015.  
Following review, the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care & Health is supportive 
of this occurring in the current financial year.

November’s Cabinet also agreed a review of the Council’s fees and charges with, in 
most cases, an increase from 1 January 2015.  This additional income is not 
budgeted for in the current financial year and therefore any increase in income 
generated will mitigate the projected overspend.

As previously reported, there are further options for this financial year including the 
transfer of the net income for the commercial portfolio currently accounted for in the 
Housing Revenue Account and a potential reduction in the required bad debt 
provision for temporary accommodation based on current demand.  Updates on 
these two measures, which total nearly £1m, will be included in future reports.

Whilst the currently forecast overspend, would result in a reduction in the Council’s 
General Fund balance, it would still remain above the budgeted target of £15.0m.  
The Chief Finance Officer has a responsibility under statute to ensure that the 
Council maintains appropriate balances.

 
The Chief Finance Officer, after consideration of the factors outlined in the CIPFA 
guidance on Local Authority Reserves and Balances 2003 and the other financial 
provisions and contingency budgets held by the Council, set a target GF reserves 
level of £15.0m.  The General Fund balance at 31 March 2014 was £27.1m and the 
current forecast balance for the end of the financial year is £24.8m. 

At the end of October 2014, the HRA is forecasting a balanced budget, maintaining 
the HRA reserve at £8.7m.

Page 26



2.3 Directorate Performance Summaries

The key areas of risk which might lead to a potential overspend are outlined in the 
paragraphs below. 

2.4 Adult and Community Services

Directorate Summary 2013/14
Outturn

2014/15
Budget

2014/15
Forecast

£000 £000 £000
Net Expenditure 55,191 55,377 54,670
Projected over/(under)spend (707)

The Adult and Community Services directorate is overall forecasting an underspend 
of £707k for 2014/15.  This position is after a recent decision to charge Substance 
Misuse and Drug and Alcohol Action Team services as well as Sports Development 
to Public Health grant. There are still a number of pressures within the service, 
particularly for Mental Health and non-residential care budgets for all client groups. 
These pressures have been evaluated and appropriate management actions within 
the service will be implemented as necessary. The net budget includes the full 
allocation of £4.185m social care funding transfer from NHS England; this is 
allocated by local Section 256 agreement and is part of our Better Care Fund (BCF) 
as taken to the Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WBB) in March 2014.  Submission 
templates for the social care funding transfer have recently been released by NHS 
England and have been  completed.

A savings target of £2.438m is built into the 2014/15 budget.  These are largely all 
in process of being delivered or necessary changes have already been made, any 
shortfalls are being covered within the relevant division.

The Adult and Community Services budget includes Public Health, responsibilities 
for which transferred over to the Council in April 2013. The service is wholly grant 
funded, i.e. a net budget and the grant for 2014/15 is £14.213m. The grant 
contributes towards the Council’s preventative agenda by promoting healthy 
outcomes for adults and children. At the end of the last financial year there was an 
underspend of £785k, which as a ring-fenced grant has been carried-forward into 
the current financial year. As noted above, a recent review has been undertaken in 
order to free up usage of the grant so that other appropriate general fund services 
can be charged to the grant to help alleviate the overall corporate budget pressure.

The future social care funding regime is becoming increasingly challenging with a 
number of existing funding streams being rolled together.  A further BCF 
submission was sent last month following the September H&WBB. There is also 
further work being undertaken on planned implementation and financial impact of 
the Care Act. £125k grant has been awarded by the Department of Health to 
meeting initial implementation costs; further resource costs of £500k are estimated 
over the next 12 months which Cabinet has agreed will be funded from reserve 
monies set aside for future pressures within the directorate.

Page 27



2.5 Children’s Services

Directorate Summary
2013/14
Outturn

£000

2014/15
Budget
£000

2014/15
Forecast

£000
Net Expenditure 65,016 62,119 66,185
Projected over/(under)spend 4,066

Overall for 2014/15 the Service is forecasting an over spend of £4.1m. This figure is 
derived from a gross overspend of £6.6m less the application of the remaining 
Children’s Services reserve of £1.5m and the forecast achievement of £1m of 
expenditure reductions over the remainder of the financial year. This represents a 
reduction of £600k from the September position. The main  overspends (before 
expenditure reduction) are in Assessment and Care Management (£1.0m), where 
the increased use of agency staff has contributed significantly to the overspend, 
legal costs (£800k), No Recourse to Public Funds cases (NRPF) £1.8m), 
Placements (£1.0m), SEN transport (£200k) and Commissioning and Safeguarding 
(£300k). Work is now underway to review all costs to ameliorate the increase in 
demand within Social Care and quantify the service demand and changes in unit 
costs since the budget was set. 

As mentioned above, a potential reduction in the overspend of c£1.0m has been 
identified and further work continues to review these reporting reductions through 
weekly progress meetings. The reduction will be achieved through a variety of 
measures, including reduced reliance on agency staff, improved planning of legal 
cases, further challenge to NRPF claims, targeting a 1% reduction in placement 
costs and reducing the level of escort support in SEN transport. The projected 
outturn figure does not, however, take into account the continuing demographic 
growth (approximately 150-250 new children into borough each month). This may 
significantly increase the projections.

An update was reported to Cabinet last month by the Director of Children’s Services 
that set out clear options for significantly reducing or eliminating the adverse budget 
position. The report contained supporting growth data, analysis, trends and 
benchmarking analysis. A further update will be presented to members in January 
2015.

At its June meeting, Cabinet agreed that a number of service underspends from 
2013/14 could be carried forward to fund specific areas of expenditure in 2014/15. 
Cabinet is now requested to approve the use of these carried forward balances in 
Education (£145k), Complex Needs and Social Care (£50k) and Commissioning 
and Safeguarding (£75k). It should be noted that these amounts are not part of the 
£1.5m directorate reserve and do not affect the projected outturn position.

2.6 Dedicated School Grant (DSG)

The DSG is a ring fenced grant to support the education of school-age pupils within 
the borough.  The 2014/15 DSG allocation is £228.0m, covering Individual Schools 
Budgets, High Needs and Early Years services.

Page 28



2.7 Environment

Directorate Summary
2013/14
Outturn

£000

2014/15
Budget
£000

2014/15
Forecast

£000
Net Expenditure 22,425 20,499 20,499
Projected over/(under)spend -

Environmental Services is forecast to breakeven at year end, however, there is 
increasing risk against this position. The service will need to manage pressures of 
£2.0m to deliver on budget. This position has increased by £0.1m since September 
due to increasing pressure on income budgets within Building Control.  

The potential risk to this position is a combination of pressure on staffing budgets, 
income pressure, increased ELWA disposal costs and increasing fuel and utility 
costs. The Building Control service has now been brought back in-house and, 
following a review of the financial position, a risk on achieving the budgeted level of 
income and pressure within staffing budgets has been identified. 

Current projections indicate pressure of £470k due to delays in delivering agreed 
saving proposals. Environment’s share of the savings target is £904k in 2014/15; 
however, the expected shortfall is due to delays in determining the future use of 2 
and 90 Stour Road (£295k) and loss of income generating assets affecting the 
Parking Service (£175k). A review of Parking income projections is underway to 
provide assurance against year to date performance.  

A significant element of risk is outside the services direct control, however, an 
action plan is being delivered to support mitigation. This includes reviewing income 
opportunities, utilising one off grants, holding posts vacant, ensuring recharges and 
income collection are up to date and maintaining expenditure restraint across the 
service. Further pressure on this position is increasingly difficult to absorb and 
manage. Alongside this, the service is reviewing budgets with a view to realigning 
and bringing allocations in line with requirements. 

2.8 Housing General Fund

Directorate Summary
2013/14
Outturn

£000

2014/15
Budget
£000

2014/15
Forecast

£000
Net Expenditure 2,530 3,586 3,586
Projected over/(under)spend -

Current projections indicate a breakeven position in 2014/15. Reduced spend on 
Bed and Breakfast is expected to offset un-budgeted pressures within the service. 
The main risk to the position is the level of temporary accommodation placements, 
particularly the numbers within Bed and Breakfast, and the level of arrears. 

There were 61 Bed and Breakfast placements as at the end of October 2014 which 
is the same as the September position. Placements over the first 7 months of the 
year have typically been within budget assumptions and a continuation of this trend 
over the remainder of the year should enable the service to keep within budget. The 

Page 29



service actively works to minimise Bed and Breakfast placements including utilising 
decanted stock and incentivising private sector landlords. 

The status of arrears has moved over the first 7 months of the year with a greater 
proportion now categorised as former tenants – this follows an increase in the 
number of evictions. Former tenant arrears require a larger bad debt provision due 
to the reduced likelihood of collection. Arrears have increased by £278k since 
September 2014. Targeted intervention and additional collection resource is being 
deployed to further improve arrears management.  

Bed and Breakfast placements and movements in arrears continue to be closely 
monitored as does the impact of welfare reform.  

2.9 Chief Executive’s Directorate

Directorate Summary 2013/14
Outturn

2014/15
Budget

2014/15
Forecast

£000 £000 £000
Net Expenditure 18,475 21,332 20,848
Projected over(under)spend (484)

The Chief Executive (CE) department at this stage is reflecting a projected 
underspend position against its revised budget of £484k. This position is mainly 
attributed to in year vacancies across the department and services making 
transitional arrangements to enable the delivery of 2015/16 savings. 

The department has absorbed a £100k pressure from shortfalls projected against 
the school buyback income budget in HR & Payroll.  There is also a net £150k 
pressure which has arisen from the projected under-recovery of court cost income 
in Revenues & Benefits due to improved collection, resulting in a reduction in the 
number of cases being taken to court. 

The overall position represents a slight improvement from last month’s position of 
(£431k) partly due to the impact of the Council wide freeze on non essential spend.

The department had been set a savings target in 2014/15 of £1.2m, which have 
been achieved. 

2.10 Central Expenses

Directorate Summary 2013/14
Outturn

2014/15
Budget

2014/15
Forecast

£000 £000 £000
Net Expenditure 4,382 2,407 857
Projected over(under)spend (1,550)

Central Expenses is projecting an underspend of £1.6m resulting from a refund of 
overpaid VAT (£400k), reduction in borrowing costs improved rate of return on cash 
deposits (£650k) and a forecast increase in the agency staff contract rebate 
(£500k). The agency staff contract rebate increases as more agency staff are 
employed with the increased usage of such staff by Children’s Services having 

Page 30



contributed significantly to the higher rebate and should be viewed as offsetting 
some of the pressure in that area.

Further savings may be available from the bad debt provision for Council Tax and 
temporary accommodation arrears if current collection rates are maintained; 
updates will continue to be given to Cabinet at each meeting. 

It should be noted that a potential risk has materialised due to a recent fire incident 
at the ELWA owned waste management plant at Frog Island which impacts all 
ELWA boroughs. Work is currently underway to assess the extent of the 
cost/timeline for remedial works and there is scope for both disruption to service 
provision and large additional costs. While it is hoped that all legitimate costs will be 
claimed from insurance, there is potential for the ELWA levy payable by Barking 
and Dagenham to be higher than budgeted for at the start of the financial year. This 
will be monitored closely in the coming weeks and mitigating actions identified 
where possible.

2.11 In Year Savings Targets – General Fund

The delivery of the 2014/15 budget is dependent on meeting a savings target of 
£8.7m.  Directorate Management Teams are monitoring their targets and providing 
a monthly update of progress which is summarised in the table below.  Where there 
are shortfalls, these will be managed within existing budgets and do not affect the 
monitoring positions shown above.

A detailed breakdown of savings and explanations for variances is provided in 
Appendix B.

Directorate Summary of 
Savings Targets

Target
£000

Forecast
£000

Shortfall
£000

Adult and Community Services 2,438 2,398 40
Children’s Services 2,964 2,964 -
Housing and Environment 1,129 659 470
Chief Executive 1,219 1,219 -
Central Expenses 971 971 -
Total 8,721 8,211 510

2.12 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The HRA is currently forecast to breakeven.   

Income

Income is expected to overachieve by £419k. Pressure of £194k on garage rents, 
due to a higher than expected void level, is more than offset by additional income 
from water charges to tenants and an expected overachievement on interest 
received on HRA cash balances.  

The main risk to this position is the impact of welfare reform. Some provision has 
been made within the budget through increased bad debt provision plus the 

Page 31



availability of discretionary housing payments. The position is being monitored 
closely. 

HRA stock movements are being closely monitored as an increasing level of Right 
to Buy activity and higher than budgeted void levels may adversely impact rental 
income.

  
Expenditure

Expenditure is expected to overspend by £419k. Expenditure pressure within the 
caretaking service and delayed delivery of savings provide the main risk, however, 
this is expected to be mitigated through underspending budgets and the one off 
receipt of recovered water and sewerage overpayments. 

Current forecasts indicate delivery of £4.6m of the £6.1m saving requirement with a 
shortfall of £1.5m. This is primarily due to delays in commencing restructures, the 
ongoing review of energy billing within communal areas and non-receipt of income 
from Barking & Dagenham Reside for the provision of Housing Management and 
Repairs and Maintenance services due to higher than expected void levels. 

The position has worsened since last month due to ongoing delays to restructures, 
however, an intermediate review of arrears indicates a lower contribution to the bad 
debt provision than initially expected. Delayed or reduced delivery is expected to be 
managed within the HRA to ensure a breakeven position. 

HRA Balance

It is expected that HRA balances will remain at £8.7m. There is a budgeted 
contribution to capital resources of £35.5m.

2.13 Capital Programme 2014/15

The Capital Programme forecast against budget as at the end of October 2014 is as 
follows:

2014/15
Re-profiled 

Budget
£’000

Actual 
Spend to 

Date
£’000

2014/15 
Forecast

£’000

Variance 
against 
Budget
£’000

ACS        10,451          6,959     10,451 -                              
CHS 26,882            14,692                       27,232                       350                             
H&E 5,492                          2,900                          5,492                          -                                 
CEO 9,139                          2,517                          9,139                          -                                 
Subtotal - GF 51,964                       27,068                       52,314                       350                             

HRA 90,439                       37,443                       90,239                       (200)                            
Total 142,403                     64,511                       142,553                     150                             

The detail for individual schemes is shown in Appendix D. 

Page 32



Summary
The capital programme stands at £142.4m following the addition of the additional 
budget of £283k for the website redesign that Cabinet approved at its meeting last 
month.  Directorates are currently anticipating to exceed this years budget by 
£150k, the funding for which will be brought forward from future years of the 
programme.  As the programme is now in the second half of the year, but the spend 
to date is still less than half of the total budget, an accelerated level of spend would 
need to be incurred in the remaining six months in order to meet the current 
forecast.  As the winter period can slow down and delay works due to bad weather, 
it may mean that some of the programmed works are not completed this year, and 
budgets are slipped back into 2015/16.

New Schemes Requiring Cabinet Approval
None

Adult & Community Services (ACS)
Adult & Community Services has a new re-profiled budget for 2014/15 of £10.4m, 
which includes £7.9m for the new Barking Leisure Centre.  There are currently no 
variances projected.  

Children’s Services (CHS)
Children’s Services had a re-profiled budget of £26.8m, and is currently expected to 
exceed this budget by £350k.  This relates to two schemes, which are now 
expected to incur spend brought forward from next year.  The funding will also be 
brought forward to match this.

The majority of the Children’s Services capital programme is for major school 
expansion projects, which are due for completion for the new September intake.  
Project Managers will continue to ensure that projects are delivered in time for these 
essential deadlines. 

Housing & Environment (H&E)
Environmental Services has a re-profiled budget for 2014/15 of £5.4m.  Following 
the re-profiling exercise presented to Cabinet last month, Environmental Services 
schemes are currently reflecting a nil variance, with the assumption that all 
schemes will spend to budget. The main schemes are highways improvements and 
street lighting replacement. There are currently no pressures / funding issues and 
officers are working to ensure all external funding is drawn down from funding 
bodies and projects run to schedule.

Chief Executive (CEO)
The Chief Executive Directorate has a re-profiled budget for 2014/15 of £9.1m.  
Following the re-profiling exercise to realign budgets with planned delivery, the 
Directorate is forecast to fully spend its capital programme. Officers are working to 
ensure all external funding is drawn down from funding bodies and projects run 
according to schedule.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
The HRA has a re-profiled capital programme budget for 2014/15 of £90.4m. 
Current projections indicate a year-end outturn of £90.2m with the majority of 
schemes to deliver in line with the re-profiled position. The estate renewal scheme 

Page 33



is forecast to underspend by £200k in 2014/15 due to ongoing delays with the 
demolition of blocks at Gascoigne and Althorne Way. 

2.14 Financial Control

At the end of October, the majority of key reconciliations have been prepared and 
reviewed. Where they are outstanding, an action plan has been put in place to 
ensure that they are completed by the end of the financial year. 

3 Options Appraisal

3.1 The report provides a summary of the projected financial position at the relevant 
year end and as such no other option is applicable for appraisal or review.

4 Consultation

4.1 The relevant elements of the report have been circulated to appropriate Divisional 
Directors for review and comment.  

4.2 Individual Directorate elements have been subject to scrutiny and discussion at 
their respective Directorate Management Team meetings.

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 This report details the financial position of the Council.

6 Legal Issues

6.1 Local authorities are required by law to set a balanced budget for each financial 
year.  During the year there is an ongoing responsibility to monitor spending and 
ensure the finances continue to be sound.  This does mean as a legal requirement 
there must be frequent reviews of spending and obligation trends so that timely 
intervention can be made ensuring the annual budgeting targets are met.

Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
Oracle monitoring reports

List of Appendices 

 Appendix A – General Fund expenditure by Directorate
 Appendix B – Savings Targets by Directorate
 Appendix C – Housing Revenue Account Expenditure
 Appendix D – Capital Programme

Page 34



Appendix A

GENERAL FUND REVENUE MONITORING STATEMENT
October 2014/15

Directorate Outturn
2013/14

Revised
Budget

Forecast
Outturn

Forecast
Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000
Adult & Community Services
Adult Social Care 45,354 29,099 30,351 1,252
Commissioning & Partnership 10,383 9,133 (1,250)
Culture & Sport 6,822 4,477 4,352 (125)
Mental Health 3,803 3,421 4,098 677
Public Health (786) 785 785 -
Management & Central Services (2) 7,212 5,951 (1,261)

55,191 55,377 54,670 (707)
Children’s Services
Education 6,576 5,678 5,823 145
Complex Needs and Social Care 39,205 35,130 38,746 3,616
Commissioning and Safeguarding 9,607 9,474 9,780 306
Other Management Costs                      9,628 11,837 11,836 (1)

65,016 62,119 66,185 4,066

Children's Services - DSG
Schools 169,101 176,960 176,960 -
Early Years 13,226 19,329 19,329 -
High Needs 22,920 27,837 28,807 970
Non Delegated 2,715 957 737 (220)
Growth Fund 2,489 3,037 2,375 (662)
School Contingencies 590 - -
DSG/Funding (211,041) (228,120) (228,208) (88)

- - - -
Housing & Environment
Environment & Enforcement 22,425 20,499 20,499 -
Housing General Fund 3,161 3,586 3,586 -

25,586 24,085 24,085 -

Chief Executive Services
Chief Executive Office (144) (85) (46) 39
Strategy & Communication (305) 200 101 (99)
Legal & Democratic Services 212 488 188 (300)
Human Resources (71) 45 (30) (75)
Corporate Finance & Assets 15,510 18,063 18,064 1
Regeneration & Economic Development 2,994 2,621 2,571 (50)

18,196 21,332 20,848 (484)
Other
Central Expenses (5,013) (7,980) (9,653) (1,673)
Levies - 9,685 9,808 123
Contingency 9,395 1,746 1,746 -
Budgeted Reserve Drawdown (1,044) (1,044) -

4,382 2,407 857 (1,550)

TOTAL 168,371 165,320 166,645 1,325

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Directorate Savings Targets: Progress at Period 7 

Ref: Detail Target Forecast Variance Current Position
£000 £000 £000

ACS/SAV/09

Adoption of a mixed economy approach 
for the library service: closure of Rush 
Green library, transfer of Robert Jeyes 
library into a community management 
arrangement and a wholly volunteer led 
service at Marks Gate library.

593 593 -          

Cabinet resolution 23 July 2013 that the difference 
between the original budget saving of £593k and 
the anticipated saving of £400k will be managed by 
the application of corporate contingency in 
2014/15, and that for 2015/16 the shortfall be 
addressed as part of the budget savings 
requirement.

ACS/SAV/11 Reduce funding for care packages 200 200                     
-  Saving to be achieved from care budgets 

ACS/SAV/12 Management Reductions (reduce social 
care GM) 40 40                     

-  Post deleted saving will be achieved 

ACS/SAV/13 Homelessness Prevention 120 120                     
- 

 Budget and delivery of saving transferred to 
Housing 

ACS/SAV/14 Reduce Carers Contract 14 14                     
- 

 Provider (Carers of Barking & Dagenham) 
informed of reduction 

ACS/SAV/15 Advocacy - reduce to statutory provision 42 42                     
-  Plans to deliver this saving are in place 

ACS/SAV/16 Do not extend core funding for DABD 35 35                     
-  Plans to deliver this saving are in place 

ACS/SAV/19 Reduce business support in Adult Social 
Care 16 16                     

-  Post deleted saving will be achieved 

ACS/SAV/20 Delete Arts Team 96 96                     
- 

 Deletion of Arts Development manager post in 
December 2013.  

ACS/SAV/21
Delete Events Team and end all directly 
delivered and commissioned arts events 
and programmes

68 68                     
- 

 Deletion of Events team and programme 
scheduled before the end of the year.  

ACS/SAV/23 Valence House - Heritage Education 
Team 40 40                     

-  Plan to deliver this saving in place.  

ACS/SAV/25 Delete Neighbourhood Crime Reduction 
Team 133 133                     

- 
 Service redesign: savings to be achieved through 
utilisation of external funding streams 

P
age 37



Appendix B

ACS/SAV/26 Delete Anti Social Behaviour Team 121 121 -              Service redesign: savings to be achieved through 
utilisation of external funding streams 

ACS/SAV/28 Reduce strategic commissioning posts 28 28                     
-  Post deleted saving will be achieved 

ACS/SAV/29 Reduce dedicated support to service 
users and carers 19 19                     

-  Post deleted saving will be achieved 

ACS/SAV/30 Metropolitan Police - Cease Funding 
Parks Team 160 160                     

-  Plans to deliver this saving are in place 

ACS/SAV/31 Youth Offending - Cessation of triage 
and prevention interventions 200 200                     

-  Plans to deliver this saving are in place 

ACS/SAV/33 Supporting People Grant Changes 200 200                     
- 

 Steps to deliver this saving has been confirmed 
with Housing colleagues 

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Remodelling homecare services in line 
with the principles of personalisation 100 100                     

- 
 Saving achieved following choice & control 
restructure 

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Revisions to pricing framework for Care 
Home Placements 24 24                     

- 
 Pricing framework revised - saving will be 
achieved 

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Changes to in-house residential care 
service for adults with a learning 
disability  (80 Gascoigne)

50 50                     
- 

 To be achieved by moving service users currently 
in high cost external placements to 80 Gascoigne 
Rd 

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Remodel of learning disability day, 
volunteering and employment services 100 100                     

-  Plans to deliver this saving are in place 

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Expanding commercial opportunities at 
heritage venues 40 0            40

 Income budget to be added to shortfall in current 
Eastbury House income generation so it is 
expected that this saving would add to this shortfall. 
However, the shortfall is expected to be absorbed 
within the wider Culture & Sport income targets 

Total Adult 
& 
Community 
Services

 2,438 2,398 40  

P
age 38



Appendix B

Ref: Detail Target Forecast Variance Current Position
£000 £000 £000

CHS/SAV/16 Adult College –Saving in General 
Support

                       
100 

                       
100 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/17 Education -Advisory Teachers                        
200 

                       
200 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/CS03 Education -Borough Apprentice 
Scheme 

                       
50 

                       
50 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV Education - Attendance                           
40 

                          
40 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/17 Education – Special Inclusion Team                           
50 

                          
50 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/19 Education                           
200 

                          
200 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/20 Education – Youth Services Central                           
460 

                          
460 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/21 Education – SSE Early Years and 
Childcare

                       
50 

                       
50 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/22 Commissioning -SSE Children’s 
Centres Central

                       
1,614 

                       
1,614 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/07 Commissioning - CAMHS                        
50 

                       
50 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/CS07a Commissioning – Performance and 
Information

                          
55

                          
55 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/CS07b Commissioning –Commissioning and 
Partnerships 25 25 0 On target to be achieved

CHS/SAV/13 Commissioning – Performance and 
Information

                          
70 

                          
70 0 On target to be achieved

Total 2,964 2,964 0

P
age 39



Appendix B

Ref Detail Target Forecast Variance Current Position
£000 £000 £000

H&E/SAV/13

Environmental Services - Remove 
infrastructure and reduction in 
maintenance; and identify alternative 
community use for spaces where 
possible

195 195 0
20 GMO staff (0.5 FTE’s) have been removed from 
the Grounds maintenance budget. Staff impacted 
have either left or are in other non-GMO roles.

H&E/SAV/15 Recharge GF works to the Parking 
Account 100 0 100

Savings not achieved due to mitigating the loss of 
assets including Axe Street Car Park, Becontree 
Heath Car Park and areas of CPZ which were 
removed resulting in lost income from permits sales. 
Also decreases in income for Pay and Display as 
fees were not increased to take into account the 
convenience charge for telephone parking.

H&E/SAV/16 Housing Advice Service - Reduction 
in temporary Accommodation Costs 225 225 0 Savings delivered through reduction in B&B 

use/Increased hostel and other housing options

H&E/SAV/17

Parking - increase the volume of 
enforcement activity delivered by 
surveillance cameras and cars; and 
implement paperless parking 
systems including online and 
telephone payments and automatic 
number recognition.

300 225 75

-Generation of £150k for increased levels of 
enforcement and efficiencies within the service.
-Paperless parking and  enforcement by ANPR -
£55k
Paperless parking project is due to go live in April 
2015; there has been a delay in this going live due to 
other IT issues that have occurred. To be rolled 
forward to 2015/16
-Online permit sales 
This is in place and the footfall of customers is down 
by 10% since April 2014. As the on-line applications 
increase this has had an effect on resource in the 
back office. Savings is not achievable as it was 
taken by the one stop shop and not by parking.
-Consultation - £20k
A review of the service to be undertaken only part 
year saving to be delivered. Full year equates to 
£40k

P
age 40



Appendix B

Ref Detail Target Forecast Variance Current Position
£000 £000 £000

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Making Parks more commercially 
sustainable 9 9 0 Savings delivered through income received from 

Masts

FIN&RES/SAV/19
Facilities Management - Closure of 
buildings as part of the office 
accommodation strategy

300 5 295 Savings not yet achieved as both 2 & 90 Stour road 
buildings have not yet closed.

ACS/SAV/13 Homelessness Prevention 120 120 0 Savings delivered and affected staff have been 
retained due to Public Health grant funding obtained.

Total 1,129 659 470

Ref: Detail Target Forecast Variance Current Position
£000 £000 £000

FIN&RES/SAV/01 Regeneration - delete a post in the 
Transport Planning team from 2014/15 53 53 0 Savings achieved and post deleted.

FIN&RES/SAV/06 Efficiencies through implementation of 
Oracle R12 200 200 0 Savings achieved

FIN&RES/SAV/18 Merger of the Corporate Client and 
Capital Delivery Teams 125 125 0 Restructure completed and savings achieved

FIN&RES/SAV/20
Regeneration - Further savings on the 
Economic Development and 
Sustainable Communities Team

240 240 0 Savings achieved

FIN&RES/SAV/21 Regeneration - Further savings in the 
Employment & Skills Team 307 307 0 Savings achieved

FIN&RES/SAV/22
Regeneration - additional income from 
the increase in nationally set planning 
fees.

52 52 0 Income target increased, savings on track to be 
delivered.

CEX/SAV/09 Human Resources - Cost of Health and 
Safety Team 56 56 0 Savings achieved, post deleted

CEX/SAV/10 Strategy & Communications - Further 
reduction and sharing of Service 70 70 0 Savings achieved and shared arrangement with 

Thurrock Council in place.

P
age 41



Appendix B

Feb 2012 
Assembly

Merge Payroll and HR Support (within 
Elevate) 116 116 0 Achieved

Total   1,219 1,219 0

HRA Savings

Detail Target Forecast Variance Current Position
Cease Sheltered Housing warden service to London and 
Quadrant and closure of St Mary Sheltered Housing Unit 103 103 0 Service recharged to L&Q

Efficiency savings for housing Repairs and Maintenance 490 490 0 Expected to deliver saving
Undertake a economic, technical and operational review of 
DLO 500 500 0 On-going restructure expected to deliver saving

Capitalisation of Voids 1,000 1,000 0 Charged to appropriate capital budget

Reduction in concierge due to demolition of blocks 300 300 0
Service no longer in place following demolition of 
blocks 

Tenants Resource Centre 15 15 0 Achieved via a reduction in discretionary spend 
Reduce provision for bad debts in HRA 2014/15 500 500 0 Bad Debt provision level expected to be sufficient
Increased commission on Water Services 251 251 0 Achieved. Higher percentage negotiations ongoing
Provide leasehold management services to Thurrock Council 50 50 0 First quarter invoice to be submitted
Reduction in Corporate Recharges to the HRA 743 743 0 Achieved as part of recharge review
CDC Reduction 126 126 0 Achieved as part of recharge review 
Neighbourhood Management   92 61 31 ACS expect to achieve 75% saving

Additional rental income on Street Purchase
70 52 18

A number of properties have  not be occupied for 
the full year the  expected rental income is 
therefore £52k

Energy billing housing property communal areas 318 0 318
Not currently expected to be achieved – review 
underway

Tenants Participation Team restructure 40 40 0 Budget saving achieved

Housing and Neighbourhood Staffing Structures
510 150 360

Not currently expected to be achieved in full. 
Current projection is £150k will be delivered if 
implemented in Q4

Repairs and Maintenance services provided to B&D Reside 190 0 190
Due to the high level of Voids income will not be 
passed to the HRA

P
age 42



Appendix B

Housing Management services provided to  B&D Reside 77 0 77
Due to the high level of Voids income will not be 
passed to the HRA

Reduction improvement team and fleet  

226 0 226

Six improvement staff and one quality assurance 
post transferred to R&M - staff are unbudgeted. 
Line management was transferred at the end of 
13/14.

Vehicle contract hire 23 23 0
This particular vehicle was removed, however, 
there remains a wider pressure on vehicle costs.

Caretaking supplies 100 100 0
This budget was reduced and spend is currently on 
track to be at the revised level.

Reduction in caretaking and fleet 201 201 0
5 Staff positions across localities were removed 
and a further fleet reduction delivered. 

Ground Maintenance reduction

60 60 0

2 x Grounds maintenance operatives were 
removed from the structure. Saving delivered. 
There remains a significant pressure of 
establishment spend within the service.

Reduction of two working supervisor posts from 
Environmental Services

66 66 0

2 x Working hands supervisors were removed from 
structure. Savings delivered. There remains a 
significant pressure of establishment spend within 
the service.

Closure of Abbey Depot 40 40 0
Depot was closed and no associated premises 
costs are to be incurred. Saving delivered.

Quality Assurance Post 41 41 0 Staff member has left. Saving delivered.
TOTAL 6,132 4,912 1,220  

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REVENUE ACCOUNT MONITORING STATEMENT Appendix C
October 2014-15

Budget Actual to date Forecast Variance
Rents (87,000) (48,727) (87,000) 0
Non Dwelling Rents (2,503) (1,395) (2,309) 194
Other Income (16,401) (10,672) (16,650) (249)
Repairs & Maintenance 17,205 21,153 17,955 750
Supervision & Management 37,779 28,734 37,840 61
Rents, Rates and Other 700 479 600 (100)
Revenue Contribution to Capital 35,453 147 35,453 0
Bad Debt Provision 2,659 0 2,467 (192)
Interest Charges 9,759 (102) 9,659 (100)
Corporate & Democratic Core 685 685 685 0
Interest Received (336) 0 (700) (364)
Pension Contribution 2,000 2,000 2,000
 0 (7,698) 0 0

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2014/15 CAPITAL PROGRAMME - as at the end of October 2014 Appendix D

Project No. Project Name Budget Actual Expenditure 2014/15 Forecast Forecast Variance

Adult & Community Services

Adult Social Care
FC00106 Private Sector HouseHolds 573,715 425,961 573,715 0
FC02888 Direct Payment Adaptations Grant 385,333 212,967 385,333 0
FC02913 80 Gascoigne Road 3,672 0 3,672 0
FC02976 Community Capacity Grant 991,908 761,777 991,908 0

Culture & Sport 0 0
FC02855 Mayesbrook Park Athletics Arena 212,220 21,915 212,220 0
FC02870 Barking Leisure Centre 2012-14 7,988,877 5,241,092 7,988,877 0
FC02266 Barking Park Restoration & Improvement  295,373 295,373 295,373 0

Total For Adult & Community Services 10,451,098 6,959,085 10,451,098 0

Children's Services

Primary Schools
FC02736 Roding Primary School (Cannington Road Annex) 136,939 6,590 136,939 0
FC02745 George Carey CofE (formerly Barking Riverside) Primary School 250,000 128,360 250,000 0
FC02759 Beam Primary Expansion 81,231 1,870 81,231 0
FC02784 Manor Longbridge (former UEL Site) Primary School 320,416 13,542 320,416 0
FC02786 Thames View Juniors - Expansion & Refurb 28,592 4,516 28,592 0
FC02787 Cambell Junior - Expansion & Refurb 17,626 0 17,626 0
FC02790 St Georges - New Primary School 25,385 0 25,385 0
FC02799 St Joseph's Primary - expansion 20,601 0 20,601 0
FC02800 St Peter's Primary - expansion 33,869 13,868 33,869 0
FC02860 Monteagle Primary (Quadrangle Infill) 80,549 0 80,549 0
FC02861 Eastbury Primary (Expansion) 375,000 231,810 375,000 0
FC02862 Gascoigne Primary (Expansion) 44,756 0 44,756 0
FC02863 Parsloes Primary (Expansion) 34,972 0 34,972 0
FC02864 Godwin Primary (Expansion) 3,331 3,331 3,331 0
FC02865 William Bellamy Primary (Expansion) 2,500,000 1,993,293 2,500,000 0
FC02867 Southwood Primary (Expansion) 1,060 0 1,060 0
FC02900 Becontree Primary Expansion 24,347 0 24,347 0
FC02918 Roding Cannington 38,642 703 38,642 0
FC02919 Richard Alibon Expansion 971,769 984,902 1,071,769 100,000
FC02920 Warren/Furze Expansion 25,026 17,721 25,026 0
FC02921 Manor Infants Jnr Expansion 1,850,000 1,933,423 2,000,000 150,000
FC02922 Valence Halbutt Expansion 15,000 11,432 15,000 0
FC02923 Rush Green Expansion 30,000 0 30,000 0
FC02924 St Joseph's Primary(Barking) Extn 13-14 94,985 71,983 94,985 0
FC02955 City Farm Barking Riverside New School 25,000 (180,833) 25,000 0
FC02956 Marsh Green Primary 13-15 200,000 144,458 200,000 0
FC02957 John Perry School Expansion 13-15 1,420,320 1,448,093 1,520,320 100,000
FC02960 Fanshawe Primary Expansion 750,000 91,939 750,000 0
FC02979 Gascoigne Primary -Abbey Road Depot 100,000 0 100,000 0
FC02998 Marks Gate Junior Sch 2014-15 100,000 17,191 100,000 0

Secondary Schools
FC02932 Trinity 6th Form Provision 30,000 0 30,000 0
FC02953 All Saints Expansion 13-15 3,883,568 3,255,580 3,883,568 0
FC02954 Jo Richardson expansion 1,000,000 88,665 1,000,000 0
FC02959 Robert Clack Expansion 13-15 100,000 7,558 100,000 0
FC02977 Barking Riverside Secondary Free School (Front Funding) 4,000,000 158,193 4,000,000 0

Page 47



2014/15 CAPITAL PROGRAMME - as at the end of October 2014 Appendix D

Project No. Project Name Budget Actual Expenditure 2014/15 Forecast Forecast Variance

Other Schemes
FC02723 Skills Centre 170,000 179,285 170,000 0
FC02724 Basic Needs Funding (Additional School Places) 5,615 15,842 5,615 0
FC02751 Kitchen Refurbishment 10/11 10,826 10,735 10,826 0
FC02826 Conversion of Heathway to Family Resource Centre 69,948 49,485 69,948 0
FC02878 512A Heathway (Phase 2) - Conversion to a  Family Resource

with additional teaching space
7,222 0 7,222 0

FC02906 School Expansion SEN projects 500,000 159,729 500,000 0
FC02909 School Expansion Minor projects 500,000 286,482 500,000 0
FC02929 Schools Modernisation Fund 2012-13 968,394 582,621 968,394 0
FC02958 Fanshawe Adult College Refurb13-15 144,053 1,010 144,053 0
FC02972 Implementation of early education for 2 year olds 1,304,806 764,492 1,304,806 0
FC02974 Robert Clack Artificial Football Pitch 283,329 22,644 283,329 0
FC02975 Barking Abbey Artificial Football Pitch 629,797 486,267 629,797 0
FC02978 Schools Modernisation Fund 2013-14 1,554,260 914,684 1,554,260 0
FC03010 SMF 2014-16 300,000 0 300,000 0
FC03013 Universal infant Free School Meals Project 708,101 133,653 708,101 0

9999 Devolved Capital Formula 1,096,721 636,665 1,096,721 0

Children Centres
FC02217 John Perry Children's 9,619 0 9,619 0
FC02310 William Bellamy Children Centre 6,458 0 6,458 0

Total For Children's Services 26,882,133 14,691,782 27,232,133 350,000

Housing and Environment

Environmental Services
FC02764 Street Light Replacing 1,417,969 200,688 1,417,969 0
FC02873 Environmental Improvements and Enhancements 28,950 10,792 28,950 0
FC02964 Road Safety Impv 2013-14 (TFL) 328,475 12,119 328,475 0
FC02886 Parking Strategy Imp 91,245 0 91,245 0
FC02887 Frizlands Wkshp Major Wks 0 3,428 0 0
FC02930 Highways Improvement Programme 2,617,708 2,509,115 2,617,708 0
FC02981 Parkmap (Traffic Management Orders) 57,126 0 57,126 0
FC02982 Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ's) 2013-15 255,155 0 255,155 0
FC02999 Rippleside Cmtry prov 2014-15 63,000 1,854 63,000 0
FC03011 Structural Repairs & Bridge Maintenance 250,000 0 250,000 0
FC02567 Abbey Green Park Development 9,093 526 9,093 0
FC02817 Mayesbrook Park Improvements (Phase 1) 10,926 1,336 10,926 0
FC02911 Quaker Burial Ground 48,312 6,778 48,312 0
FC02912 Barking Park Tennis Project 7,397 0 7,397 0
FC03012 Environmental Asset Database Expansion 306,428 153,601 306,428 0

Total For Housing & Environment 5,491,784 2,900,237 5,491,784 0

Page 48



2014/15 CAPITAL PROGRAMME - as at the end of October 2014 Appendix D

Project No. Project Name Budget Actual Expenditure 2014/15 Forecast Forecast Variance

Chief Executive (CEO)

Asset Strategy
FC02578 Asbestos (Public Buildings) 15,916 1,559 15,916 0
FC02771 Automatic Meter Reading Equipment 19,952 0 19,952 0
FC02587 Energy Efficiency Programme 150,000 14,615 150,000 0
FC02542 Backlog Capital Improvements 600,000 69,913 600,000 0
FC02565 Implement Corporate Accommodation Strategy 900,000 457,806 900,000 0

ICT
FC02738 Modernisation and Improvement Capital Fund (formerly One B &

D ICT Main Scheme)
2,040,814 855,469 2,040,814 0

FC02877 Oracle R12 Joint Services 1,584,196 211,926 1,584,196 0
FC03016 Agilisys Connect Website Development 283,450 0 283,450 0

Regeneration
FC02458 New Dagenham Library & One Stop Shop Church Elm Lane 73,666 40,599 73,666 0
FC02596 LEGI Business Centres 113,000 (7,537) 113,000 0
FC02969 Economic Development Growth Fund 33,000 0 33,000 0
FC02821 Robin Hood Shopping Parade Enhancement 151,032 106,104 151,032 0
FC02901 Creekmouth Arts & Heritage Trail 170,550 46,852 170,550 0
FC02902 Short Blue Place (New Market Square Barking - Phase II) 100,491 30,781 100,491 0
FC02928 Captain Cook Site Acquisition and Public Realm Works (Abbey

Leisure Centre)
388,500 0 388,500 0

FC02898 Local Transport Plans (TFL) 66,500 8,160 66,500 0
FC02962 Principal Road Resurfacing 2013-14 TfL 532,000 12,345 532,000 0
FC02963 Mayesbrook Neighbourhood Improvements (DIY Streets) 2013-14

(TFL)
47,500 55,415 47,500 0

FC02994 Renwick Road/Choats Road 2014/15 412,500 367,675 412,500 0
FC02995 Ballards Road/ New Road 2014/15 95,000 76,978 95,000 0
FC02996 Barking Town Centre 2014/15 (TfL) 549,500 21,000 549,500 0
FC02997 A12 / Whalebone  Lane (TfL) 47,500 6,485 47,500 0
FC03000 MAQF Green Wall (TfL) 42,000 56,212 42,000 0
FC02914 Barking Job Shop Relocation 12,504 12,548 12,504 0
FC02899 River Roding Cycle Link / Goresbrook Park Cycle Links (TFL) 0 26,754 0 0
FC03015 Demolition of the Former Remploy site 709,000 17,445 709,000 0

Total For CEO 9,138,571 2,517,379 9,138,571 0

Grand Total General Fund 51,963,586 27,068,483 52,313,586 350,000

Page 49



2014/15 CAPITAL PROGRAMME - as at the end of October 2014 Appendix D

Project No. Project Name Budget Actual Expenditure 2014/15 Forecast Forecast Variance

HRA
Estate Renewal

FC02820 Boroughwide Estate Renewal 6,680,000 2,645,706 6,480,000 (200,000)

New Builds
FC02823 New Council Housing Phase 3 300,000 364,098 300,000 0
FC02916 Lawns & Wood Lane Dvlpmnt 2,039,158 1,897,331 2,039,158 0
FC02917 Abbey Road CIQ 5,458,000 5,235,416 5,458,000 0
FC02931 Leys New Build Dev (HRA) 6,745,276 3,515,866 6,745,276 0
FC02961 Goresbrook Village Housing Development 13-15 7,684,000 4,655,347 7,684,000 0
FC02970 Marks Gate Open Gateway Regen Scheme 10,023,750 2,386,405 10,023,750 0
FC02988 Margaret Bondfield New Build 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 0
FC02989 Ilchester Road New Built 500,000 739,331 500,000 0
FC02991 North St 300,000 1,524 300,000 0

Investment in Stock
FC00100 Aids & Adaptations 450,000 110,327 450,000 0
FC02933 Voids 6,352,000 0 6,352,000 0
FC02934 Roof Replacement Project 1,900,000 1,485,570 1,900,000 0
FC02938 Fire Safety Works 1,600,000 (62,443) 1,600,000 0
FC02943 Asbestos Removal (Communal Areas only) 420,000 123,882 420,000 0
FC02950 Central Heating Installation Inc. Communal Boiler Replacement

Phase II
2,400,000 1,633,742 2,400,000 0

FC02983 Decent Homes Central 6,950,000 4,799,958 6,950,000 0
FC02984 Block & Estate Modernisation 2,440,000 1,600,991 2,440,000 0
FC02811 Members Budget 324,000 25,695 324,000 0
FC02939 Conversions 270,000 8,020 270,000 0
FC02945 Street Properties Acquisition 400,000 71,811 400,000 0
FC03001 Decent Homes (North) 10,543,956 2,511,391 10,543,956 0
FC03002 Decent Homes (South) 8,746,176 2,921,523 8,746,176 0
FC03003 Decent Homes (Blocks) 3,087,914 15,520 3,087,914 0
FC03004 Decent Homes (Sheltered) 1,800,000 3,240 1,800,000 0
FC03005 Decent Homes Small Contractors 275,000 232 275,000 0
FC03007 Windows 250,000 0 250,000 0
FC03008 R&M Capitalisation/ Boiler Replacement 1,000,000 752,270 1,000,000 0

Grand Total HRA 90,439,230 37,442,754 90,239,230 (200,000)

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 142,402,816 64,511,237 142,552,816 150,000

Page 50



CABINET 
 

16 December 2014 
 

Title: Budget Strategy 2015/16 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

Open Report For Decision 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  
Jonathan Bunt, Chief Finance Officer 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8874 8427 
E-mail: jonathan.bunt@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

Accountable Director: Jonathan Bunt, Chief Finance Officer 
 

Summary:  
 
This report focuses on: 
 

 A summary of the national funding position and the provisional finance settlement; 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy and a three year summary level financial 
model for the Council; 

 The current net budget gap for 2015/16 and 2016/17 of £38.5m, although this may 
change significantly when the government announces the finance settlement; 

 The savings proposals for 2015/16 and 2016/17; 

 The outcomes of the budget consultation process with recommendations being 
made for reconsideration of savings and the commensurate impacts. 
 

This report acts as a pre-cursor to the main Budget Framework and Council Tax Setting 
report to be presented to Cabinet and Assembly in February 2015.  
 
Members are requested to note that at the time of writing this report, the final funding 
settlement is yet to be confirmed by the relevant Government departments and figures 
stated within this report may therefore change. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
(i) Note the amendments to the consulted savings proposals as set out at Appendix A 

to the report; 
 
(ii) Approve the revised saving proposals that have been through consultation as set 

out in Appendix B to the report; 
 
(iii) Approve the additional saving proposals for management implementation as set out 

in Appendix C to the report; 
 
(iv) Approve the additional saving proposals that were presented to the Public Accounts 

Page 51

AGENDA ITEM 6

mailto:jonathan.bunt@lbbd.gov.uk


and Audit Select Committee on 2 December as set out in Appendix D to the report; 
 
(v) Approve the draw down from reserves required to deliver a balanced budget in 

2015/16 and 2016/17; 
 
(vi) Approve the draw down from reserves required to fund the investment needed to 

deliver the savings proposals, as detailed in paragraph 4.7 of the report; and 
 
(vii) Approve the end of the Local Emergency Support Scheme from 2015/16 following 

withdrawal of Central Government funding for the service as detailed in paragraph 
2.4 of the report or agree a further allocation from reserves for a revised scheme to 
be delivered. 

 

Reason(s) 
 
The setting of a robust and balanced budget for 2015/16 will enable the Council to deliver 
the priorities and provide required services within its overall corporate and financial 
planning framework.   
 

 
1.0 Introduction and Background  

 
1.1 In March 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer made his 2014 Budget 

announcement.  In line with previous announcements, Budget 2014 confirms that 
government expenditure will continue to fall at the same rate as over the current 
Parliament. 
 

1.2 By the end of the current parliament the Council will have made over £90m of 
savings.  Based on Budget 2014 it is likely this scale of savings will be required over 
the next three years. 
 

1.3 The purpose of this report is to set out the high level revenue budgets and savings 
proposed for 2015/16 and 2016/17, within the context of the government funding 
reductions.  Due to the general election in May 2015, this report focuses on 
delivering a two year budget with 2017/18 to be considered once the national 
agenda is set by a new parliament. 
 

1.4 This report focuses on the Council’s General Fund which is one of the main 
accounts that the authority manages. The General Fund is used to provide services, 
some of which are defined in statute and some of which have been developed to 
meet community needs.  Examples of services funded by the General Fund include 
children’s services, services to vulnerable adults, library services, leisure services, 
environmental services and many others. The General Fund pays for all of the 
Council’s strategic and support services, and each of the Council’s other accounts 
will receive the benefits of these services and, as a result, are recharged the cost of 
these services.  
 

1.5 In addition to money spent from the General Fund, the Council is responsible for 
other accounts which are ring-fenced for specific purposes like the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) and the Capital Fund, which means that the money held 
within these accounts, can only be spent on the specific area that the fund is set up 
for. Despite the ring-fenced nature of these accounts, there is an interrelationship 

Page 52



between these accounts and the General Fund. Shown below is a short explanation 
about each of the Council’s funds and what they are used for: 
 

1.5.1 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) – The DSG is a ring fenced grant and must be 
used in support of the Schools’ Budgets.  The Chief Finance Officer is required to 
confirm final deployment of the DSG in support of the Schools’ Budgets in 
connection with the section 251 outturn statement. 
 

1.5.2 DSG is split into three separate unringfenced blocks: 

 A schools block which is intended to fund individual school budgets, and 
calculated based on all pre-16 school age pupils;  

 An early years block which funds pre-school education in all settings, calculated 
based on all nursery age pupils; 

 A high needs block which funds special schools and all non-mainstream 
educational functions (including top ups to schools for individual pupils with 
additional or special educational requirements).  This is based on historic 12-13 
spend on high needs pupils in school and Further Education (FE) Colleges, plus 
£10k for growth places 

 
1.5.3 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – This account is dedicated to the provision of 

Council housing alone. The income for this account is mainly from rents payable by 
tenants and expenditure is on maintenance of housing units and the management 
of Council housing.  The HRA is a ring-fenced account and, although it does pay for 
specific General Fund services provided to it, it cannot be used to subsidise the 
General Fund. 
 

1.5.4 Pension Fund – The Pension Fund is operated as a funded defined benefit 
scheme which provides for the payment of benefits to former employees of the 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham and those bodies admitted to the Fund, 
referred to as “members”.  The benefits include not only retirement pensions, but 
also widows’ pensions, death grants and lump sum payments in certain 
circumstances.  The Fund is financed by contributions from members, employers 
and from realised capital growth, interest and dividends on the fund’s investments. 
This fund is also managed as a completely separate account and does not interact 
with the Council’s other accounts.  
 

1.5.5 Capital Fund – This is defined as expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of 
assets that are considered to be of benefit to the Authority over a period of more 
than one year, e.g. buildings and land.  The Council’s Capital Programme details 
what expenditure the Council is planning to incur in relation to capital.  Other 
examples include payments of grants and financial assistance to third parties and 
expenditure that is classified as capital following a Ministerial direction.  
 

2.0 National Context 
 

2.1 The Local Government Finance Settlement 2015/16 technical consultation was 
published in July 2014 by the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(CLG).  This gave detailed funding information for each Council which has been fed 
through into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy and savings 
requirement. 
 

2.2 Past 2015/16, no detailed information on how government funding reductions will 
impact local authorities is available.  Based on announcements in Budget 2014 and 

Page 53



analysis from London Councils, an assumed funding reduction has been included in 
the budget for 2016/17.  The actual reductions could be significantly different due to 
uncertainties such as: 

 How total government spending reductions impact individual government 
departments (e.g. protection for Health and overseas aid); 

 The termination of Council Tax Freeze Grants; 

 Changes to the New Homes Bonus; 

 Impact of a new Parliament; 

 Schools transferring to Academies, reducing the Education Services Grant. 
 

2.3 Although recent economic forecasts have shown a stronger than predicted recovery 
for the UK there has been no indication from government that planned funding 
reductions will be scaled back, as the government aims to return the Country to 
surplus by 2018/19. 

 
Table 1 – Funding changes (2014/15 to 2016/17).  This illustrates the level of funding 
reductions the Council is currently estimating based on the announcements from 
government and analysis from London Councils. 
 

Funding Source 
2014/15 

£000 
2015/16 

£000 
2016/17 

£000 

Revenue Support Grant 96,656 79,465 71,310 

Specific Grants 859 1,658 574 

Education Services Grant 4,871 3,671 3,671 

New Homes Bonus Grant 3,234 3,038 3,038 

Council Tax Freeze Grant 14/15 545 545 - 

Benefits Administration Grant 1,835 435 435 

Weekly Collection Grant (Refuse) 417 - -  

Government Funding 108,417 88,812 79,028 

Council Tax Precept 41,187 42,627 43,427 

Retained NNDR Income 16,472 16,942 16,942 

NNDR Pooling Gains - 300 700 

Council Tax Surplus 1,067 - - 

Business Rates Deficit (1,823) - -  

Local Funding 56,903 59,869 61,069 

 
      

Total  Funding 165,320 148,681 140,097 

Reduction - 16,639 8,584 

 
2.4 In addition to the reduction in central grants, Central Government is also ending the 

Welfare Provision Grant from 2015/16. The Council received £915k in respect of 
this grant in 2014/15 and this was used to fund the Local Emergency Support 
Scheme.   
 

2.5 The Local Emergency Support Scheme aims to help low income residents living in 
the borough during times of extreme hardship and need. The scheme operates a 
local fund to provide crisis payments and community care support payments for 
eligible residents to help ease severe financial pressures, provide emergency travel 
payments and prevent serious risk to the health and safety. 

Page 54



2.6 As funding is no longer provided for this service Cabinet is asked to approve the 
end of the scheme from 2015/16 or to consider an allocation from reserves to 
enable a revised scheme to be delivered for 2015/16. 
 

3.0 Budget Gap for 2015/16 and 2016/17 
 
3.1 In February 2014, Assembly approved the budget for 2014/15 which included a £1m 

contribution from reserves. This gap is carried forward into 2015/16. 
 
3.2 In addition to the gap carried forward from 2014/15 and funding reductions there are 

also service pressure that further widen the gap.  The changes to the budget gap 
since October’s Cabinet are show below. 
 

 
Table 2 – Changes to the Medium Term Financial Strategy since October 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy Pressures and 
Adjustments 

2015/16 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

Budget gap present to Cabinet in October 2014 24,566 14,499 

Increase in the London Living Wage 500 - 

Higher East London Waste Authority levy 200 - 

Additional cost of a full time Chief Executive 100 - 

Growth in the Council Tax Base (640) - 

Investment property income transferring from the HRA (700) - 

Revised Budget gap 24,026 14,499 

Cumulative 2 year budget gap     38,525 

 
3.3 As a result of the service pressures and funding reductions savings of £38.5m are 

required over the next two years, with the largest amount required next year. 
 
4.0 Savings proposals for 2015/16 and 2016/17 
 
4.1 In October Cabinet approved savings of £15.6m savings over the next two years 

and £18.9m of savings to go out for consultation.  During the consultation process 
proposed amendments have been made to some of the original £18.9m of savings 
and are detailed in appendix A.  As noted in section 1, the focus is now on 
delivering an agreed two year budget and therefore the savings recommended are 
for 2015/16 and 2016/17. 

 
4.2 The proposed amendments reduce the original savings by £3.2m to £15.7m over 

the next two years.  Cabinet is asked to approve the revised savings schedule at 
appendix B. 
 

4.3 Although the savings presented to Cabinet in October totalled £34.5m there still 
existed a budget gap of £4.1m over the next two years.  Work has been ongoing to 
address this, with emphasise on achieving a balanced budget for the next two 
years. 

 
4.4 Additional savings requesting Cabinet approval totalling £1.7m are shown in 

appendix C.  Further proposals were also presented to the Public Accounts and 
Audit Select Committee for consideration in December 2014 totalling £3.6m over 

Page 55



two years and are shown in appendix D.  Following scrutiny these proposals have 
been revised down by £0.2m 
 

4.5 Considering all of the proposals and amendments across appendices A – D, if 
approved by Cabinet, there remains a gap of £2m across the two years and would 
result in a contribution from reserves of £2.6m. The revised budget position is 
shown in the following table. 
 

Table 3 – Revised Budget Position 

 
 
4.6 Since Cabinet on 7 October 2014 it has been necessary to make amendments to 

some of the savings proposals as part of the consultation process. The 
amendments for the original savings proposals and the additional proposals are set 
out in appendix A.  It is recommended to meet the remaining budget gap from 
Council reserves. 
 

4.7 Cabinet are asked to approve the additional savings at appendix C and appendix D. 
 

4.8 To achieve some of these savings initial investment of £6.2m is required as detailed 
in the following table. 

 
Table 4 – Investment Required for Savings 
 

Reference Savings Proposal Investment 
required 

£000 

ACS/SAV/06a Personalisation of Learning Disability Day Services 41 

ACS/SAV/27 
Valence and Thames View libraries – community 
management  

50 

ACS/SAV/36 Options appraisal for leisure and cultural services 100 

CEX/SAV/22 
Look to provide employee relations advice in a 
different way 

30  

CEX/SAV/56 B&D Direct - Customer Services Channel Shift 670  

CEX/SAV/58 
Withdrawal of the Benefits Direct service at One Stop 
Shops.   

30  

CEX/SAV/60 Automation of Inbound Email/Post Processing 445  

  
2015/16 

£000 
2016/17 

£000 
Total 
£000 

Current budget gap (table 2) 24,026 14,499 38,525 

Savings approved by Cabinet Oct 14 (11,318) (4,304) (15,622) 

Savings – Consultation required (12,459) (6,422) (18,881) 

Additional Cabinet savings (Appendix C) (1,537) (120) (1,657) 

Additional savings presented to PAASC (Appendix D) (1,434) (2,119) (3,553) 

Sub Total (2,722) 1,534 (1,188) 

Savings amendments post Oct (Appendix A) 3,047 110 3,157 

Savings amendments post December PAASC 
(Appendix D) 

182 - 182 

Revised budget gap / (surplus) 507 1,644 2,151 

Page 56



CEX/SAV/63a ICT End User Technologies 377  

CEX/SAV/63b ICT Service Management fulfilment 770  

CEX/SAV/63c ICT Infrastructure Applications 1,100  

CEX/SAV/70 Revenues Services Restructure 110  

CEX/SAV/60 Automation of Inbound Email/Post Processing 20  

HGF001 
Expand Council hostel portfolio to accommodate 
temporary placements instead of using expensive 
B&B accommodation.  

2,000  

Contingency 
Other invest to save proposals where financial impact 
is unquantified 

500  

Total  6,243 

 
4.9 It is proposed to fund these from reserves and the impact of this is shown on the 

following table. 
 

Table 5 – Projected Level of Reserves 
 

 £000 

Estimated General Fund Balance 31 March 2015  26,094 

Available other reserves  7,127 

Total Available Reserves  33,221 

Calls on Reserves:  
 

Implementation of savings proposals  (6,243) 

Budget Gap 2015/16  (507) 

Budget Gap 2016/17  (2,658) 

Remaining Available Reserves  23,813 

 
4.10 This would still maintain the General Fund reserve above the recommended 

minimum of £15m and Cabinet are asked to approve the transfer from reserves to 
fund these savings. 

 
5.0 Public Consultation 
 
5.1 On 21 October, the Council published, on its website, savings proposals for 2015/16 

and beyond that required consultation, and sought comments as part of a budget 
consultation exercise which was promoted widely via social media, through 
stakeholder and user groups, and by the media.  The consultation ran until 27 
November and involved: 
 

 Five select committees; 

 Six public meetings across the borough; 

 Meeting with voluntary sector and community groups; 

 Partners and providers notified of proposals; 

 Feedback to budget@lbbd.gov.uk;  

 Consultation with staff on all proposals; 

Page 57

mailto:budget@lbbd.gov.uk


 Formal consultation with staff and trade unions for restructures; 

 All consultation responses and equality impact assessments collated to inform 
decision making. 
 

5.2 Over 80 residents attended the public meetings and expressed their views on 
specific savings proposals and services more generally.  Each session was 
attended by the Leader, other Cabinet Members and senior officers. The key 
themes from these sessions were: 
 

 Need to support the most vulnerable in the community including older people  

 Concern over proposed reduction to street cleaning 

 Concern over potential reduction in green waste collections 

 Some support for increased parking charges, if the first hour was free to support 
shopping locally, and Controlled Parking Zones particularly near new 
developments 

 Concern over school crossing patrols stopping and children’s safety if there is no 
alternative funding 

 Concern over the proposal to close the Maples but understanding of the benefit 
of personal budgets 

 How residents could do more through volunteering and supporting each other or 
looking after their area e.g. not dropping litter 

 Concern about reductions in funding to the voluntary sector and whether local 
organisations would be able to bid to run services 

 Concern about what young people would do locally if the youth service was 
reduced 

 Residents did not mind how many or which buildings the Council worked from but 
did want to protect children’s centres and libraries 

 Some concern at losing one stop shops, possible call charges and less face to 
face contact but the idea of community hubs was welcomed 

 Being able to access more services online was welcomed but support may be 
needed for some groups e.g. older people 

 Some residents would consider a Council Tax increase to protect frontline 
services. 

 
5.3 Partners and other stakeholders were given the opportunity to participate in the 

public consultation either by attending and asking questions at the Select 
Committees, which many did, through the voluntary sector consultation meeting 
hosted by the CVS with over 60 representatives from local organisations attending, 
and directly through discussions with Directors and Cabinet Members. Many also 
provided written feedback online which has informed the final proposals and 
decisions.  
 

5.4 Council staff also had the opportunity to hear about the budget challenge and ask 
questions of the Leader and Chief Executive at five briefings. In addition formal 
consultation on specific savings proposals impacting on staff including restructures 
have and continue to take place separately. Support that is available to staff has 
been publicised widely internally so that anyone requiring assistance can access it. 
Trade unions have also been consulted throughout the process and attended both 
the Select Committees and staff briefing sessions. 

 
  

Page 58



6.0 Select Committees 
 

6.1 Each Select Committee considered the savings proposals most relevant to their 
remit and were invited to scrutinise them.  Members of the committee were asked to 
indicate whether they were in support of the proposal, in support with 
recommendations or alternative suggestions or not in support. 
 

Table 6 - Summary Level Position by Committee 
 

Select Committee Supported 
£000 

Supported 
with recs 

£000 

Not 
supported 

£000 

 
Total 
£000 

Public Accounts & Audit 3,759  3,046  2,010  8,825  

Living & Working 212  1,914  1,277  3,403  

Children’s Services 905 50  3,553  4,508  

Health & Adult Services 2,140  -  1,015  3,155  

Safer & Stronger Community  749  1,794  -  2,543  

Total 7,765  6,804  7,855  22,434  

 
 

6.2 The impact of these recommendations on the budget position for 2015/16 and 
2016/17 is shown in the following table.  
 

Table 7 – Impact of Select Committee Recommendations 
 

Medium Term Financial Strategy Pressures and 
Adjustments 

2015/16 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

Total 
£000 

Remaining Budget Gap / (Surplus) – (Table 3) (2,722)  1,534  (1,188)  

Proposals not supported by Select Committees 4,720  2,968  7,688  

Revised Budget Gap 1,998  4,502  6,500  

 
6.3 Details of the Select Committees’ comments on each saving is available in the 

appendices to this report: 
 

 Appendix E – Children’s Services Select Committee Comments; 

 Appendix F – Health and Adult Services Select Committee Comments; 

 Appendix G – Living and Working Select Committee Comments; 

 Appendix H – Public Accounts and Audit Select Committee Comments; 

 Appendix I – Safer and Stronger Community Select Committee Comments. 

 Appendix J – Additional Savings Public Accounts and Audit Select Committee 
Comments 

 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 Financial implications have been covered throughout the report.  

 

Page 59



7.2 There are a large number of savings proposals for which the implementation will 
have to be monitored closely to ensure delivery in line with the budget assumptions.  
Across such a high number and high value of savings, some variation is probable 
and will it be the responsibility of officers to ensure the budget remains in balance 
overall.  The Council’s budget will continue to be monitored and reported regularly 
to Cabinet with any required actions should in year financial pressures be identified. 

 
8.0 Legal Implications  
 

Implications provided by: Paul Field, Senior Corporate Governance Solicitor 
 
8.1 Local authorities are under an explicit duty to ensure that their financial 

management is adequate and effective and that they have a sound system of 
internal control and management of financial risk. This report contributes to that 
requirement. Specific legal advice may be required on the detailed implementation 
of agreed savings options.  

 
8.2 Where there are proposals for the closure or discontinuance of a service or 

services, appropriate consultation will need to be carried out. The savings proposals 
that affect staff will require consultation with Unions and staff. In addition to that 
Members will need to be satisfied that Equality Impact Assessments have been 
carried out before the proposals are decided by Cabinet. If at any point a resort to 
constricting expenditure is required, it is essential that due regard is given to 
statutory duties and responsibilities. In particular the Council must have regard to: 

 

 any existing contractual obligations covering current service provision. Such 
contractual obligations where they exist must either be fulfilled or varied with 
agreement of current providers; 

 

 any legitimate expectations that persons already receiving a service (that is 
earmarked for reduction) may have to either continue to receive the service or to 
be consulted directly before the service is withdrawn; 

 

 any rights which statute may have conferred on individuals that as a result of 
which the council may be bound to continue its provision. This could be where 
an assessment has been carried out for example for special educational needs 
following a statement of special educational needs; 

 

 the impact on different groups affected by any changes to service provision as 
informed by relevant equality impact assessments; 

 

 the response to any consultation undertaken. 
 
9.0 Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
9.1 The Council requires that each savings proposal being made should have an 

assessment of the likely particular impacts of the proposal on residents and staff 
from the eight protected equality categories. This helps to: 
 

 Ensure our services are accessible to all and meet the needs of our customers 

 Ensure that we deliver our policies and strategies in a practical way 

Page 60



 Ensure that reasonable account is taken of the impacts of decisions, changes 
and new strategies and policies on service users and staff from the equalities 
categories laid out in the Equalities Act 2010. The need for effective equalities 
analysis has been highlighted by recent judicial reviews of decisions made by 
other local authorities on the grounds of alleged inadequate analysis of proposed 
savings. 

 
The protected characteristics are: 

 

 Men, women and transgender people 

 People from black and minority ethnic groups 

 Disabled people 

 Old and young people 

 Lesbian, gay and bisexual people 

 People with different religions and beliefs and those of no belief 

 Pregnant women and new mothers 

 People who are socio-economically disadvantaged 
 
9.2 Each savings proposal was assesses to establish whether there would be a 

particular positive or negative impact on residents from each of the equalities 
categories, over and above the impact that there would be on all residents, and 
what mitigations have been made in developing the proposal, or would be put in 
place if adopted, to reduce any negative impacts identified. 

 
9.3 All the Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) were collated centrally and each service 

completed a cumulative impact assessment that has informed an overarching 
analysis of the potential impact of all the savings proposals on the community.  In 
summary, the negative impacts are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Negative impact 

Staff 39 

Disability 23 

Age (young people) 22 (+ * 4 ) 

Other including socio-economic 21 

Age (older people) 18 

Race 15 

Gender 12 

Pregnant and nursing mothers 10 

Religion and Belief 9 

Sexual Orientation 8 

*Care leavers (young people ) *4 

TOTAL 181 

Page 61



 
9.4 Along with staff, the overall impact of the proposed savings may have a 

disproportionately negative impact on younger and older people as well as residents 
with disabilities.  These are the equality groups who would experience cuts to 
services explicitly provided for them.  The other equality categories would in a 
number of cases be affected, because they use a specific service more than the 
wider community.   To some extent this is to be predicted as many Council services 
focus on serving the most vulnerable residents, and a large part of some areas of 
the Council’s work, and largest proportion of the budget, does focus on younger and 
older people, so when the Council has to make significant savings, it is likely that 
services for those groups will be particularly affected. Due to the scale of the saving 
required this is unavoidable, however, of the proposals where there is a negative 
impact, 29 have identified actions that would mitigate this, Work is continuing  within 
services to identify other ways of reducing any negative impacts. 

 
10.0 Other Implications 
 
10.1 Staffing Implications – It is estimated that the savings proposals put around 410 

posts at risk over the three years beginning in 2015/16. Discussions with the Trade 
Unions on the specific impact of the savings proposals for have already begun. For 
each individual savings proposal agreed by Cabinet to go forward to consultation, 
where there is an impact on staff, consultation will take place with the staff affected. 
Our “Support for Staff in Tough Times” programme is being strengthened to reflect 
the challenges we face.  
 

10.2 Should the savings proposals be agreed after consultation, we will follow the 
appropriate HR policies and procedures around implementing change. The Council 
remains committed to minimising compulsory redundancies where possible and will 
seek volunteers from the teams affected.  
 

10.3 Customer Impact – The saving options have been subject to an assessment of 
equalities implications and consideration given to the extent of adverse impact on 
customers (see section 9 above).  Front line services have been protected as far as 
possible, but some cuts to front line services have been unavoidable due to the 
scale of the savings required through reduced Government funding and increased 
demand on some services.  

 
10.4 Safeguarding Children – There is a risk that budget proposals could impact on 

safeguarding children at a number of levels. Proposals have considered carefully 
the need to protect the most vulnerable and therefore Children’s Complex Needs 
and Social Care options have been very carefully scrutinised to ensure they do not 
place children at risk. 

 
10.5 Front line services have been protected where-ever possible so that all staff who 

work with families can maintain safeguarding vigilance. There is a risk that some 
reductions in services could lead to more families reaching crisis, when this might 
have been avoided. This has been mitigated by improved cross-agency working 
through the Multi-Agency Localities Teams. 

 
10.6 Crime and Disorder Issues – The Crime and Disorder Act places a duty on the 

Council as a responsible authority to have regard to the reduction and prevention of 
crime and disorder in its decision making process and policy development and 

Page 62



delivery.  As such in terms of financial constraints it is important to have regard to 
the impact of budget reductions in terms of crime and disorder. 

 
10.7 Property / Asset Issues – Some of the savings proposals have indirect property/ 

asset implications with regards building closures resulting from service reviews, 
which will reduce the Council’s property estate. The implications of these will be 
dealt with on a property-by-property basis in line with the Council’s disposal rules. 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
None 
 
List of appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Proposed Savings Amendments 
Appendix B – Revised Savings Proposals 
Appendix C – Additional Savings Proposals for Cabinet Approval 
Appendix D – Additional Savings Presented to PASSC 
Appendix E – Children’s Services Select Committee Comments 
Appendix F – Health and Adult Services Select Committee Comments 
Appendix G – Living and Working Select Committee Comments 
Appendix H – Public Accounts and Audit Select Committee Comments 
Appendix I – Safer and Stronger Community Select Committee Comments 
Appendix J – Additional Savings Public Accounts and Audit Select Committee Comments 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Amendments to Consulted Savings

Orginal Savings Proposals Presented to Cabinet - October 2014:

Dept Service Savings
Reference

Savings option Proposed amendment 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

Total
£000

Adult & Community
Services ACS - Social Care ACS/SAV/09 Review of Independent Living Fund cases Remove proposal 0 125 125
Adult & Community
Services ACS - Commissioned Services ACS/SAV/12a Generalist Advice and Hate Crime Incident

Reporting reductions  Defer from year one to year two 280 (280) 0
Adult & Community
Services ACS - Commissioned Services ACS/SAV/12g The Vineries supported living for 16-18 year

olds Remove proposal 137 73 210

Adult & Community
Services Libraries ACS/SAV/23

Barking Learning Centre and Dagenham
Library –  reduce opening hours and review
staff terms and conditions.

Remove proposal pending full
review of terms and conditions 0 250 250

Adult & Community
Services Libraries ACS/SAV/24

School library service to be full cost recovery
and Home Library Service to be delivered by
volunteers.

Defer from year one to year two 30 (30) 0

Adult & Community
Services Community Sport ACS/SAV/33

Leisure centres - Removal of enhancements
- make Saturdays and evening hours
standard contract terms. 

Remove proposal pending full
review of terms and conditions 0 150 150

Children's Services Children’s Centres CHS/SAV/25a Childcare & Early Years Bring forward from year 3 to year
2 0 (128) (128)

Children's Services Youth Services CHS/SAV/27 Youth Service - reconfigure to voluntary
sector provision with £100k budget

Halve saving and phase over two
years 500 (200) 300

Children's Services Children's Social Care CHS/SAV/35 Review children's social care costs to
identify areas for spend reduction. 

Remove year one proposal, keep
years two and three 1,000  0 1,000

Children's Services Commissioning And Safeguarding CHS/SAV/32 Short breaks (reduction in provision) Remove proposal 100 0  100
Chief Executive Finance - CSC&BI CEX/SAV/51 School uniform grants Defer from year one to year two 64 (64) 0
Chief Executive Democratic Services CEX/SAV/09 Reduce democratic services structure Reduce proposal 148 0 148

Chief Executive Elevate CEX/SAV/57
Introduction of a premium rate number to the
Contact Centre for discretionary service
calls. 

Remove proposal 0 191 191

Chief Executive Elevate CEX/SAV/71 Charging for Discretionary Face to Face
Contact Services Remove proposal 0 140 140

Environment Environmental Services ES012 Cease green garden waste collection  Defer half from year one to year
two 110 (110) 0

Environment Environmental Services ES010B Prestart payment to drivers Halve proposal from 30 minutes
to 15 minutes 86 (17) 69

Environment Environmental Services ES004
Removal or self funding for School Crossing
Patrols from 23 primary school locations
across the borough

Defer from year one and two to
year two and three 82 0 82

Environment Environmental Services ES010A Restructuring of Direct services  Remove proposal pending full
review of terms and conditions 458 0 458

Environment Environmental Services ES015 Redesign of street cleansing operations Reduce proposal 52 10 62
Total Proposed Amendments 3,047 110 3,157

Original Total Savings Proposed at October Cabinet (12,459) (6,422) (18,881)

Revised Proposed Savings (9,412) (6,312) (15,724)

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B - Revised Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings Reference Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total   £000 Comments

Adult & Community Services Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

ACS - Social Care ACS/SAV/01 Workforce remodelling 584 - - 584 26.20

The implementation of part 1 of the Care Act (2014) in April 2015 brings new responsibilities and
demands which will require a reshaped and more professional workforce. These include: an improved
focus on the process of needs assessment with clearer and more transparent eligibility decisions if the
anticipated increase in numbers of referrals are to be managed without a corresponding increase in
ongoing care packages; a clearer process for carers assessments; and a formal approach to statutory
safeguarding enquiries.  We anticipate new Care Act functions may require additional capacity and
different posts in other areas of the Council and this may provide opportunities for redeployment.

ACS - Social Care ACS/SAV/06a Personalisation of Learning Disability Day Services
and consequential closure of The Maples. 257 127 - 384 8.67

While there are a small number of people who will continue to require skilled professional care in a
purpose designed setting because of the nature and degree of their learning disability and associated
health conditions, there is a much larger number of people who, with the right level of support, can
engage in normal community activities, travel independently, and, with the right level of training, be able
to hold down a job.  This is likely to include the closure of The Maples and ending the core funding for the
Osborne Partnership although people may choose to use their personal budgets to purchase this
service.

ACS - Social Care ACS/SAV/10
Care and support in the home focused on people
with doubling up of care staff as a result of high
needs

85 45 - 130
Provision of overhead hoisting equipment and/or slide sheets and a review of safe handling techniques
to reduce two carers to one carer where appropriate to perform safe transfers. This maximises
independence and ensures service delivery is more personalised and responsive.

ACS - Social Care ACS/SAV/11 Review of passenger transport for adults - 400 - 400
At this stage the proposal is to seek agreement in principle.  Cross council work will be needed with
Children's Services, Adult Social Care and Environmental Services to look at costs of alternative
provision (£200k allowed for this in current estimate).  Further detailed work needs to be undertaken.

ACS - Commissioned
Services ACS/SAV/12a Generalist Advice and Hate Crime Incident Reporting

reductions  - 280 - 280

To remove the generalist advice and enhanced  welfare rights advice to residents in the borough by
ceasing the commissioned service as the contract expires on 31st March 2015. The Care Act requires a
review of Information and Advice provision and it may well be that a different range of services needs to
be commissioned. 

ACS - Commissioned
Services ACS/SAV/12f The Foyer Supported Living for 18-24 year olds 275 92 - 367

The Foyer has accommodation for 116 young people who are referred via the Homeless Young People
Panel.  A range of low level interventions are in place via a commissioned service to support daily living
and to help the young people lead positive lives. This contract ends on 3 July 2015.   The proposal is to
cease the contract.  Consideration will have to be given to the requirements of the Care Act around
'prevent, reduce and delay' and therefore the need for resources for early intervention. Children's
Services commission other services in the same building.

ACS - Commissioned
Services ACS/SAV/12i Bevan House supported living for vulnerable families  98 97 - 195

This service is aimed at supporting disadvantaged vulnerable families with housing and other needs to
develop their skills and capacity to maximise their potential to live together as family independently in the
community. It is proposed to cease the commissioned supported living service when the contract ends
on 31 September 2015. Consideration will have to be given to the requirements of the Care Act around
'prevent, reduce and delay' and therefore the need for resources for early intervention.

ACS - Social Care ACS/SAV/15a Integration and Commissioning and Directorate
Support teams 200 - - 200 8.60 Rationalisation and realignment of funding for support staff across the Directorate.

Sub Total Adult Social Care 1,499 1,041 - 2,540 43.47

Community Safety ACS/SAV/17 Reduce range of crime and ASB interventions -
Victim Offender Location Time work  47 - - 47

The proposed saving is £47,300 from a budget of £78,900 (a 60% reduction).  This budget covers a
range of Anti-Social Behaviour interventions with the community, from environmental change through to
mediation and civil court action.  The Team receive over 1000 enquiries a year (336 in the first quarter of
2014) requesting support and action regarding Anti-Social Behaviour.  They addressed these issues and
as a result through the Anti-Social Behaviour Standing Case Conference they deliver home visits (130),
Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (127) Anti-Social Behaviour Orders (26), Injunctions (2), Dispersal
Orders (2), and Anti-Social Behaviour Restraining Orders (3).

Community Safety ACS/SAV/18
Community Safety and IOM work - fund the ASB
Team from a range of funding streams rather than
the GF

75 - - 75

The Team comprises six staff who deal with the continuum of anti-social behaviour intervention from low
level through to civil and criminal court action. The Team receive over 1000 enquiries a year (336 in the
first quarter of 2014) requesting support and action regarding Anti-Social Behaviour.  They addressed
these issues and as a result through the Anti-Social Behaviour Standing Case Conference they deliver
home visits (130), Acceptable Behaviour Contracts (127) Anti-Social Behaviour Orders (26), Injunctions
(2), Dispersal Orders (2), and Anti-Social Behaviour Restraining Orders (3). It is proposed to retain the
team but to fund it through alternative sources including:  Mayors Office for Policing and Crime, Troubled
Families, Serious Youth Violence, Private Licensing Scheme, Registered Social Landlords and Housing
Revenue Account. This removes all General Fund funding for this service

P
age 67



Appendix B - Revised Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings Reference Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total   £000 Comments

Community Safety ACS/SAV/19 Youth Offending Service reduction in Out of Court
work 92 - - 92

The Youth Offending Service is a statutory children’s service delivered through Community Safety and
Offender Management.  The Youth Offending Service deals with young offenders aged 10-18 and those
at risk of offending. The YOS has to deliver any out of court criminal justice disposals for young people
between the ages of 10 and 17.9, in line with the statutory obligation derived from the Crime & Disorder
Act and the LASPO Act. This route is used for approximately 200 young people per year in Barking &
Dagenham and is the only option that offers children and young people who have committed a low level
offence the ability to engage with reparation to the victim, reconnect with their community and not be
given a criminal record.  Where reoffending rates increase offenders are taken through the courts and
have more intensive sentences managed by the Youth Offending Service, these offenders may be
subject to remand. Those offenders remanded are deemed ‘looked after’ and the costs of remand are
met from the Children’s Service budget. Therefore keeping young people out of court and free from
reoffending is key to not increasing the burden on that budget. The loss of income from Havering of
£108k would in effect mean a budget reduction of £200k to the Youth Offending Service.

Sub Total Community Safety 214 - - 214

Libraries ACS/SAV/24 School library service to be full cost recovery and
Home Library Service to be delivered by volunteers. 56 59 - 115

It is proposed to only continue with the Schools Library service for those schools wishing to purchase
the service at full cost from 2015/16. In terms of the Home Library service there are a range of
opportunities to develop alternative delivery models so that housebound people continue to get access
to books.

Libraries ACS/SAV/26 Delete Libraries casual staffing budget and transfer
of centrally controlled costs 35 - - 35

There will be no casual staffing budget to provide cover when staff are absent from work due to
sickness or for some other unforeseen circumstance. This could result in service disruption and
unplanned temporary closures.

Libraries ACS/SAV/27 Valence and Thames View libraries – community
management  - 125 - 125 4.50

Transfer the two remaining branch libraries into community management arrangements with the library
services provided by volunteers.  It will be a major challenge to establish and maintain community
managed library services at additional venues, and will require Member led active community
engagement.  Additional savings of £88k could be realised if these two libraries were closed, however,
this would have a negative impact on disadvantaged wards of the borough.  

Sub Total Libraries 91 184 - 275 4.50
Broadway Theatre &
Community Halls ACS/SAV/29a Broadway Theatre -  transfer to College  200 40 - 240 Cabinet considered a proposal on 8 April 2014 to enter into an arrangement for Barking and Dagenham

College to take over the management of the Theatre which would deliver this saving. 
Broadway Theatre &
Community Halls ACS/SAV/30 Community Halls - community managed or close 52 - - 52 1.00 This proposal would bring the remaining halls in line with the previous asset transfer arrangements.

Sub Total Broadway Theatre & Community Halls 252 40 - 292 1.00

Community Sport ACS/SAV/31 Leisure centres - Management and reception staff 47 150 - 197 9.00 Once Abbey Leisure Centre is established and the new arrangements are embedded, it will be possible
to reduce staffing levels and manage across the two centres.

Sub Total Community Sport 47 150 - 197 9.00

Culture & Sport ACS/SAV/36 Options appraisal for leisure and cultural services 250 750 - 1,000

A high level options appraisal is being undertaken to identify the potential financial and operational
benefits that could be achieved by pursuing an alternative management model to the current ‘in house’
arrangement. Savings could potentially be made in relation to NNDR, treatment of VAT, support
services, staffing costs and increased income.  

Culture & Sport ACS/SAV/39 Active Age Centres income 120 - - 120 Raise income by introducing a charge for the Active Age programme, which currently provides free
access for residents aged 60+ to the leisure centres at certain times of the week.

Sub Total Community Sport 370 750 - 1,120 -
Total for Adults & Community Services 2,473 2,165 - 4,638 57.97

Children's Services Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

School Services CHS/SAV/23 Significant reduction in improvement support for
education 100 - 200 300

Reduce to 1 Secondary Inspector and 1 Primary Advisor. School outcomes not at national levels in all
schools and lower than London. schools have limited support to improve.  Benchmarks show costings
to be below national averages. This will further reduce our capacity to support schools to improve on
educational outcomes.

Sub Total School Improvement Services 100 - 200 300

Childrens Centres CHS/SAV/25a Reduction in support to quality Childcare and early
years provision 200 167 - 367 5.00 First £200,000 achievable, beyond that increasing risk and will impact on improving (but still below

national and London) early years outcomes and our Childcare Sufficiency responsibilities.

Childrens Centres CHS/SAV/26

Children's Centres, part of policy paper re frontline
service delivery (use of libraries, developing hubs
approach etc. and use of assets Closure of a
number of centres

400 400 400 1,200 2.00
First 200,000 achievable as a result of Troubled Families Grant. Further savings will mean closure of all
satellites and possibly 2 main centres.  Significant reduction in targeted family support provision
supporting social care.

Sub Total Childrens Centres, Early Years and Childcare 600 567 400 1,567 7.00

Youth Services CHS/SAV/27 Youth Service - reconfigure to voluntary sector
provision with £100k budget 100 200 - 300 18.70

Significant work on market creating and comms required. Needs to link with YOS and ASB and Troubled
Families. Ending youth service provision will have potential impact for demand for other services. Aim
will be to build alternative provision in community and voluntary sector. We will work to reduce costs
starting immediately. It may not be possible to achieve all savings by March 2016. 

Sub Total Youth Services 100 200 - 300 18.70

P
age 68



Appendix B - Revised Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings Reference Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total   £000 Comments

Children's Social Care CHS/SAV/28b Educational psychology - provision using DSG only 440 - - 440 1.00
Detailed analysis and comparison with others needed about sharing opportunities and income
generation. First £200,000 amber risk, second £240,000, high risk re SEN Tribunals, OFSTED and the
requirement to provide statutory assessment.

Children's Social Care CHS/SAV/34 Reduction in CIN (c20 year 1, c120 year 2, c60 year
3)  due to impact of Troubles Families agenda 50 300 150 500

Troubles Families agenda and reduction in CIN due to impact of the agenda and reduction in 10 SWs
and 1 PM. Risks here due to increasing demand on social care as population grows and changes.
Cashable savings may not be possible even if Troubled Families are turned around because need for
CIN remains due to increased social care pressure.

Children's Social Care CHS/SAV/35 Review children's social care costs to identify areas
for spend reduction.  - 500 1,000 1,500

These are target figures only. Detailed proposals will be developed for further consultation, following a
full review of costs levels in areas such as No Recourse to Public Funds, contact support, court work,
resources for families and SEN transport.

Sub Total Children's Social Care 490 800 1,150 2,440 1.00

Commissioning And
Safeguarding CHS/SAV/29 Access and connect - reduction in rewards available

to young people to incentivise healthy behaviours  50 - - 50
The card scheme is available to all children 5-19 in B&D.  Catering have taken over all costs relating to
Cashless Catering and PH have taken over staffing costs.  GF only currently funds rewards.  If further
cuts required, card may have to be withdrawn .

Commissioning And
Safeguarding CHS/SAV/30 CAMHS - reduce to statutory minimum for year 1 and

then delete service 100 150 - 250 First 100,000 acceptable . No mental health provision at tier 2  is high risk
Commissioning And
Safeguarding CHS/SAV/31 Limited support to LSCB. Reduce CDOP to .5 15 15 Minimum levels are 30 days per year for LSCB (our agreed level).  Already reduced significantly. CDOP

reduction deliverable.
Sub Total Commissioning And Safeguarding 165 150 - 315
Total for Children's Services 1,455 1,717 1,750 4,922 26.70

Chief Executive Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18
Regeneration CEX/SAV/03 Stop all business support activity e.g. business

enterprise centre (move to no cost from 2015-16) 224 - - 224 1.00
No funding will be available to support the Barking Enterprise Centre or any other externally provided
business support activity unless officers obtain grant funding from the Greater London Authority/Local
Enterprise Partnership. Business relationship manager post deleted in 2015/16

Sub Total Regeneration 224 - - 224 1.00

Legal & Democratic
Services CEX/SAV/09

Reduce democratic services structure dependant on
moving towards a shared service and reducing the
number and frequency of statutory meetings

47 - - 47 4.00 Total savings to be achieved through the review of current structures and removal of vacant Posts. 

Legal & Democratic
Services CEX/SAV/12a

Member training stopped with exception of the
training required for members to serve and operate
on the quasi-judicial meetings

55 - - 55 1.00 Use of alternative budgets/funding to achieve the saving allowing for the retention of the post as a shared
role in the Service with a reduced member training and development capacity

Sub Total Legal & Democratic Services 102 - - 102 5.00
Finance - CSC&BI CEX/SAV/50 Taxicard Scheme 160 - - 160 Reduction in eligibility criteria and/or number of funded journeys
Finance - CSC&BI CEX/SAV/51 School uniform grants - 64 - 64 Removal of general fund funding for existing scheme
Finance - Central
Services CEX/SAV/52a Reduce council tax exemptions 200 200 Remove Council Tax exemptions for second homes, properties undergoing repair and unoccupied and

unfurnished properties.
Finance - Central
Services CEX/SAV/52b Amend council tax support scheme 700 700 Reduce the level of Council Tax Support offered by the Council from 85% to 75%.

Finance - Central
Services CEX/SAV/53 Business rate relief - 50 - 50 Reduction in eligibility criteria - requires twelve months notice

Finance - Asset Mgt CEX/SAV/45a Review of corporate accommodation strategy - 600 - 600 Reduction in the number of major buildings used by the Council.  Savings will be across Facilities
Management, running costs etc. 

Finance  CEX/SAV/30a Shared accountancy service 500 - - 500 10.00 Reorganisation of Accountancy and Treasury Management teams
Finance - Central
Services CEX/SAV/29 Investment income - increase risk appetite 250 - - 250 - Would mean lowering counterparty quality increasing default risk.  Credit spreads currently very low

meaning only limited financial reward for an increase in risk.
Sub Total Finance 1,810 714 - 2,524 10.00

Human Resources CEX/SAV/22 Stop Employee Relations team 47 - 153 200 5.00

There are alternative ways of delivering ER, but the function itself cannot stop. We could move to more
of a self-service model, backed up by  telephone only support. We have a vacancy and would offer that
as a saving immediately. The on-going service could be through contract, or by retaining a number of
staff to provide the telephone support.

Human Resources CEX/SAV/23 Reduce Spend on Trade Union representatives - - - - -
40% reduction in budget for Trade Unions. Will require a renegotiation of our current recognition
agreement with the Trade Unions. Deferred to 2017/18 in recognition of the support the Trade Unions
will need to give to the change process.

Human Resources CEX/SAV/22a Reduce the size of the HR Business Partner Team 60 60 1.00 Reduction of posts
Sub Total Human Resources 107 - 153 260 6.00

Elevate CEX/SAV/55 Elevate Overheads 488 - - 488

Reduced Elevate management cost and capacity, enabled by reduced reporting with fewer performance
indicators and lower governance requirements including quarterly board meetings as well as a move
away from a target cost model into a fixed price model for the Elevate contract.
As part of the changes, Agilisys will expect the extension of the contract from 2017 to 2020 and the
amendment of existing break clauses.

P
age 69



Appendix B - Revised Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings Reference Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total   £000 Comments

Elevate CEX/SAV/56 B&Ddirect - Customer Services Channel Shift 64 324 387 775 38.00

Shift demand to automated and much lower cost channels:
Reduce one stop shops and contact centre capacity via:
a. Promote My Account as the free, easy and primary transaction/contact channel.
b. Consolidate the one stop shops to achieve economies of scale and plan to replace them with service
delivery through community hubs.
c. Create incentive structures to reduce traffic on the assisted service routes.
d. Increase functionality of My Account and Interactive Voice Response systems. Will require one off
investment of £670k.

Elevate CEX/SAV/58 Withdrawal of the Benefits Direct service at One
Stop Shops.   259 - - 259 9.00

Removal of the enhanced Benefits Direct service to only leave only back office benefits processing.
Removing benefit claim processing in this way will mean assessment and processing for housing
benefit and council tax support will be done in the “back office” as an end to end process there.

Elevate CEX/SAV/60 Automation of Inbound Email/Post Processing 270 - - 270 11.00

Introduction of Agilisys Automate to manage a high proportion of the 175,000 incoming emails and letters
per annum to Revenues & Benefits. This can be significantly reduced by policy changes around
accepting information form customers and restructuring the communication channels to encourage the
use of MyAccount. This in turn will reduce the number of staff required to handle post and emails.
Requires one off investment of £445k.

Elevate CEX/SAV/63a ICT End User Technologies 135 - 74 241 302 5.00

This is one of three ICT Savings Proposals that constitute an overall transformation of the ICT Service
provided to LBBD.

The proposed saving will provide a single, flexible working IT Service that will reduce the complexity of
the service. Some services, such as Email, Office applications and File Storage will be moved into the
Cloud. This will enable a reduction in local data centre resources and a corresponding reduction in the
support overhead.

The Council telephone system will be decommissioned, moving staff onto mobile telephones (with the
exception of the Contact Centre), and the corporate network will be restructured to provide only Wireless
Internet access throughout Council offices.

In addition, this solution recommends that a Council policy decision is taken to reduce Off the Shelf
applications by 30% to achieve third party and support cost reductions.
Requires one off investment of £377k.

Elevate CEX/SAV/63b ICT Service Management fulfilment 41 304 345 10.00

Building on proposal 63a above:
Replacement of current full IT support service with predominant reliance of self support and resolution of
problems.
• Self Service portal and Knowledge Base provided to enable users to self-rectify incidents and requests

• Service Desk becomes an escalation point for severe system outages only
• Centralised workshop with devices couriered to and from the end user.  Estimated set up costs of
£770k.

Elevate CEX/SAV/63c ICT Infrastructure Applications 254 170 36 459

Building on 63a and 63b above:
Shift existing local infrastructure to Cloud solution
• Decommissioning of the Dagenham Data Centre and migration to a Cloud Based Infrastructure as a
Service solution
• Migration of some Line of Business applications to hosted models.  Estimated set up costs of £1.1m.

Sub Total Elevate 1,511 724 663 2,898 73.00
Total for Chief Executive 3,754 1,438 816 6,008 95.00

H&E Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

Environmental
Services ES001 Loss of proactive drainage clearance 80 - - 80 2.00

Reduce the Highways DLO by one crew of 2 staff.  The consequence will be that there will be no
proactive cleansing programme to highways gullies.  Gullies on the highway will only be cleared on a
reactive basis, by complaint or where a highways inspector requests it. Any staffing changes will be
subject to formal consultation and normal HR policies will be followed. Risk to resilience of service and
responding to flash floods.

Proposal should reflect core service delivery across the borough, regardless of funding stream (e.g.,
HRA) otherwise danger of double standards. This would result in a saving to the HRA, however, it would
be possibly for tenants, leaseholder, other community groups to fund additional services. 

Environmental
Services ES002 Changes to winter maintenance of highway network 35 - - 35 -

Saving relates to the current service delivered through the Highways DLO and will be achieved by
reducing level of work carried out, overtime & standby payments to staff and the coverage of the
borough.
The work affected will only be the salting and gritting of carriageways when temperatures fall below zero
and result will be ice, frost, snow etc which may affect vehicles adherence to the road surface.

P
age 70



Appendix B - Revised Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings Reference Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total   £000 Comments

Environmental
Services ES004 Removal or self funding for School Crossing Patrols

from 23 primary school locations across the borough - 82 83 165 6.76

Each patrol will either be deleted or made self funding by sponsorship. The responsibility for any child's
safety on the way to and returning from school is that of the parents or carer. Risk of increased
accidents and increased use of car journeys to school. School travel plans to include measures to
mitigate risk. Site audits to be carried on  each location.

Expected to be introduced at the start of the academic year in 2015/16. Mitigated through school travel
plans, sponsorship from schools, PTA's etc.

Environmental
Services ES006 To increase zones and the sale of permits in line with

the Parking Strategy - 125 125 250 -

Consolidation of existing zones to create comprehensive clearly defined geographical areas. Areas will
be all those with identified parking pressures, such as around shopping areas, transport hubs, car free
developments. All parking around secondary shopping areas location will be through cashless and
paperless permitting.

Programming of works, consultation and implementation in 2015/16 for saving from 2016/17. Risk of
resistance from residents and businesses.

Environmental
Services ES007 Increase Parking Charges for all parking locations 190 - - 190 -

Increase all charges by minimum of 50% for permits and pay and display excluding staff permits.
Subsidised staff parking to be re-considered. Risk of petitions and resistance from business, residents
and staff. Visitor vouchers to increase only by RPI as most sensitive permit based upon complaints.
For example if raised by 50% a resident’s permit will increase from an average cost of £43.94 to £65.91
per annum (based on current sales)

Environmental
Services ES009A Streamlining Building Cleaning 49 - - 49 3.00

Reducing costs through a review of cleaning regimes and cover arrangements to corporate buildings
reflecting shared spaces and modern ways of working. Any staffing changes will be subject to formal
consultation and normal HR policies will apply. Risk to reduced standards of cleanliness, hygiene and
housekeeping. 

Environmental
Services ES010B Prestart payment to drivers 52 17 - 69 -

Prestart payments are made to all drivers of vehicles over 3.5t, or that drive other specialist vehicles.
The payment has been traditionally paid to drivers to allow them to fully check the safety of their vehicles
in advance of starting their shift.   Payments are contractual overtime for most drivers but some drivers
will claim as and when they are required to drive affected vehicles.  Prestart pays for one half hour
overtime per shift.
.    
The Council has invested significantly in modern and reliable vehicles for its services.  Whilst these still
require safety checks, in many cases the period traditionally allowed far exceeds what is actually
required.  The saving will still require full safety checks to be undertaken, but provided that this can be
built into a drivers normal shift period.

Any staffing changes will be subject to formal consultation and normal HR policies will be followed.

Environmental
Services ES012 Cease green garden waste collection  110 110 - 220 -

This service collects green garden waste 10 months of the year.  There are two additional collections
made over January and February.  This is not a statutory service.

Option 1
To cease this service and recall the entire green 240 litre bins. Residents will be encouraged to compost
their green garden waste or to bring this to the council’s Re-use and Recycling Centres. Any remaining
green waste will enter the residual waste collection stream through grey bins, which would have an
impact on The Waste England and Wales Regulations 2011 (amended 2012).

Option 2
This proposal also includes alternative option to charge for green garden waste collections based upon
full cost recovery and benchmarking with other local authorities.

Risk of increased fly-tipping, reduced recycling, increased traffic at Frizlands Reuse and Recycling
Centre. Impact on disabled and elderly, particularly the assisted collection scheme.

Environmental
Services ES015 Redesign of street cleansing operations 243 40 - 283 10.00

The service will be re-designed to facilitate more modern methods of working.  This will realise staff
savings of £110k (4 FTEs) and transport savings of £235k.

By increasing the use of mechanical sweepers we will be able to reduce the number of  barrow beats
cleaning areas from 25 to 14 and increasing mechanical sweeping of roads in the evenings which will
give greater sweeping coverage of the borough.

We will also extend double shifting of vehicles and extend the working day so that cleansing operation
can cover the beginning and end of the day.

Any staffing changes will be subject to formal consultation and normal HR policies will be followed.

P
age 71



Appendix B - Revised Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings Reference Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total   £000 Comments

Environmental
Services ES018

Achieve revenue budget savings by transferring the
Councils current repair and maintenance
responsibilities for allotments to the Allotment Society

- 17 - 17 4.00

There are 17 allotment sites across the borough and leases exist with 10 allotment societies for the
management of these facilities. In accordance with the current leases the Council as the Landlord is
responsible for: fencing, water supplies, main site roads and trading huts and buildings that are the
property of the Council. The proposal is to pass these costs on to the Allotment Societies.

The proposal requires the termination of the current allotment leases and the issue of new leases to the
Allotment Societies on a fully repairing basis.

Environmental
Services ES022 Marketing in the public realm 70 - - 70 -

We will establish new locations for the sale of advertising space.  This will include street furniture and
within park spaces.   This saving is subject to agreement on advertising protocols that ensures
advertising is appropriate to the location and the Council's own priorities.  In some locations installations
will be subject to planning restrictions.

Sub Total Environmental Services 829 391 208 1,428 25.76

GF Housing HGF001
Expand Council hostel portfolio to accommodate
temporary placements instead of using expensive
B&B accommodation. 

900 600 - 1,500

Increasing the number of Council owned hostel units as part of the Temporary Accommodation portfolio
will result in an increase in income and reduction in expenditure. As the units are Council owned,
placement costs are expected to be lower than externally provided accommodation with rental income
retained by the authority. A significant benefit would be the reduced use of Bed and Breakfast which is
an expensive option. The provision of 100 new hostel units across a range of possible sites will allow a
reduction in the number Bed and Breakfast placements, subject to the level of demand not increasing
above current levels and the continued availability of PSL accommodation. The saving is also subject to
there being no further changes to benefit regulation for homeless households. Savings profile based
upon when potential units could become available. 

Sub Total Housing General Fund Total Housing General Fund Saving 900 600 - 1,500 -
Total Housing & Environment 1,729 991 208 2,928 25.76

Grand Total 9,411 6,311 2,774 18,496 205.43

P
age 72



Appendix C - Additional Savings Proposals for Cabinet Approval
Service Savings

Reference
Savings proposal 2015/16

£000
2016/17

£000
2017/18

£000
Total
£000

Estimated
reduction on

FTE

Comments

Children's Services Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18
Commissioning And Safeguarding CHS/SAV/37 Reduce GF contribution to Information & Statistics

team 30 30 The service is income generating and has increased its school SLA income sufficiently to directly fund
another post, thereby releasing £30K from its general fund budget

Total Children's Services 30 - - 30 -

Chief Executive Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

Regeneration CEX/SAV/08b Capital Commissioning & Delivery Group 140 - - 140

There is a commission payable to the Authority if another public body uses one of our Framework
contacts for the delivery of capital project. Although there is an income budget that relates to this
income, there has been an over recovery of £50k per year in recent years and this trend is likely to
continue.

The project  teams within the section currently allocate their time between revenue activities, such as
feasibility studies, and the delivery of projects which is charged, for the most part, to the capital
programme.

Recent activity studies have shown that a higher proportion of staff time is actually spent on project
delivery rather than revenue activities and the resulting change in charging will produce a general fund
saving of £90k.

Strategy CEX/SAV/15a Further remodelling of marketing and comms 50 - - 50 Make a further of £50k in addition to the £250k already agreed at Cabinet on the 7th October for
CEX/SAV/15 

Strategy CEX/SAV/14a Centralisation and top slicing of marketing and
publicity budgets across the Council 100 - - 100 A further saving of £100k in addition to the £300k already agreed at Cabinet on 7th October for

CEX/SAV/14 

Sub Total Regeneration 290 - - 290 -

Human Resources CEX/SAV/23a
Additional savings to be delivered through centralising
training and development budgets to improve
efficiency of use 

175 - - 175 -

This is set out in detail in CEX – SAV18. This proposal increases the level of saving from 35% to 50% of
the centralised budget. This will impact on the level of learning and development activity that we can
support. We will need to be better at prioritising and planning and there will be a greater reliance on E-
Learning to ensure we meet needs at lower cost.

We will also explore the extent to which we can do more in partnership with other Councils and
organisations, as a way to achieve more with the resources that we do have available.

Human Resources CEX/SAV/23b Reduction in Business Change team staff 22 - - 22 1.00
The intention is to delete the role and require the Business Partners to take responsibility for job
evaluations in their own areas of responsibility and to manage the job description database and data
library around job evaluation.

Sub Total Human Resources 197 - - 197 1.00

Finance CEX/SAV/54b Energy and utility efficiencies - 60 - 60 1.00 Refocus role towards energy development and look to widening of role to drive out greater efficiencies
on all utilities costs.

Finance CEX/SAV/54c Reduction in Council Tax bad debt provision 100 - - 100 - Relies on improved debt collection performance by Elevate in addition to existing savings proposals

Finance CEX/SAV/54d Reduction in Temporary Accommodation bad debt
provision 250 - - 250 - Relies on housing managing homelessness levels

Finance CEX/SAV/54f Pay Pension Fund contributions on 1 April instead of
monthly 60 60 - 120 - Essentially early payment discount.  Pension Fund can achieve a higher return so paying earlier reduces

the increased employer contribution.

Finance CEX/SAV/54g Increase saving from centralisation of FoI/Complaints 110 - - 110 - Increase on existing saving.  Need to work on new service/structure but would depend on single Council
process including Member enquiries.

CEX/SAV/79 Corporate Procurement Saving 500 500 Additional saving from existing procurement arrangements, achieved through realisation of higher
benefits through negotiated contract arrangements e.g. Adecco

Sub Total Finance 1,020 120 - 1,140 1.00
Total Chief Executive 1,507 120 - 1,627 2.00

Grand Total 1,537 120 - 1,657 2.00

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D – Additional Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings
Reference

Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total
£000

Estimated
reduction
on FTE

Comments

Adult & Communcity Services Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18
Libraries ACS/SAV/23a Reduce book fund 10 - - 10  Reduction of budget for purchasing of new library books
Total Adult & Community Services 10 - - 10 -

Children's Services Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

Commissioning And Safeguarding CHS/SAV/36 This proposal is to reduce funding to the Early Help
Service - 120 - 120 3.00

1. Reduce the scope of integrated early help through the central team.
2. Reduce the evaluation and quality assurance framework by ¾ .
3. Reduce team establishment from 5 fte by 3 fte posts, down to 2

Total Children's Services - 120 - 120 3.00

Chief Executive Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

Regeneration CEX/SAV/7b Reduction of costs in  Sustainable Communities area 200 (50) (30) 120 1.00

Staff costs will be funded to a larger degree from the budgets allocated to the capital projects they
deliver. There is also a possibility of staff costs being charged to future externally funded projects.

This saving is to be considered along side CEX/SAV/07. The proposal is now for a total saving of £220k
all to be delivered in 2015/16. CEX/SAV/07 currently includes £50k saving in 2016/17 and a further £30k
saving in 2017/18. These two amounts should now be ignored as these savings will be achieved in
2015/16.

Regeneration CEX/SAV/08a Recharge to the HRA in respect of supporting
Housing Tenants into permanent employment. 200 - - 200

With effect from the 2013/14 financial year, the Employment and Skills Team targeted job seeking
Housing Tenants as a priority group with a view to supporting them into permanent employment. This
initiative has been beneficial to the Authority in terms of rent recovery and Housing has made payments
to the Employment & Skills Team based on the quantity of successful outcomes. It is proposed to
formalise these arrangements by creating an annual recharge to the HRA in respect of this activity. 

Regeneration CEX/SAV/04a Reduction of staff in Development Planning area - 42 - 42 1.50 Reduce 1 admin post in Development Planning and reduce 0.5 post in Strategic Transport.
Sub Total Regeneration 400 (8) (30) 362 2.50

Human Resources CEX/SAV/72 Freeze increments - 500 (500) - - Agree to not pay staff increments where due in 2016/17 but to recommence payment of increments
from April 2017

Human Resources CEX/SAV/73 Reduce redundancy multiplier - 667 - 667 - Removal of 1.5 multiplier for the Council's redundancy scheme
Sub Total Human Resources - 1,167 (500) 667 -
Chief Executive CEX/SAV/77 Business Support review 60 90 - 150 5.00 Review of business support tasks across the Council

Chief Executive CEX/SAV/78 Reduction in middle management 300 300 - 600 15.00

The Council is introducing a number of new ways of working as well as reducing the scale of its
operations . This will provide opportunities to manage services in different ways and automate some
management tasks.  It is therefore  proposed to review the management arrangements currently in
place  and reduce the number of these  posts

Sub Total Chief Executive 360 390 - 750 20.00
Finance CEX/SAV/54e Increase duration risk on external investments 100 - - 100 - Reviewing the proportion of investments placed out longer term to increase potential return.

Finance CEX/SAV/54a Additional recharge to the HRA - Innovation &
Funding 25 - - 25 - Already 50% charged to the HRA and the role has wider scope now with Property, Asset Strategy 

Sub Total Finance 125 - - 125 -
Total Chief Executive 885 1,549 (530) 1,904 22.50

H&E Savings Ideas 2015/16 to 2017/18

Environmental Services ES025 Domestic bins rental 17 - - 17 -

The proposal is to seek full cost recovery from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for all bins supplied
for the storage of domestic waste on flatted estates.

The current recharge is based on a bin count of 2,823.  In 2014 the bin count is 3,126 domestic bins on
housing estates. The additional recharge to the HRA represents the net effect of increased bins and
adopting fairer charging by basing the charge per bin on 2015/16 proposed fees & charges price of £125
hire charge per bin.

Environmental Services ES026 Recycling bins rental – Recharge to HRA 135 - - 135 -

The proposal is to seek full cost recovery from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for all bins supplied
for the storage of recycled waste.

There are currently 1,076 recycling bins on LBBD housing estates for which no rental fee is currently
charged. Charge per bin based on 2015/16 proposed fees & charges price of £125 hire charge per bin.

P
age 75



Appendix D – Additional Consulted Savings Proposals

Service Savings
Reference

Savings proposal 2015/16
£000

2016/17
£000

2017/18
£000

Total
£000

Estimated
reduction
on FTE

Comments

Environmental Services ES027 Housing bulky waste disposal - Withdrawn (See
below) 182 - - 182 -

It is proposed that a charge for disposal of waste should apply to bulk waste collected at flatted estates.
This change will ensure that we are consistent with charging for other residents and other Housing
estate bulk waste generated in the ELWA region

Based on previous activity and trends it is predicted that the cost of bulk waste disposal would be £182k
per year as from 2015/16 (based on the expected rate of £151/tonne).  Final charges are dependent on
actual volumes, but any changes would also be reflected in the charges made by ELWA.

Parking ES030 Parking review opportunity - 450 - 450 - Opportunities from review of on line permits, channel shift, more effective debt collection and borough
wide charging.

Environmental Services EH001
Food Safety Team Funding - Transfer of funding
liability from General Fund to Public Health Grant 100 100 2.20 This proposal is to part fund the work of the food team from the Public Health Grant, to the extent that

this work furthers both the aims of the Council and public health imperatives.

Sub Total Environmental Services 434 450 - 884 2.20

GF Housing HGF003 Housing Strategy 31 31 Saving identified following review of supplies budgets and expenditure levels on consultants, contracts,
books and public transport.

GF Housing HGF002 Housing Advice & Temporary Accommodation 74 - 74 Increase Boundary Road Hostel charges to LHA rate in line with other hostel charges. Introduce weekly
service charge to cover communal services such as cleaning

Sub Total Housing General Fund 105 - - 105 -
Total Housing & Environment 539 450 - 989 2.20

Grand Total 1,434 2,119 (530) 3,023 27.70

Amendments Post PAACS Scrutiny

Environmental Services ES027 Housing bulky waste disposal (182) 0 0 (182) 0

It is proposed that a charge for disposal of waste should apply to bulk waste collected at flatted estates.
This change will ensure that we are consistent with charging for other residents and other Housing
estate bulk waste generated in the ELWA region

Based on previous activity and trends it is predicted that the cost of bulk waste disposal would be £182k
per year as from 2015/16 (based on the expected rate of £151/tonne).  Final charges are dependent on
actual volumes, but any changes would also be reflected in the charges made by ELWA.

Revised Additional Savings Proposals - Grand Total 1,252 2,119 (530) 2,841 28

P
age 76



Appendix E 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE

17 NOVEMBER 2014

Budget savings discussion record sheet for reporting to Cabinet

Proposal

Support

Support w
ith 

recom
m

endations for 
adjustm

ents (see 
com

m
ents)

D
o not support (see 

com
m

ents for reasons)

Comments

CHS/SAV/27 Youth 
Service – close 

Council run Youth 
Provision and
reconfigure to 

voluntary sector 
provision only

The Committee did not support the proposal and expressed concern that the 
reduction in the Service to a bear minimum would lead to the Council potentially 
falling foul of its statutory duties to:

 secure access to sufficient youth services and activities, as well as
 take steps to ascertain the views of young people and take them into 

account in making decisions about services for them.
This would be exacerbated by the lack of expertise within the Voluntary Sector to 
provide alternative services that would be adequate to meet the needs of young 
people.

CHS/SAV/28b 
Significant reduction in 

Educational 
psychology provision

Budget saving supported

P
age 77



CHS/SAV/35 - Review 
children's social care 
costs to identify areas 

for spend reduction

The Committee was not able to support this proposal due to a lack of detail as to 
how the savings would be achieved and the particular impact of the proposals on 
the different service users groups.

CHS/SAV/26 Closure 
of Children's Centres – 

all satellites and 
possibly main

centres

The Committee were not in support of this proposal as it included the closure of 
nine children’s centres, albeit the closures would not take place in 2015/16. This 
will make it likely that the centres would lose their ‘outstanding’ Ofsted status, the 
proposal did not clearly specify what alternative sources of funding could be 
utilised to support or continue services currently offered at the centres.

CHS/SAV/25a 
Reduction in support 
to quality Childcare 

and early year’s
provision

The Committee agreed to support the proposal on the basis that the loss of four 
currently vacant apprentice level posts in the service will be compensated through 
additional child care apprenticeship places

CHS/SAV/34 
Reduction in Children 
in Need worked with in 

Social Care
Budget saving supported

P
age 78



CHS/SAV/30 CAMHS 
- reduce to statutory 
minimum for year 1 

and then
delete service

Whilst the Committee supported the saving proposal relating to 2015/16, insofar as 
reducing the service by 50% and notwithstanding that officers will seek to secure 
other funding, it could not support the proposal in its entirety namely that the 
service be stopped completely by 2016/17

CHS/SAV/32 
Reductions in Short 
breaks for Disabled 
Children and their

Families

The Committee expressed concern that the risk of family breakdown, and in turn, 
additional pressure on Social Care services, would be high should this proposal be 
implemented.

CHS/SAV/23 
Significant reduction in 
improvement support 

for education

Budget saving supported

CEX/SAV/51 Removal 
of general fund 

funding for school 
uniform grants

The Committee recommended that this proposal be deferred for one year so that 
discussions could be had with schools around whether this provision can be legally 
funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant.

CHS/SAV/29
Access and Connect - 
reduction in rewards 
available to young

people to incentivise 
healthy behaviours

The Committee recommended that the saving proposal be reduced by £10K to 
fund a level of incentivised rewards for young people.

P
age 79



CHS/SAV/31
Limited support to 

LSCB. Reduce CDOP 
to 0.5

Budget saving supported

CHS/SAV/24
Adult College - explore 

closure, social 
enterprise and other

delivery options

The Committee expressed concern that the proposed saving of £600K planned for 
2017/18  would only be realised if by closing the College central support costs 
actually reduced by the same amount.

In noting it was not planned to make the budget saving next year the Committee 
asked that a further report be presented on the breakdown of the £600K 
contribution from the Council in central support charges for back office functions 
before the proposal is implemented in 2017/18.

P
age 80



Appendix F
HEALTH & ADULT SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE

19 NOVEMBER 2014

Budget savings discussion record sheet for reporting to Cabinet

Proposal 

Support

Support w
ith 

recom
m

endations for 
adjustm

ents (see 
com

m
ents)

D
o not support (see 

com
m

ents for reasons)

Comments

ACS SAV01 – Adult 
Social Care Workforce Budget saving supported

ACS SAV06a – 
Personalising 
Learning Disability 
Services

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV10 – 
Double-handed calls 
for personal care in 
the home

Budget saving supported

P
age 81



ACS SAV09 – 
Independent Living 
Fund

The Committee felt unable to support the proposal seeing the potential negative 
impact it would have on current ILF recipients’ independence and wellbeing given their 
high level of need(s). 

ACS SAV 11 – 
Passenger transport

The Committee felt unable to support this proposal planned to be implemented in 
2016/17 due to the lack of detail around how the proposed saving of £400K would be 
achieved. However, members agreed with the Cabinet Member’s proposal to 
undertake a review of the Service to establish whether efficiencies could be made by, 
for example, turning the Service into a cross borough one. 

CEX SAV50 – 
Taxicard Scheme

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV 12f – 
Commissioning 
Supported Living 
provision: The Foyer

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV 12g – 
Commissioning 
Supported Living 
provision: The 
Vineries

The Committee felt unable to support this proposal, noting that this Service was for 
young people who were likely to be from very difficult backgrounds. They expressed 
concern that should the supported element of the accommodation be removed, it 
would have negative effects on young people’s wellbeing with the risk that support 
would need to be provided from other Council services leading more expenditure, 
which would defeat the objective of the proposal.

P
age 82



ACS SAV 12i – 
Commissioning 
Supported Living 
provision: Bevan 
House

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV 12a – 
Generalist Advice and 
Hate Crime reporting 
contract

The Committee felt unable to support this proposal on the basis that the advice 
services covered by it were all the more necessary at a time of substantial welfare 
reform. Furthermore, in light of statistics showing that a high level of the Borough’s 
residents were in debt, unemployed or in receipt of housing benefit, Members felt that 
this proposal would impact upon the Borough’s residents particularly badly. They also 
noted that should another savings proposal (falling under the Public Accounts and 
Audit Select Committee) to reduce the number of benefits officers providing ‘face to 
face’ advice be implemented, this would exacerbate the situation. 

ACS SAV39 – 
Introduction of a 
charge for the Active 
Age Programme

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV 15a – ACS 
administrative and 
commissioning posts

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV08 – Mental 
Health services

Budget saving supported

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G
LIVING AND WORKING SELECT COMMITTEE

11 November 2014

Budget savings discussion record sheet for reporting to Cabinet

Proposal 

Support

Support w
ith 

recom
m

endations for 
adjustm

ents (see 
com

m
ents)

D
o not support (see 

com
m

ents for reasons)

Comments

CEX/SAV/03 
Removal of Business 
Support Funding 

The Committee supported the proposal with a recommendation that the Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration report back to the Select Committee on alternative 
proposals (including phasing the removal of funding) and including £25K New 
Homes funding to support the BEC as proposed.

HGF001 
Housing Strategy – 
Temporary 
Accommodation

The Committee whilst agreeing in principle with the proposal, did request that 
details of the proposed hostel locations be reported to the Committee before a final 
decision is taken by the Cabinet.

P
age 85



ES010A 
Restructuring of Direct 
Services

The Committee could not support the budget saving proposal in its current form 
particularly its direct affect on front line workers. However in recognising that there 
may be scope to make savings in this area the Lead Member with the support of the 
Committee agreed there would be merit in referring this matter to a working group of 
the select committee to put forward constructive suggestions to Cabinet

Budget saving not supported

ES010B 
Loss of prestart 
payment to drivers

The Committee raised concerns that health and safety could be compromised if 
insufficient time was available for safety checks to take place.  There were also 
concerns that the saving may not be realistic as additional staff going out with the 
vehicle would be waiting for the driver to undertake the safety checks.

Budget saving not supported

ES012 
Cease free green 
garden waste 
collections

The Committee in not supporting either option did suggest that officers look at 
scaling back the level of service and thereby reducing the costs by restricting the 
number of months it operates.

Budget saving not supported

ES015 
Redesign of street 
cleansing operations

The Committee were concerned with the details of the proposal, in particular street 
cleansing in the evenings when roads are full of parked cars making it impractical to 
clean, especially with a mechanical street cleaner.  There were also concerns  that 
the mechanical vehicles could not cover all areas that were currently covered by the 
‘barrow beats’ and that it was important to strike the right balance between the 
different forms of sweeping seeing the importance the public place upon the service 

Budget saving not supported

P
age 86



ES001 
Loss of proactive 
drainage clearance

The Committee expressed grave concerns over the proposal and the potential for 
flash flooding in the Borough if the gullies became blocked.  With an increase in 
property building, the Committee were concerned that drainage levels were not 
adequate which could result in claims against the Council.

There were also concerns raised with regard to any potential detrimental effect on 
other statutory undertakers. Despite the assurances given the Committee did not 
support the proposal.

Budget saving not supported

ES002 
Changes to winter 
maintenance on the 
highway network

The Committee took into account the current process of staff being on stand-by and 
considered that savings could be made in the service potentially in different ways 
and therefore on that basis,

Budget saving not supported

ES007 
Increased Parking 
Charges

The Committee supported the proposal on the basis that the first 30 minutes of 
parking are free and 1 – 2 hours parking charge be increased to £1.  The 
Committee also requested the season ticket charge be reconsidered and reduced.

Budget saving supported

ES006 
To consolidate and 
extend availability of 
permits in line with a 
new parking strategy

Budget saving supported

P
age 87



ES022
Marketing in the public 
realm

The Committee in supporting the proposal requested the Council take a more 
proactive stance on ensuring advertising was up to date and removing flyposting 
within the Borough.

Budget saving supported

ES018 Transfer of 
repair and 
maintenance costs to 
Allotment Societies

The Committee considered the rent could be increased by £27 which would cover 
the £17,000 costs and provide additional funding for the development of allotment 
sites in the Borough.

Budget saving supported

P
age 88



Appendix H
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS & AUDIT SELECT COMMITTEE

29 October 2014

Budget savings discussion record sheet for reporting to Cabinet

Proposal

Support

Support w
ith 

recom
m

endations for 
adjustm

ents (see 
com

m
ents)

D
o not support (see 

com
m

ents for 
reasons)

Comments

Reduce Council 
Tax exemptions 
(CEX/SAV/52a)

The Committee raised concerns regarding the collection of Council Tax on unoccupied properties 
and a potential impact on the HRA in relation to properties where the Council is the landlord.  

It was suggested that unoccupied properties that remain unoccupied for more than a year 
which currently receive a 50% premium, i.e. pay 150% of the Council Tax due, be increased 
to 200%. 

Amend the 
Council Tax 
support 
Scheme 
(CEX/SAV/52b)

The Committee raised concerns over potential changes to the backdating of benefit claims and 
how the Council compared to other Boroughs in London.  There were also serious concerns 
raised about the ongoing effects of the “bedroom tax” and that coupled with the proposed changes 
to the Council Tax Support Scheme, there was a real danger that sections of the community 
would be forced into increasingly unmanageable levels of debt.  

Having received assurances from the Cabinet Member for Finance about providing support for 
those families in greatest need

The Committee supported the savings proposal on the understanding the consultation with 
affected residents (as set out in the report) would take place and requested figures of those 
residents who would be affected by both the “bedroom tax” and the revised Council Tax 
support proposals are provided. 

P
age 89



Review of the 
corporate 
accommodation 
strategy 
(CEX/SAV/45a)

The Committee whilst accepting the need to rationalise council accommodation noted that the 
projected savings for each of the major buildings were not substantially different and therefore 
based on the arguments of history, maintaining the democratic process and for the unity of the 
borough the suggestion was that Roycraft House should be closed, with a sustainable plan for the 
future of the building put in place
The Committee also suggested that other properties currently utilised by the Council within the 
Borough could be reduced.

In response to the points raised by the Committee, the Cabinet Member for Finance advised that 
other properties used by the Council were already being considered as part of other budget saving 
proposals.  With regard to the major buildings, efficiency savings were currently being worked out 
for each premises.  

The Committee supported the proposal and recommends the closure of Roycraft House, 
with a sustainable plan for the future of the building put in place.  

Elevate 
overheads 
(CEX/SAV/55)

The Committee raised concerns in relation to changes such as the extension of the contract to 
2020 and the removal of the 40 day break clause.  The Committee were also concerned that the 
Council may lose its current level of control in Elevate if the proposals were to go ahead. The 
Cabinet Member for Finance advised that negotiations were still taking place and no change in 
control would take place.

The Committee supported the proposal on the understanding more scrutiny would take 
place on the extended contract before it was agreed.

Withdrawal of 
the Benefits 
Direct Services 
at One Stop 
Shops 
(CEX/SAV/58)

The Committee raised concerns regarding access for vulnerable residents, in particular the elderly 
and those with disabilities.  The Committee were aware there could potentially be further major 
changes to the benefits system following the General Election in 2015 and in those 
circumstances: 

The Committee supported the proposal in principle but are recommending that  
implementation should be deferred for up to four months to await the outcome of the  
General Election in May 2015.

P
age 90



B&D Direct – 
Customer 
Services 
Channel Shift 
(CEX/SAV/56)

Budget saving supported

Automation of 
inbound 
email/post 
processing 
(CEX/SAV/60)

The Committee supported the proposal and requested that a rigorous examination of the 
figures provided be undertaken of this and the other budget proposals involving Elevate.

Charging for 
discretionary 
face to face 
contact services 
(CEX/SAV/71)

Not supported on the basis of the disproportionate impact of the budget saving on the 
more vulnerable sections of the community

Introduction of 
premium rate 
number to the 
Contact Centre 
for discretionary 
service calls 
(CEX/SAV/57)

Not supported on the basis of the disproportionate impact of the budget saving on the 
more vulnerable sections of the community

Relocation of 
Barking Contact 
Centre to a 
lower cost area 
(CEX/SAV/59)

The Committee were concerned that there would be a significant number of redundancies brought 
about by the proposals meaning the loss of local jobs with no guarantee of the new jobs paying 
the London living wage which this Council was committed to. On that basis:

Budget saving not supported

P
age 91



ICT 
Technologies, 
service 
management 
and 
infrastructure 
(CEX/SAV/63a, 
b and c)

The Committee were concerned that the proposals were too ambitious to be delivered and that a 
self service approach to ICT would place considerable pressure on an already stretched workforce 
Furthermore it was felt that more financial information was required before informed scrutiny of the 
proposals could be undertaken. Questions were raised about the level of savings the proposals 
would generate and despite assurances from the Cabinet Member for Finance that  the savings 
which amount collectively to £4.6m  are guaranteed and not negotiable with Agilisys,

Budget saving not supported

Accountancy 
service 
(CEX/SAV/30a)

Budget saving supported

Investment 
income – 
increase risk 
appetite 
(CEX/SAV/29)

Budget saving supported

Discretionary 
business rate 
relief 
(CEX/SAV/53)

Budget saving supported

Reduce the size 
of the HR 
Business 
Partner team 
(CEX/SAV/22a)

Budget saving supported

Stop Employee 
Relations team 
(CEX/SAV/22)

Budget saving supported

P
age 92



Reduce spend 
of Trade Union 
representatives 
(CEX/SAV/23) - 
withdrawn

Not applicable

Reduce 
Democratic 
Services 
structure 
(CEX/SAV/09)

The Committee in considering each of the posts put forward for deletion expressed the view that 
with the growing member demands and expectations on the service and seeing the limited officer 
support currently available that the post of Scrutiny Officer should be retained. With regard to the 
role of the Political Assistant, despite the findings and recommendations in the Peer Review, the 
committee questioned the need to fill a similar role in light of the current political and financial 
climate. On that basis,  

The Committee supported the proposed budget saving with the exception of the Scrutiny 
Officer role being retained.

Reduce 
Member training 
(CEX/SAV/12a)

The Committee were concerned with the original proposals and in linking this to the previous 
budget saving would be prepared to: 

Support the alternative approach to achieving the saving which would allow for the 
retention of the post combining member training with additional support to scrutiny.

Streamlining 
Building 
Cleaning 
(ES009A)

Budget saving supported

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix I
SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE

26 November 2014

Budget savings discussion record sheet for reporting to Cabinet

Proposal

Support

Support w
ith 

recom
m

endations for 
adjustm

ents (see 
com

m
ents)

D
o not support (see 

com
m

ents for reasons)

Comments

ES004 – Road 
Safety

The Committee supported the proposal on the basis that alternative sources of 
non council funds are identified to allow the continuation of this vital road safety 
service.
 

ACS SAV 36 – Trust 
Option

The Committee supported the proposal however members were concerned that 
the Council may lose some control of the leisure facility and emphasised the 
importance that subsequent contracts include appropriate break clauses as well as 
ensuring member representation on any future Trust Board. 
Questions were raised about future wage guarantees for staff TUPE. The Lead 
Member requested that the Committee be kept updated with progress to enable full 
scrutiny. 

P
age 95



ACS SAV 31 – 
Leisure Centres 
Management and 
Reception

The Committee supported the proposal however concerns were expressed that
elderly and disabled residents may not be able to access the services available and 
re assured by the Leader that even with a reduced reception service where 
necessary face to face engagement would still be available.

ACS SAV 33 – 
Leisure Centres 
terms and 
Conditions

The Committee supported the proposal but expressed reservations as to the 
possible legal challenges from staff and Unions over changes to T&C’s, wage levels 
and TUPE arrangements in the context of the earlier budget proposal re the 
establishment of a Leisure Trust.

ACS SAV 17 – 
VOLT (Victim 
Offender Location 
Time)

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV 18 – Anti-
Social Behaviour 
Team

The Committee supported the proposal to remove the General Fund budget to 
meet staffing costs on the basis of the assurances provided as to both the legality 
and extent of long term funding from alternative sources including the HRA. 

ACS SAV 19 – 
Youth Offending 
Service

The Committee supported the proposal despite reservations that reducing the 
level of the intervention budgets could adversely affect the YOS ability to undertake 
its statutory responsibilities.

ACS SAV 23 – 
Library Shift 
Patterns

Budget saving supported

P
age 96



ACS SAV 24 – 
Home Library 
Service, School 
Library Service and 
Library Resources

The Committee supported the proposal although concerns were expressed that 
elderly and vulnerable residents could be negatively impacted by the changes, 
making them more isolated.

ACS SAV 26 – 
Library Casual 
Staffing Budget

The Committee supported the proposal but raised concerns over potential ad hoc 
closures and short notice to staff who may be asked to work elsewhere.  There were 
also concerns over the quality and reliability of the potential volunteers. 

ACS SAV 27 – 
Thames View 
Library and Valence 
Library

Budget saving supported

ACS SAV 29a – 
Transfer Broadway 
to Barking and 
Dagenham College

Budget saving supported. 

ACS SAV 30 – 
Community Halls Budget saving supported

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix J
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT SELECT COMMITTEE

2 December 2014

Budget savings discussion record sheet for reporting to Cabinet

Proposal

Support

Support w
ith 

recom
m

endations for 
adjustm

ents (see 
com

m
ents)

D
o not support (see 

com
m

ents for reasons)

Comments

ACS/23A - Reduce Book Fund x The committee supported the proposal

CHS/36 – Integrated Early Help QA 
services x

The committee in supporting the proposal expressed concerns that the 
information in the pro forma regarding the no of posts to be deleted was not 

consistent with all the paperwork at the meeting.

CEX/7b – Reduce costs in Sustainable 
Communities area x The committee supported the proposal

CEX/72 – Freeze Increments x

The committee noted that as incremental progression formed part of 
contractual terms and conditions the Council would be obliged to seek a 

voluntary agreement, failing which any change would need to be imposed. 
Bearing in mind the wider motivational impact on the work force particularly 
at the lower pay scales it was decided to recommend that the one year 

freeze in 2016/17 only apply to staff on grades P04 and above.

P
age 99



CEX/73 – Reduce Redundancy 
Payments x

The committee did not support the proposal as it currently stands. 
Seeing it was not planned to introduce until 2016/17 it was requested that 

more work be undertaken on comparisons with other Council schemes 
including Redbridge that previously adopted a tiered approach to protect the 

lower paid.

CEX/77 – Business Support Review x
The committee supported the proposal on the basis that the review 

coupled with further proposals to reduce the number of middle management 
posts will draw out wider areas of saving to include the likes of policy teams.

CEX/78 –Reduce Middle management x The committee supported the proposal

CEX/54e – increase duration risk on 
external investments x The committee supported the proposal

ES030- Review of Parking Services x
The committee supported the proposal on the basis that there will be a 

detailed examination of the ways to achieve the desired channel shift in the 
service ahead of its planned implementation in 2016/17.

CEX/04a – Development Planning x The committee supported the proposal

CEX/08a – Employment Skills recharge 
to HRA X

The committee supported the proposal but requested that a future report 
be presented to LWSC and other interested members detailing the success 

against targets of the Employment and Skills Team in working with local 
agencies to support housing tenants to find permanent employment.

12
CEX/54a – Finance Innovation & 

funding – additional recharge to HRA x The committee supported the proposal

EHTS/001 – Food safety team funding 
to PHG x The committee supported the proposal

P
age 100



ES025- Domestic Bin Rental x The committee supported the proposal

ES026 – Recycling Bin Rental x The committee supported the proposal

ESO27 – Bulk Waste x The committee did not support the proposal

HGF002 – Service charges for hostels x
The committee supported the proposal.  LWSC to consider undertaking a 

visit to the three Council hostel sites to compare conditions against rental 
charges.

HGF003- Support budgets for housing x The committee supported the proposal

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CABINET

16 December 2014 

Title: Corporate Delivery Plan Update

Report of the Leader of the Council

Open Report

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: No

Report Author: 
Karen Wheeler
Head of Strategy & Communications

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8227 2317
E-mail: karen.wheeler@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Divisional Director:  n/a

Accountable Director:  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive

Summary: 
This report provides an update on progress for the priority projects and performance 
indicators agreed as part of the Corporate Delivery Plan by Cabinet in October 2014. In 
addition, this report provides a progress update for the LGA Peer Challenge 
implementation plan. This is the first performance report since the plan was agreed and 
provides an update for quarter 2 2014/15, up to the end of September. Good progress has 
been made.

The Corporate Delivery Plan is a key document to ensure the Council has a co-ordinated 
approach to delivering the vision and priorities, and makes best use of the limited 
resources available. The priority projects have been identified in consultation with Cabinet 
members, and represent projects that are integral to the delivery of the overall priorities 
and running of the Council. KPIs have also been developed to monitor performance 
towards the priorities and of frontline services. 

Progress for the priority projects, Peer Challenge implementation plan, and KPIs will be 
reported quarterly to CMT and Cabinet and every six months to the Public Accounts and 
Audit Select Committee (PAASC). 

Recommendation(s)

Cabinet is asked to:

(i) Note the performance for the priority projects and KPIs, agreeing any actions to 
address any lack of progress or deteriorating performance, and

(ii) Note the progress towards delivering the actions set out in the Peer Challenge 
implementation plan.

Reason(s)

The vision and priorities were agreed by Assembly in September 2014. They reflect the 
changing relationship between the Council, partners and the community, and the Council’s 

Page 103

AGENDA ITEM 7

mailto:karen.wheeler@lbbd.gov.uk


role in place shaping and enabling community leadership within the context of a 
significantly reducing budget. 

The Corporate Delivery Plan update provides Members with the opportunity to monitor 
progress towards achieving the vision and priorities, consider organisational performance, 
celebrate improvements, tackle areas of poor performance, and learn lessons from areas 
of good practice. 

1 Introduction 

1.1The new vision and priorities were agreed by Assembly in September 2014. Following 
this, the Council produced a Corporate Delivery Plan which was agreed by Cabinet in 
October. The delivery plan is an important part of ensuring the Council has a clear 
focus on delivering the new vision and priorities for Barking and Dagenham. The plan 
will allow the Council to make best use of limited resources in areas that will make the 
greatest difference in achieving the overall vision and priorities. It is intended to help 
frame the ambition of the Council with the resources available to deliver them.

1.2The delivery plan has been developed in order to ensure that the Council’s contribution 
to achieving the priorities is proactive, co-ordinated, resourced in line with the MTFS 
and monitored so that Members and residents can see progress. The delivery plan 
captures the priority projects and KPIs that are required to effectively deliver the new 
vision. Progress will be reported quarterly to Cabinet and six-monthly to Public 
Accounts and Audit Select Committee (PAASC). 

1.3The delivery plan is a key part of the Council’s overall performance framework and 
‘golden thread’ which links the vision and priorities through to the corporate priority 
projects and indicators, business plans, team work programmes and individual 
objectives in appraisals. At the Managers Conference in October all managers were 
asked to review the delivery plan and consider what they would do within their service 
to contribute to its delivery. 

1.4Through the business planning process after Christmas we will ensure that each 
service area has a plan for next year that links the priorities to the resources available. 
Each service area will produce a plan detailing the actions they will take (with 
timescales) to take forward the priorities in the delivery plan.  As part of the business 
plan, services will identify their learning and development needs enabling the Council’s 
Learning and Development Plan to be pulled together.

1.5To complete the golden thread all staff have an annual appraisal (with a formal six 
monthly review). Through this process performance in the last year is reviewed and 
objectives set for the year ahead. Individual objectives will be set based on business 
plans, thereby ensuring all staff are focused on priorities. We also assess staff against 
competencies based on the values, on the basis that success depends on the way they 
go about their job as much as what they do. Individual learning and development needs 
are also identified through this process.

1.6The appraisal process is being reviewed to ensure it is aligned to the new vision, 
priorities and values, and:

Page 104



- align it with the new Oracle R12 system
- introduce a new set of competencies
- assess people in terms of their potential as well as performance as part of our 
approach to talent management.

1.7Alongside formal appraisal all staff should have regular supervision or one to ones. 
This enables performance to be monitored and issues addressed. Our aim is to help 
people maximise their performance, but there are formal capability processes should 
there be consistent under-performance.

2 A co-ordinated approach to organisational performance 

2.1This report provides an update on the priority projects, the LGA Peer Challenge 
implementation plan (a priority project itself), and the performance framework for 
quarter 2 2014/15.  This provides a holistic picture of organisational performance in 
these areas. 

2.2This report is divided into three sections:

- Update on the priority projects (Appendix 1)
- Update on the LGA Peer Challenge implementation plan (Appendix 2)
- Update on the key performance indicators (Appendix 3)

2.3The delivery plan identifies 27 projects, which will support the achievement of the 
overall vision and priorities. An update on how these projects have progressed as at 
November 2014 is provided in Appendix 1. Overall good progress has been made.

2.4Earlier this year the Council invited the LGA to carry out a peer challenge and provide 
feedback in areas of interest to the organisation. In response to the feedback the 
Council produced an implementation plan to deal with the issues raised. An update on 
actions is provided in Appendix 2. Delivery of the implementation plan is one of the 27 
priority projects. Many of the actions are already complete and significant progress has 
been made overall.  It is recognised though that more work is needed to define the 
future operating model of the Council to clarify how we align the ambitions set out in 
the vision and priorities with the resources available to deliver them. This is an issue 
raised by staff in recent briefings with the Chief Executive and Leader.

2.5We also know that despite aiming to set a balanced budget for 2015/16 and 2016/17 in 
February 2015, there will be further savings required and although we believe we have 
the resources available to deliver the priorities at present we must look forward to 
ensure we are as efficient as we can be by maximising the opportunities to be digital by 
design, manage demand for services, generate income and adopt new ways of working 
through community hubs and a new relationship with the voluntary sector and the 
community.  This is in line with the direction of travel of many local authorities. Further 
work will need to align with the approach of the incoming chief Executive.

3 Performance Summary - Key performance Indicators

3.1The key performance indicators were developed by services in consultation with 
portfolio holders. These focus on high level areas of interest and allow Members and 
officers to monitor performance. In addition to these corporate indicators, services may 
have service level indictors which provide a more detailed picture of performance 
monitored locally. 

Page 105



3.2A detailed breakdown of performance for quarter two is provided in Appendix 3. 
However, indicators which have seen a significant improvement or may be an area of 
concern have been included in the body of this report.

3.3 In order to report the latest performance in a concise manner, a number of symbols 
have been incorporated in the report. Please refer to the table below for a summary of 
each symbol and an explanation of their meaning.

Symbol Detail

 Performance has improved when compared to the previous Quarter

 Performance has remained static when compared to the same period 
last Quarter

 Performance has deteriorated when compared to the same period last 
Quarter

G Performance is expected to achieve or has exceeded the target

A Performance is within 10% of the target

R Performance is 10% greater than the target

3.4Of all the Corporate Priority indicators which are reported on a quarterly basis, the 
following table provides a summary of performance at Quarter 2. This should be 
considered in the context of significant budget reductions and our continuation to 
improve services. 

   G A R
43%* 14%* 23%* 30%** 16%** 14%**

* Please note that 20% of the performance indicators are still ‘Awaiting Data’ and 
therefore not possible to provide an indication of the Direction of Travel. This may 
be due to a number of new indicators which services are now trying to collect for the 
first time. Services have provided assurance that this data will be available for the 
next quarterly update. 

** Please note that RAG rating performance indicators where no target has been 
supplied by the service area is not possible. This is indicated in the table above 
which shows that 40% of KPIs have not been RAG rated. The strategy team will be 
working with services to carryout a data quality exercise to ensure all indicators 
have appropriate targets. 

4 Corporate Priority Performance – Focus on Performance 

4.1 For Quarter 2 performance reporting, focus has been given to a small selection of 
indicators where performance has either greatly improved or has shown a 
deterioration.  It is hoped that by focusing on specific indicators, senior management 
and Members will be able to challenge performance and identify where action is 
required.

Page 106



4.2 Improved Performance

No. 4 Number of Residential Burglaries 

- Performance YTD in September 2014 highlighted a decrease of 123 offences 
reported (18%) compared to the same period last year, exceeding the 2014/15 
target of an 8% reduction and better than the London average (-15%). 

- This improvement in performance is being attributed to the focus that the police 
and partnership have put into this via tasking and target hardening events.    

No.44 Time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax benefit new claims 
and No.45 Time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax benefit change 
events

- Both indicators relating to Housing Benefit/Council Tax processing times are 
exceeding their 2014/15 targets and made significant improvements upon last 
year. 

- New Claims are currently being processed within 23 days, which is below the 
target (25 Days) and an 8% improvement on the same time last year. 

- Change Events are currently being processed within 11 days, which is below the 
target (14 days) and a significant 27% improvement on the same time last year. 

4.3Areas for Improvement

No.30 Average time taken to re-let Local Authority housing (calendar days)

- Current performance for this indicator is 68 days, which is over double the 
2014/15 target of 30 days, however, performance has improved from Quarter 1 
when it was 73 days.  

- A number of long term voids have been brought back into stock, which needed 
more work and thus a longer turnaround time.

- Fortnightly monitoring of re-let times is taking place to ensure a focus on 
reducing them. 

5 Consultation 

5.1Corporate Management Team (CMT) and departments (through Departmental
Management Teams) have informed the approach, data and commentary in this
report.

6 Financial Implications 

Prepared by – Carl Tomlinson, Finance Manager  

6.1There are no specific financial implications as a result of this report; however in light of 
current financial constraints it is imperative that Officers ensure that these key 
performance indicators are delivered within existing budgets. These budgets will be 
monitored through the existing monitoring process to identify and address potential 
issues and also any benefits as a result of improved performance on a timely basis.

Page 107



7 Legal Implications 

Prepared and verified by Chris Pickering, Principal Solicitor - Employment & Litigation

7.1Assembly agreed the vision and priorities in September 2014. The responsibility for 
implementing them rests with Cabinet.  The delivery of these will be achieved through 
the projects set out in the delivery plan and monitored quarterly. As this report is for 
noting, there are no legal implications.

8 Other Implications

8.1 Risk Management – There are no specific risks associated with this report. The 
delivery plan and ongoing monitoring will enable the Council to identify risks early 
and initiate any mitigating action.  The Council’s business planning process describes 
how risks are mitigated by linking with the Corporate Risk Register. 

8.2 Contractual Issues - Any contractual issues relating to delivering activities to meet 
borough priorities will be identified and dealt with in individual project plans. 

8.3 Staffing Issues - There are no specific staffing implications. 

8.4 Customer Impact – The new vision and priorities give a clear and consistent 
message to residents and partners in Barking and Dagenham about the Council’s 
role in place shaping and providing community leadership. 

8.5 Safeguarding Children - The priority Enabling social responsibility encompasses 
activities to safeguard children in the borough and is delivered through the Local 
Safeguarding Children Board and Children’s Trust.

8.6 Health Issues - The priority Enabling social responsibility encompasses activities 
to support the prevention and resolution of health issues in the borough and is 
delivered through the Health and Wellbeing Board.

8.7 Crime and Disorder Issues - The priority Encouraging civic pride encompasses 
activities to tackle crime and disorder issues and will be delivered through the 
Community Safety Partnership.

Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
Corporate Delivery Plan 2015/16 - 2016/17

List of appendices:

Appendix 1: Priority Projects Update
Appendix 2: LGA Peer Challenge Implementation Plan Update
Appendix 3: Key Performance Indicators Update

Page 108



Appendix 1 - Priority projects update

One borough; one community; 
London’s growth opportunity

Priority 1 - Encouraging civic pride 

Priority project and brief description Progress at Nov 2014 Service area and 
Portfolio Holder 

Festival 2015 
A community led programme of events 
to celebrate the borough’s 50th 
anniversary leaving a lasting legacy for 
community access to our parks.

A full programme of events for 2015 is being co-developed with community 
organisations.  Local business have pledged that they are ‘in for 2015’ 
including sponsorship. Activity to attract additional investment to fund the 
programme is underway. 

Culture and Sport

Leader of the Council 

Strengthening school partnerships 
Provide leadership to our family of 
schools in order to improve the 
educational offer within the borough.

Ofsted inspection w/c 24 November will report on this (see inspection section). Education

Cabinet Member for 
Education and Schools

Barking Town Centre as the cultural 
hub for East London 
Expand the existing offer to become 
east London’s cultural hub, a vibrant 
and culturally rich community, with 
space for creative industries.

There is a report on the Cabinet agenda for December regarding the Broadway 
Theatre which is linked to the overall approach to developing a cultural hub. 

Culture and Sport

Leader of the Council

Enforcement and charging 
Encourage socially responsible 
behaviour from residents and penalise 
those who act irresponsibly. Ensure a 
consistent and fair approach to 
enforcement and charging policies.

Verbal update to be provided Environment

Cabinet Member for 
Crime and Enforcement

P
age 109



Priority 2 - Enabling social responsibility

Priority project  and brief description Progress at Nov 2014 Service area and 
Portfolio Holder 

All schools as good or outstanding
All schools good with 20% outstanding 
by December 2015.  Priority areas for 
action are set out in the Council’s 
School Improvement Strategy 2016-17 
including support for improvement in 
governance and leadership of teaching.

Closing gap with national – 75% good or outstanding – national 80% Education

Cabinet Member for 
Education and Schools

Tackling obesity
To undertake a programme of activities 
commencing from January 2015 in 
order to encourage healthier lifestyles 
and tackle obesity.

A programme of activities is planned from January 2015 and activity in 
Children’s includes:

 Continuing work on improving catering offer in schools to ensure 
children are eating healthily 

 Educate children on the benefits of healthy eating and physical 
exercise with the use of incentives through the access and connect 
card and reward scheme.

 Early identification pilot with GP’s to include identifying children at risk 
of obesity and refer to children’s early help services 

 Children’s centre programmes all focus on healthy lifestyles

Public Health

Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care and 
Health 

Enabling the community through the 
voluntary sector including 
volunteering
Enable the BanD Together group to 
harness the service delivery potential of 
the voluntary sector, building the 
capacity and opportunity for VCS 
providers, supported by a Council 
funded Co-ordinator.

The CVS is currently recruiting a secondment for one year to take this work 
forward. Short listing is taking place on 16th December. 

Extensive volunteering programme run by the Employment Lead in Children’s 
services.  Very successful in moving people into employment as demonstrated 
in Troubled Families programme with payments by results in this area.  

Strategy & 
Communications

Leader of the Council 

Community hubs network 
Help create a Borough infrastructure to 
optimise joint work for community 
empowerment.

Pilot in Marks Gate led by Children’s services in collaboration with partners 
including community and Voluntary sector.

All - led by Children’s 
Services 

Tackle other boroughs housing their 
residents in the borough

The London Inter Borough Accommodation Agreement (IBAA) oversees the 
use of temporary accommodation, discharge of duty into the private sector and 

Housing 

P
age 110



Implementation of London Inter 
Borough Accommodation Agreement 
preventing boroughs from paying rates 
higher than local LBBD agreed rates 
thereby limiting the number of external 
placements.

preventative placements made by London boroughs into another London 
borough, including placements made and received by the LBBD. This 
agreement is overseen and monitored on a quarterly basis through the formal 
London sub-regional housing partnerships where discussion and agreement 
takes place on cross borough placements.

Our approach is to minimise the number of placements into B&D and to secure 
agreement and protocols through the IBAA to this end. One of the major areas 
of focus is upon social care placements, adult and children’s. Our aim for 
2015/16 is to secure a protocol covering these placements either via sub-
regional arrangements or directly between boroughs (whichever is most 
appropriate).

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

Priority 3 - Growing the borough

Priority project and brief description Progress at Nov 2014 Service area  and 
Portfolio Holder

Barking Riverside
One of the largest residential 
developments in the UK, 11,000 homes 
with superb River Thames frontage, in a 
strong partnership with the GLA.

Considerable design work is being undertaken to alter the current masterplan 
to take account of the future London Overground Station, the traffic system and 
development around it. 

Discussions about the future structure of Barking Riverside Ltd are ongoing

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

Gospel Oak line extended to Barking 
Riverside
Continue lobbying and work with 
partners to ensure the Gospel Oak line 
is extended to Barking Riverside 
improving transport links for the area.

Announcement on the London Overground extension expected as part of the 
Autumn Statement announcement first week in December.

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration

Barking Town Centre 
Work with a range of partners and 
residents to continue to improve the 
experience of living, working or doing 
business in Barking Town Centre This 
would include developing a new 
cinema, re-invigorating the market and 
widening its appeal  and establishing  

 Barking Magistrates Court redevelopment under construction
 Abbey Sports Centre - negotiations starting with preferred bidder 

regarding redevelopment of the sports centre.
 Phase2 of the Ice House quarter development (144 units) under 

construction due for completion in July summer 2015. It will be part of 
the Gascoigne SPV and will be largely 80% rent units aimed at 
generating an income for the General Fund. 

 Gascoigne Regeneration proposal - likely start on site in March 2015.

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration

P
age 111



Priority project and brief description Progress at Nov 2014 Service area  and 
Portfolio Holder

Care City.  Draft Town Centre Strategy out for consultation.
 Sainsbury proposal at Abbey Retail Park has been formally agreed by 

all parties’
 High St Fund bid to GLA being submitted 1st December c£0.75m
 Heritage Lottery bid c£1.3m submitted 14th November for heritage 

along East St 
 Housing Zone bid for Barking Town Centre submitted. Challenge 

meeting with the GLA January 2015 c£8m
 NHB topslice programme bid agreed for c£700k for places of work in 

Barking Town Centre and improving East St linked to the market)
 TfL under spend funding bid agreed for £321k for public realm 

improvements in Barking Town Centre
 Vicarage Field have signed up Costa Coffee to go into a unit on Ripple 

Road
londoneast-uk
Work with the private sector to 
transform the former Sanofi site into a 
bio tech based economic hub that is 
unique in the capital.

 Marstons Pub/Restaurant - construction started due to open in 
April/May 2015.

 Sainsburys construction likely to be April 2015.
 Sanofi have signed agreement with SOG Ltd. and other tenants are 

likely to be confirmed shortly. 

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration

Beam Park
Beam Park/Ford Stamping Plant – 
major brownfield site with great potential 
for  housing and commercial activity 
with 2,500 new homes and over 1,000 
new jobs.

GLA currently undertaking some soft market testing of the site with a number 
of housing developers with a view to going out to the market in Spring 2015. 
Ford meanwhile have shortlisted 3 bidders and are expecting final offers in 
February on an unconditional basis ie without the bidder having a planning 
consent in place. The Council and the GLA’s favoured approach is for housing 
led mixed use scheme.

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration

Energy company
Maximise the borough’s potential to 
generate significant levels of renewable 
energy including exploring opportunities 
to become an energy trading Council 
and reduce energy consumption.

Establishment of Energy Services Company is an agenda item for Cabinet in 
January 2015 

All - led by Finance

Cabinet Member for 
Finance 

London’s Sustainable Industries 
Park (LSIP)
London’s Sustainable Industries Park 

Chinnook Waste to Energy Plant will start construction within the next 2 weeks. 
Saria’s anaerobic digester is due to start in Spring 2015. Thames Gateway 
Park are building speculative warehouse /industrial units which will complete in 
spring 2015.

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 

P
age 112



Priority project and brief description Progress at Nov 2014 Service area  and 
Portfolio Holder

(LSIP) vision to be delivered at 
Dagenham Dock so that we can 
become London’s greenest borough.

Barking Power Station have formally decided to shut the plant and the 
processes for closing it are in train.

Regeneration

More apprenticeships for young 
people
Priority in the draft employment and 
skills strategy.  Key actions include 
supporting the Council’s apprenticeship 
offer, and promoting apprenticeships 
with employers and local and regional 
partners including the colleges.  

Apprenticeship Development Manager post has now transferred to 
Regeneration.  A total of 74 apprentices were recruited into the Council’s 
workforce in the year to November 2014.  Work is ongoing with local 
employers, in particular in construction where 20 apprentice starts took place 
over April-October 2014 and care where Skills for Care funding has been 
secured to support 30 apprenticeships over 2 years.  Work is underway to 
improve engagement with young people working with a range of local partners.  
Wages for apprentices in groundwork, care and business admin are being 
funded by Regeneration, with five Level 3 apprentices working within the 
division itself.  Apprentice wage within the Council has risen from £110 to £125 
and will rise to £130 in April 2015.

Regeneration

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration

Shared housing ownership
Phase 2 of Leys Estate renewal and 
phase 1 of Gascoigne to include 200 
Council developed shared ownership 
units.

The Housing Service has plans to provide 1,000 shared ownership units over 
the four year 2015/19. Of this number 500 will comprise of new build schemes 
of which phase 2 of Leys Estate renewal and phase 1 of Gascoigne which  
include 200 Council developed shared ownership units.

In addition to the above work is under way to develop plans and mechanisms 
for delivering the remaining 500 units from existing Council stock by converting 
Council void properties into shared ownership units, a more flexible use of 
Right to Buy (RTB) legislation by allowing RTB discount to be used for shared 
ownership.

The area of shared ownership is a well developed market for most RSLs and 
they have experience and expertise in this field. Local Council housing 
providers have not been the traditional domain for developing and providing 
shared ownership options and this is evidenced by the lack of examples that 
can be found. Given this lack of in house expertise it will be necessary to bring 
this experience in and there are plans to recruit a project manager to lead on 
this.

There are agreed proposals for 180 new shared ownership units as part of the 
Gascoigne Regeneration phase 1. There are 10 units being provided at the 
new Castle Green development. Separately officers are looking at the 
possibility of some shared ownership on other estate renewal sites and as part 

Housing 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

P
age 113



Priority project and brief description Progress at Nov 2014 Service area  and 
Portfolio Holder

of the Council’s London Housing Zone bid. In addition the Housing Department 
is looking at other ways of increasing the supply of shared ownership units

Recruitment of social workers 
Increase recruitment and retention of 
social workers to improve the service 
and reduce use of agency staff reducing 
costs

 A programme focused on the recruitment of social workers is in place 
and being implemented. The programme includes recruiting social 
workers both locally and from Europe. 

 The council website has been developed, signed off corporately and 
launched on 24th Nov 2014.  The website includes information on 
forthcoming housing offers and other benefits the Council offers. 

 The specific post, recruitment and retention officer is filled.
 Recruitment activity focused on moving agency staff to temporary 

contracts is underway.

Children’s Services

Cabinet member for 
Children’s Social Care 

Housing for key workers
Prioritisation will be given to local 
working people on moderate incomes 
for new housing schemes with 
immediate effect for policy 
implementation.

The Housing Service plans to implement a key worker strategy to increase the 
supply of affordable housing and improve access to housing for key workers 
and local working residents on moderate incomes, across the next four year 
period 2015/19. B&D has one of the highest housing affordability gaps (the 
difference between average house prices and average household incomes) in 
London, with the average home in the borough costing nearly seven times the 
average annual household income. 

The policy will initially prioritise shared ownership and affordable rent homes to 
specific key worker groups: teachers and social workers. Housing supply will 
focus upon key worker schemes on phase 2 of the Leys and at the Gascoigne. 
We are also looking to develop a shared ownership scheme of up to 25 units 
specifically for teachers and social workers in Barking Town Centre in 
partnership with a Housing Association during 2015/16.

A detailed policy with specific targets will be developed and implemented for 
2015 onwards.

Housing 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

Priority 4 - A well run organisation

Priority project Progress at Nov 2014 Service area and 
portfolio holder

Income generation
Maximise opportunities to generate new 

Children’s services continue the drive to create new services for trading with 
schools to generate income.  Three new services have been developed:

- Family support workers in schools

All

P
age 114



Priority project Progress at Nov 2014 Service area and 
portfolio holder

and additional income including 
opportunities to sell services to other 
authorities and build on the successful 
traded services in Children’s Services 
and the Legal Service.

- CAF advice and support to schools
- Selling Children’s Centres expertise to other boroughs and running 

national getting to good conference.
Work is ongoing across the Council to identify and progress new opportunities.

Housing restructure 
Creation of an integrated and 
accountable housing service that will 
deliver excellent customer services and 
effective stock investment, promote 
tenant responsibility and support 
growth.

The top level structure of the new Housing Directorate was endorsed at the 
JNC Salaries and Conditions Panel in September 2014 and formal consultation 
with staff and trades unions has now been completed. Recruitment consultants 
are being sought to progress appointment to the three Divisional Director 
posts.

The restructuring proposals for the repairs service have completed the 
consultation period and are being assessed as a result of number of new 
factors:
 The Council’s overall financial deficit in the current year and the need for 

the HRA to also demonstrate value for money across all activities
 The overspend that has arisen on empty property (voids) works
 The need to bring the repairs and capital delivery service together in one 

division 
It is now expected that revised restructure proposals for repairs will be 
circulated in the very near future. In advance of this an Improvement and 
Service Transformation Manager is being appointed to develop and implement 
detailed proposals for the new Asset Management and Development Division 
which will bring together and integrate the repairs and maintenance and the 
capital stock investment services. This will involve the production of 
comprehensive Service Improvement Plans for both capital investment and for 
repairs and maintenance.

Housing

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

Senior management restructure
Review the senior management 
structure to ensure it is fit for purpose 
and contributes to the delivery of the 
vision.

Chris Naylor has been appointed to the Chief Executive role. The management 
restructure will be addressed by the new Chief Executive from February 2015.

Chief Executive

Leader of the Council 

P
age 115



Priority project Progress at Nov 2014 Service area and 
portfolio holder

Website
A new Council website will be 
contemporary, user friendly, fully mobile 
responsive and designed for all modern 
devices. It will be fully integrated with 
My Account and support digital by 
design services.

Work to create the new website has been progressing well with new content 
created or migrated from the current site.  The website is on track to go live on 
15th December. 

Strategy and 
Communications 

Leader of the Council 

Equalities in employment
Ensure a diverse work force and 
increase currently underrepresented 
groups to be more reflective of the 
community.

Implementing the Equalities and Diversity in Employment Policy is an agenda 
item for Cabinet in January 2015

HR and Organisational 
Development 

Cabinet Member for 
Central Services 

Implement the People Strategy 
Implement the actions in the People 
Strategy to ensure that we fulfil our 
ambition to have the right people, with 
the right skills in the right places, with 
the right kinds of management and 
leadership, motivated to perform well.

The People Strategy has been reviewed to ensure it is aligned to the new 
vision and priorities. Implementation is underway.

HR and Organisational 
Development

Cabinet Member for 
Central Services 

Peer Challenge Implementation Plan
Respond to the recommendations of the 
LGA Corporate Peer Challenge by 
delivering the implementation plan

An update on progress with the Peer Challenge implementation plan is 
included as part of this report.

All - led by Chief 
Executive

Leader of the Council 

P
age 116



APPENDIX 2

London Borough of Barking & Dagenham LGA Corporate Peer Challenge Implementation Plan 

Theme 1: New leadership, new ambitions, new approaches

Recommendation: Action(s): Timescale Lead Officer(s) Progress as at November 2014 Portfolio Holder

1.1 Manage expectations of 
residents, partners, 
members and staff by 
articulating the vision and 
priorities into a set of 
clear and deliverable 
objectives underpinned 
by clear targets and 
measures and focusing 
the council’s efforts and 
resources accordingly

Produce a delivery plan for 
the new vision and 
priorities linked to the 
refreshed performance 
framework, identifying the 
key projects and outcomes 
sought

Cabinet – 
October 2014

Quarterly 
monitoring at 
CMT and 
Cabinet

Karen Wheeler Complete - Corporate Delivery Plan 
agreed by Cabinet in October. First 
quarterly update to be reported to 
Cabinet in December 2014. 

Cllr Rodwell

Series of internal 
communications events 
and initiatives, including 
Managers Conference, 
Staff Conference, CEX 
Blog and new internal 
marketing campaign

October 2014, 
then ongoing

Karen Wheeler/ 
Martin Rayson

Complete - The manager’s 
conference took place in October and 
a series of all staff briefings have 
taken place in October/November. 
These sessions have covered the 
new vision and priorities, and the 
budget challenge. Other activities are 
ongoing.

Cllr Rodwell / Cllr 
Ogungbose

Staff engagement strategy 
and action plan agreed by 
CMT

October 2014 Martin Rayson Complete - The staff engagement 
strategy and action plan have been 
agreed.  

Cllr Ogungbose

1.2 Communication and 
understanding by all staff 
and members about new 
vision, priorities and what 
that means in practice

People Strategy and 
revised Values agreed by 
Cabinet

September 
2014 
(complete)

Martin Rayson Complete - The People Strategy and 
the new values have been agreed by 
Cabinet. Work is now underway to 
implement the actions set out in the 
People Strategy. The values have 
been promoted alongside the new 
vision and priorities and are included 
in the Delivery Plan.

Cllr Ogungbose

P
age 117



Embedded in all strategies 
and communication activity

Ongoing All Ongoing Cllr Rodwell

Greater visibility at London 
Councils’ events including 
Leaders Committee and 
other representation at 
pan-London networks

Ongoing All Ongoing - The Leader and other 
portfolio holders have attended 
London Councils and pan-London 
events including the Leader’s 
Committee.

Cllr Rodwell

Lobbying of Mayor’s Office 
– develop a forward plan of 
key issues

October 2014 
then ongoing

Karen Wheeler A draft lobbying strategy and key 
issues is being prepared for 
discussion with CMT and Cabinet to 
inform a forward plan. 

Cllr Rodwell

1.3 Maximise every 
opportunity to capitalise 
on the potential of the 
borough as a whole

Consistency of messages 
to be ensured by Members 
and officers by developing 
an inspiring presentation 
with key messages to be 
prepared including new 
vision, priorities and logo 
etc., to be used by all

October 2014 
then ongoing

Karen Wheeler/ 
All

A powerpoint presentation template 
has been produced including the new 
vision and priorities which can be 
used by Members and officers. 
Inspiring presentations and videos for 
the festival 2015 have also been 
developed and used to attract 
sponsors and investment, and 
promote the events. A standalone 
presentation to promote the vision 
and priorities is being developed.

Cllr Rodwell

1.4 Greater understanding is 
needed by members, 
staff, partners and 
residents regarding the 
level of savings required 
and how the change from 
the traditional paternalism 
of the authority will impact 
service delivery and our 
community

Internal and external 
communications campaign 
linked to budget savings 
consultation process
Members to ensure budget 
position and savings 
proposals understood and 
considered by Labour 
Group, Select Committees 
etc.

October 2014 
to February 
2015

Karen Wheeler/ 
Martin Rayson

The budget consultation process runs 
until 27 November. During this 6 week 
consultation period both an internal 
and external communications 
campaign has been used successfully 
to communicate key messages about 
the savings proposals. Both staff and 
residents have been given the 
opportunity to provide feedback in a 
number of ways including through 
face to face meetings and online. Six 
public consultation meetings have 
been held along with 6 all staff 
briefings. 

Cllr Rodwell / Cllr 
Ogungbose / Cllr 
Twomey

P
age 118



External campaign for 
inner London funding 
levels predicated on 
demographic growth 
(linked to 1.3)

October 2014 
onwards

Jonathan Bunt Campaigning work has focused on 
multi borough challenge to damping 
system impacting on East and North 
London boroughs.
Subsequent work will investigate 
basis and relative strength of 
arguments for inner London funding 
for services.

Cllr Twomey

Working with partners to 
enable BanD Together 
approach to succeed 
including appointment of 
CVS BanD Together Co-
ordinator

November 
2014

Karen Wheeler Recruitment to a BanD Together Co-
ordinator is in progress. Meetings of 
the BanD Together group take place 
regularly with the Leader, Chief 
Executive and Head of Strategy & 
Communications.

Cllr Rodwell

Review the People 
Strategy to ensure that it 
focuses on delivering the 
vision and objectives 

Complete - The People Strategy has 
been reviewed and does now link to 
the new vision and priorities. 
Implementing the People Strategy is 
also one of the priority projects 
identified in the Delivery Plan allowing 
for CMT and Cabinet to monitor 
progress on a quarterly basis. 

Cllr Ogungbose

Corporate delivery plan 
and new performance 
framework – see 1.1 

Complete - Both agreed. An update 
on the delivery plan will be reported to 
Cabinet in December 2014.

Cllr Rodwell

Internal communication 
campaign – see 1.2, 1.3 
and 1.4

Internal and external communications 
campaign has focussed on the vision, 
priorities, values and savings 
requirement. Work is ongoing to link 
these more holistically with core 
business and to clearly identify a 
future operating model that reflects 
the ambition and resources available 
to deliver it.

Cllr Ogungbose

1.5 Delivering the vision, core 
business and the savings 
requirement must be 
seen as a single focus 
that the whole council 
unites behind and 
delivered holistically 
rather than three separate 
workstreams – a 
significant cultural change 
is required to achieve 
this, which necessitates 
extremely strong and 
consistent leadership

Expectation that all senior 
managers and members 
will use a common 
narrative externally and 

September 
2014 
(complete)

Graham 
Farrant/ Martin 
Rayson

A common narrative is included as 
part of the Delivery Plan. This will be 
developed further and communicated. 
This is also being explored in work to 

Cllr Rodwell

P
age 119



internally – see  1.3 look at how we align the ambition with 
the resources available through an 
agreed operating model with a 
supporting narrative to bring clarity on 
the future shape of the organisation 
bringing together all of these 
elements.

1.6 A permanent senior 
management structure 
needs to be put in place 
quickly that provides the 
necessary capacity and 
focus to deliver the 
authority’s agenda

Senior management 
structure to be confirmed 
via appropriate members 
approval processes, and 
recruitment to be carried 
out ASAP

October 2014 
to full 
implementation 
by March 2015

Graham 
Farrant

The recruitment process for a full time 
Chief Executive is complete. Work to 
ensure a permanent senior 
management structure will commence 
on the arrival of the new Chief 
Executive in February 2015.

Cllr Rodwell

Theme 2: Financial planning and viability

Recommendation: Action(s): Timescale Lead Officer(s) Progress as at November 2014 Portfolio Holder

2.1 Clarify and communicate 
final savings requirement 
for 2015/16 and beyond, 
then establish an agreed 
set of clear savings 
proposals, shaped by a 
focus on clear priorities, 
which are politically led 
and owned

Savings proposals developed 
and agreed for 
implementation 
(management action) or 
public consultation via Select 
Committees and Cabinet 
(see 1.4/1.5)

For 
agreement 
at Cabinet – 
7 October 
2014

Jonathan Bunt Complete - Savings proposals 
identified for management action are 
currently being implemented following 
agreement at Cabinet in October. 
Savings proposals for public 
consultation have been published. 
These have been discussed at select 
committees as well as public 
consultation meetings. A decision as 
to the final savings will be taken at 
Cabinet in December feeding into the 
budget to be agreed in February 
2015.

Cllr Twomey

2.2 Structural underspends in 
the budget need to be 
identified and removed in 
order to assist the 
savings challenge

Review all budget codes to 
identify structural 
underspends and reallocate 
or make savings

October 
2014

Jonathan Bunt Budget reviews and reallocation 
agreed for Environment service.  Base 
budget review for Children’s Services 
initiated as part of wider review.
No identified contribution to savings 
but has addressed structural 
pressures within service budgets.

Cllr Twomey

P
age 120



2.3The council’s capital 
programme needs to be 
reviewed to ensure it is 
aligned with the new 
vision and priorities

Internal member-led review 
to be set up via PAASC

October 
2014

Jonathan Bunt Agreed as a topic for review by 
PAASC at September meeting.

Cllr Twomey

2.4Consider ways in which 
the council may use its 
finances to further 
support growth and assist 
the revenue budget - as 
has been seen with the 
authority’s house building

Prepare paper setting out 
options for Cabinet

November 
2014

Steve Cox with 
Steve Tucker

The agreement to use European 
Investment Bank funding to provide 
sub–market housing in Barking Town 
Centre in the general fund will, when 
the homes are completed, (first 
tranche of 144 units due to be 
completed in July 2015) start to 
generate a surplus income for the 
general fund which can be used to 
assist other services. Separately a 
report will be coming forward shortly 
to Cabinet regarding energy efficiency 
initiatives which may be funded either 
by reserves or EIB type funding to 
help generate surplus income.

Cllr Twomey

Centralise budgets and 
develop agreed policy for use

The communication/publicity budgets 
across the Council will be centralised 
from 1 January 2015. This will deliver 
an in-year saving and £400k saving 
for 2015/16. 

Cllr Twomey / 
Cllr Rodwell / Cllr 
Ogungbose

2.5 Key support activities 
such as communications, 
training and development 
and community 
engagement need to be 
centralised to improve 
consistency and 
efficiency 

Agree any savings for 
2015/16 and implement in-
year savings during 2014/15 
if possible

October 
2014

Jonathan Bunt 
with Karen 
Wheeler and 
Martin Rayson

The majority of learning and 
development budgets will be 
centralised from 1 April 2015.

Cllr Ogungbose

Theme 3: Organisational capacity

Recommendation: Action(s): Timescale Lead Officer(s) Progress as at November 2014 Portfolio Holder

3.1 The council needs to 
make a massive shift in 
relation to how it 
corporately uses internal 
and external 
communications, 

Develop a communication 
strategy to include all of 
these elements to develop a 
more strategic approach 
linked to centralised 
communications budgets and 

October 
2014

Karen Wheeler Communications budgets will be 
centralised from 1 January 2015. 
Consultation with staff on a proposed 
structure for the communications team 
is currently underway and it is 
anticipated that the new structure will 

Cllr Rodwell

P
age 121



new team structure be fully implemented by the end of 
March 2015. This will inform the 
development of a communication 
strategy early in 2015.

A draft lobbying strategy and key 
issues is being prepared for 
discussion with CMT and Cabinet to 
inform a forward plan. 

Performance management 
covered in Rec.1.1

January 
2015 
(new 
structure in 
place)

Performance management framework 
is set out in the Delivery Plan.  
Business plans for each service area 
will be developed for 2015/16.  

Cllr Rodwell

lobbying/public affairs, 
resident insight, 
engagement and 
performance 
management to deliver 
the vision and priorities 

Develop use of Experian 
Mosaic for core customer 
intelligence and insight 
across the council 

October 
2014

Analysis of Experian Mosaic data for 
2014 is now complete and will be 
shared with Leadership Group in 
December.

Cllr Rodwell

Clarify the structure and 
content of the People 
Strategy and revitalise the 
programme with supporting 
internal communication plan

October 
2014

Martin Rayson Complete - The People Strategy and 
the new Values have been agreed by 
Cabinet. Work is now underway to 
implement the actions set out in the 
People Strategy. 

Cllr Ogungbose3.2 There is no visible 
organisational change 
programme - the role and 
purpose of the Future 
Business Board is 
unclear and it has little 
profile in the 
organisation. A new 
cross council 
organisational change 
infrastructure needs to be 
put in place going 
forward which  needs to 
take precedence over 
arrangements within 
departments

Establish the Future 
Business Board (FBB) as 
leading the Council’s change 
programme and clarify its 
relationship to CMT and 
wider executive and 
partnership boards

October 
2014

Graham Farrant This is underway with additional work 
to clarify the overarching future 
operating model to align the ambition, 
as set out in the vision and priorities, 
and resources available to deliver 
them. 

Cllr Ogungbose

Communicate this work, 
include FBB updates in CMT 
briefing

Ongoing Martin Rayson A communication and engagement 
plan will be developed for January 
2015 linked to the work referred to 
above and specific activity from each 
of the areas of work under FBB.

Cllr Ogungbose

P
age 122



3.3 Review the arrangement 
with Elevate to ensure 
the council is receiving 
the right support and the 
desired savings are 
realised

Contract review to be 
reported to Cabinet in 
autumn  including options for 
realigning services and ICT 
provision

October 
2014

Jonathan Bunt The review is complete and will be 
reported to Cabinet in December 
2014. Savings proposals from Elevate 
have identified areas where 
efficiencies can be made through 
changing the method of service 
delivery.  These are also subject to 
decision by Cabinet in December.

Cllr Ogungbose

Review of engagement 
activity and internal 
communication tools to 
develop consistent approach 

October 
2014

Cllr Ogungbose3.4 Staff need greater 
engagement and 
involvement generally

Staff engagement strategy 
and action plan agreed by 
CMT

October 
2014

Martin Rayson Complete - New interim employee 
engagement role in HR/OD in place. 
The review of internal channels is 
complete and engagement strategy 
agreed at CMT. There is a weekly 
CMT briefing providing staff with all 
key messages and news, and a series 
of staff briefings through the autumn. 

Review of notice boards complete.

Cllr Ogungbose

Complete values project and 
ensure strong internal 
communication plan linked to 
vision and priorities

October 
2014

Martin Rayson Complete - The values have been 
agreed and are being communicated 
alongside the vision and priorities. 

Cllr Ogungbose3.5 The new set of values 
currently being 
developed need to 
empower much greater 
innovation, creativity, 
managed risk-taking and 
commercial acumen. 
Once agreed, the senior 
leadership need to 
champion and 
demonstrate the new 
values to permeate 
throughout the 
organisation

Senior managers to 
champion new ways of 
working e.g. co-location

Ongoing All Ongoing as part of the flexible working 
project co-ordinated through FBB.

Cllr Ogungbose

P
age 123



Theme 4: Role of elected members

Recommendation: Action(s): Timescale Lead Officer(s) Progress as at November 2014 Portfolio Holder

Culture of challenging 
inappropriate behaviour and 
embedding the Member 
Code of Conduct and 
Protocol on Member and 
Officer Relations

Ongoing All officers and 
members

Addressed at the October Managers 
conference. 

Cllr Ogungbose

Active training and leadership 
on an ethical culture and the 
Nolan principles

October 
2014

Fiona Taylor/ 
Leadership

Rolling out of a new Constitution and 
updating of the relevant provisions. 
This was delayed from September 
2014 to the Assembly meeting in 
November to allow for pre-decision 
scrutiny by PAASC.

Cllr Ogungbose

Review of Member and 
officer relations – highlighting 
of the Protocol on Member 
and Officer Relations 
including relevant training

October 
2014

Fiona Taylor This has been delayed due to the new 
Constitution not being implemented 
until November 2014. 
An employee on line training course 
has been developed on Member and 
Officer relationships and will be 
compulsorily rolled out in January 
2015.

Cllr Ogungbose

Review Member roles on 
internal boards and forums 

October 
2014

Fiona Taylor This has been completed under the 
Constitutional review. In respect of 
Members’ roles on Outside Bodies a 
new chapter has been added to the 
Constitution for clarity. 

Cllr Ogungbose

4.1 To address issues of 
transparency, officer and 
elected member 
behaviours and a lack of 
clarity about respective 
roles and responsibilities, 
there needs to be 
absolute clarity that 
elected members focus 
on policy and direction 
and managers are 
responsible for delivery

Review of Personnel Board October 
2014

Martin Rayson Agreed to defer a review for six 
months, given that the new Personnel 
Board had been constituted post-
election.

Cllr Ogungbose

4.2 Greater collective 
dialogue between 
administration and senior 
managers

Regular CMT/Cabinet joint 
meetings and maximising use 
of Pre-Assembly sessions 
and any informal 
opportunities

Ongoing All 
Informal briefing sessions have been 
held for Cabinet members on the 
budget and the pre-Assembly 
briefings are continuing 

Cllr Ogungbose

P
age 124



LGA ‘buddy’ arrangement for 
Leader and portfolio holders

Buddy arrangements are in place Cllr Ogungbose

New structure of political 
support posts

This has been reviewed and 
implementation is in progress subject 
to the budget process for 2015/16

Cllr Ogungbose

Clarity of integration of 
Member support in PA hub

This will be part of the overall review 
of business support across the 
Council

Cllr Ogungbose

4.3 Adequate support both 
internally and externally 
urgently needs to be put 
in place to enable the 
Leader, Cabinet and 
Administration to fulfil 
their roles effectively in 
three main areas: 
 Administrative 

support (internal)
 Policy/research 

(internal)
 Mentoring (external)

Consider Away Day for 
members and/or Cabinet 
Development Programme

From 
September 
2014

Fiona Taylor

Cabinet members meet regularly and 
recently visited Nottingham City 
Council 

Cllr Ogungbose

Members training and 
development to address this 
and specifically consider 
Member roles in building civic 
pride and social responsibility 
in the community

Fiona 
Taylor/Member 
Development 
Committee

Chair’s Training – chairing skills for 
Council and community meetings
Public Speaking Training – voice skills 
and presentation structure
Role of the Community and Voluntary 
Sector – increase awareness of range 
of community organisations and how 
they operate
Casework Training – to more 
effectively assist residents with their 
concerns
The Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Crime and Community Safety are both 
enrolled on the Leadership Academy 
which includes a module on 
Community Leadership

Cllr Ogungbose

See 5.1 re community 
engagement and growth

Steve Cox See 5.1 Cllr Rodwell

4.4 Review of the role of 
elected members as 
community leaders and 
look at ways members 
can be better engaged 
outside of Council 
buildings in wards and 
communities

Explore opportunities through 
Community Networks as part 
of work of Future Business 
Board

From 
October 
2014

Helen Jenner Strong member engagement (all ward 
councillors) in pilot areas (Marks Gate 
and Thames View). Cllrs Rodwell, 
Ogungbose and Twomey actively 
engaged in shaping programme, 
including visits to South Ockendon 
and Marks Gate. 

Cllr Rodwell

P
age 125



Theme 5: the Growth Agenda

Recommendation: Action(s): Timescale Lead Officer(s) Progress as at November 2014 Portfolio Holder

5.1 A compelling picture 
needs to be provided to 
local people of the 
benefits that will be 
delivered for them 
through future growth, 
and allow local people to 
contribute to this.

Community engagement plan 
to be developed on benefits 
of growth including how we 
maximise the opportunities to 
benefit the existing 
community, how the 
community can contribute to 
the agenda and using 
Members in their community 
leadership role.

November 
2014

Steve Cox The borough’s business engagement 
group has been re-shaped to become 
the Jobs and Growth Board. Its 
focussed membership includes 
BDCVS with a specific purpose to 
connect the growth agenda with local 
communities. 

In addition, the board is developing 
skills and employment programmes to 
support borough residents gain the 
necessary skills required by business. 

Cllr Geddes

Revised Growth Strategy 
owned by CMT and Cabinet 
– to be addressed through 
November Cabinet report and 
development of single 
common narrative around 
growth opportunities.

The growth narrative was agreed as 
part of the borough’s overall revised 
vision and priorities by Cabinet in 
August and Assembly in September 
2014.

The Growth Strategy is being 
reviewed through the newly 
constituted Jobs and Growth Board. 

Cllr Geddes

Needs to incorporate a focus 
on the five agreed growth 
zones plus consideration of 
the significance of Chadwell 
Heath as a potential growth 
zone, plus focus on key 
employment sectors

The five Growth Hubs are at the 
centre of the growth narrative and 
work has begun to scope the potential 
for growth at Chadwell Heath linked to 
the Crossrail station. 

The growth statement identified the 
borough’s key employment sectors 
that are being used to shape 
employment and skills programme 
bids to the London Enterprise Panel.

Cllr Geddes

5.2The borough has 
traditionally been good at 
delivering regeneration 
on a site-by-site basis – 
what is required now is 
an over-arching 
approach, reflected in a 
‘Masterplan’, that draws 
the whole regeneration 
and growth agenda 
together and is further 
supported by a detailed 
delivery plan. There 
needs to be a whole 
council approach to this, 
rather than purely one for 
Regeneration and 
Planning, and the 
community needs to be 
involved in these

5.3 The council needs to lead 
the growth agenda on 

Develop area based cross-
Council groups linked to 
growth hubs e.g. Barking 
Riverside including NHS, plus 

November 
2014

Steve Cox

Area-based cross-council groups 
have been established for both 
barking Riverside and Barking Town 
Centre. 

Cllr Geddes

P
age 126



GLA/Council group 
considering Chadwell Heath, 
and links to the voluntary 
sector where appropriate

behalf of local people – 
playing the most 
proactive role possible 
and ensuring it gains the 
maximum direct control 
and influence. The focus 
should be broadened to 
include social 
infrastructure,  health, 
education and skills 
agenda to ensure local 
people are able to benefit 
from regen/growth

Review approach to business 
engagement

A review of the Barking Enterprise 
Centre has commenced which 
includes a social enterprise model 
which will include consideration of 
business support being provided 
through it.

Formal meeting between the portfolio 
holder and the Chamber will take 
place quarterly.

Cllr Geddes

5.4 The council needs to use 
its influence and utilise its 
resources to unlock 
growth schemes that are 
stalled including 
developing stronger 
partnerships

Impact assessment of current 
policy of placing all private 
rental blocks in key locations 
and learn from experience of 
other authorities

Meeting with Grainger Estates have 
taken place to examine the business 
model they and the sector apply 
through the development they run.

Cllr Geddes

5.5 Develop succession plan 
within the council to 
ensure the organisation 
continues to have 
capacity and skills to fulfil 
its role 

Restructure of Regeneration 
as part of overall senior 
management review and 
Housing restructure with 
associated succession plan

October 
2014

Steve Cox Proposals have been prepared for 
consideration by the Leader, Portfolio 
Holder and Chief Executive. 

P
age 127



Theme 6: Demand on children’s social care

Recommendation: Action(s): Timescale Lead Officer(s) Progress as at November 2014 Portfolio Holder

Work underway in Children’s 
Services to promote the 
place and opportunities for 
social workers through 
appointment of specific post 
for recruitment and retention. 
Recruitment Action Plan with 
targets agreed with Lead 
member

Specific 
targets for 
appointmen
ts of 
permanent 
social 
workers 
each 
quarter  – 
October 
2014

Helen Jenner Website developed, signed off 
Corporately and launched on 24 
November 2014.  The website 
includes information on forthcoming 
housing offers and other benefits the 
Council offers. 
The specific post, recruitment and 
retention officer has been appointed 
to. A recruitment programme is in 
place and includes recruiting locally 
and also from Europe. 

Cllr Turner / Cllr 
Ogungbose

Challenge what else can be 
done to enhance the 
corporate offer and profile, 
including wider promotion of 
the Council and place linked 
to recruitment offer being 
developed, linked to new 
website

October 
2014

Karen Wheeler/ 
Martin Rayson

In progress, new website to go live in 
December 2014.
Housing have worked with social 
care to come up with very good 
housing offer as part of recruitment 
package.

Cllr Rodwell / Cllr 
Ogungbose

Develop key worker Housing 
opportunities (reasonable 
rents/shared ownership etc.) 
for social workers and 
teachers

November 
2014

Steven Tucker A key worker strategy will be 
implemented to increase the supply 
of affordable housing and improve 
access to housing for key workers 
and local working residents on 
moderate incomes, across the next 
four year period 2015-19. A detailed 
policy with specific targets will be 
developed and implemented for 
2015 onwards.

Cllr Ashraf

6.1 Need to improve 
recruitment and retention 
in order to reduce agency 
costs and improve the 
service

Implement exit interview 
programme to identify why 
permanent staff leave and 
questionnaires to establish 
why staff are unwilling to 
become permanent/accept 
short term contracts. Feed 
information into Recruitment 

October 
2014

Ann Graham A social care survey monkey exit 
strategy is operational and staff 
leaving are invited to complete it. 
The Divisional Director, Complex 
Needs & Social Care is holding face 
to face exit interviews with staff who 
take up the offer. This information is 
feeding into the recruitment 

Cllr Turner

P
age 128



Action Plan. programme. 
Ensure Star Awards and 
Writer of the Month systems 
recognise and celebrate the 
staff that are loyal and 
effective long term officers eg 
five Children’s Services 
nominations per year

Annually Ann Graham The Director’s Writer of the Month 
awards inform staff nominated for 
Star Awards. 

Cllr Ogungbose

6.2 Ensure the growth 
agenda broadens the 
social and economic mix, 
making the case to 
government for increased 
funding and looking for 
increased resources from 
within the council. 
Agenda must also 
include recognition of the 
medium term increases 
and how to respond to 
these.

Integrate into November 
Cabinet report on growth – 
see 5.2 

Develop clear analysis of 
pressures with linked 
information from housing 
colleagues

Steve Cox See 5.2 Cllr Geddes

Review draft Ofsted 
implementation plan to 
ensure picks up all these 
issues and actions will be 
effective in improving service 
and reducing costs, including 
corporate issues from Ofsted 
linked to this action plan

October 
2014

Helen Jenner 
with Karen 
Wheeler/ 
Jonathan Bunt

Complete – the Ofsted action plan 
reflects these issues
Ofsted Action Plan accepted by 
OFSTED as meeting inspection 
recommendations, feedback 
received 20/11/14

Cllr Turner6.3 Bring in external 
expertise to undertake a 
review into how children’s 
services operates, which 
would include looking at 
ways of operating in 
other authorities to help 
reform of services and 
scale back the volume of 
delivery   

Appoint external expert 
providing corporate input 
leading to development of a 
demand strategy (linked to 
growth strategy and Housing 
Strategy). Specific focus on 
cost reduction as well as 
demand management.

October 
2014

Ann Graham East London Solutions Project with 
leadership from John Harris (LGA).   
Impower analysing workflow in 
Children’s social care, Isos helping 
review No Recourse to Public Funds 
and Court-directed contact. Nicky 
Pace bringing in expertise and 
experience from her work in 
Thurrock.

Cllr Turner

6.4 More needs to be done to 
reform services and scale 
back the volume of 

Begin implementation of cost 
reduction programme, 
ensuring it is shared with the 

December 
2014

Ann Graham Children’s Services Financial 
Efficiency programme established. 
Reported to Cabinet 18/11/14

Cllr Turner

P
age 129



delivery if the vision, 
savings requirement and 
core business are to be 
achieved together. This 
includes understanding of 
all staff around the need 
for reducing costs within 
the service

Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board. Programme 
must reduce costs but 
maintain safe levels of 
safeguarding in the borough.

Growth Strategy recognises 
demand as well as 
opportunity (see 5.2)

October 
2014

Steve Cox See 5.2 Cllr Geddes6.5 The issue of increasing 
demand is a corporate 
issue. Corporate 
leadership and working is 
required to develop a 
strategy to deal with the 
issues of demand

Model projections for short, 
medium and longer term 
position in terms of:

a) Housing availability, 
quality, affordability, 
tenure

b) Council resources 
/budget

c) Partners resources
d) Council service 

provision

All – linked to 
actions above

a) In progress

b) Council budget and resource 
estimates completed though subject 
to ongoing review as other items are 
completed and announcements 
made.

c) An approach to this needs to be 
developed and agreed with input 
from all and identifying key partners 
etc.  Work has taken place in some 
services particularly in developing 
savings proposals in consultation 
with partners.

d) See b) above - work is 
commencing to look at the future 
operating model in line with the 
priorities and resources available to 
deliver them and service provision 
following decisions on the budget for 
2015/16 and 2016//17..

Cllr Rodwell

P
age 130



Priority Performance 2014/15 - Quarterly Indicators

Ref.
No.

Key Performance Measure Departmental Responsibility
Historical Performance Last Year's Performance 2014/15 Current Performance Results

2014/15 Target
Performance
against
Target

Target RAG Direction Of Travel
Benchmarking

2008/09
Result

2009/10
Result

2010/11
Result

2011/12
Result 

2012/13
Result

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3
End of Year
2013/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2  Qtr 3 
End of Year
2014/15

London
Average 

National
Average 

Encouraging Civic Pride

1 Repeat incidents of domestic violence
Adult and Community Services

--- --- 32.0% 22.0% 21.0% 26% 23% 24% 25% 26% 22%
No more than

28%
On Target G h 19% 24%

2 The number of criminal damage offences
Adult and Community Services

--- --- --- 1,928 1,583 358 754 1190 1,583 369 789 Reduction On Target A  n 7.0% N/A

3 The number of serious youth violence offences
Adult and Community Services

--- --- 207 236 145 31 75 120 176 41 83 Reduction On Target A  n 0%
No Change

N/A

4 The number of residential burglaries
Adult and Community Services

--- --- 1,573 1,710 1,835 400 699 1,101 1,470 261 576 -8% On Target G n -15% N/A

5 The number of calls to the Council reporting Anti-Social Behaviour
Elevate

--- --- --- --- 6,445 1,409 2,951 3,860 5,106 1,340 2,795 Reduction On Target G n N/A N/A

6 The percentage of household waste that is recycled or composted Environment 24.91% 31.93% 30.9% 29.49% 26.38% 28.84% 27.91% 26.46% 24.80% 27.11% Awaiting Data N/A N/A N/A h N/A N/A

7 The percentage of land that has unacceptable levels of litter Environment 4.74% 10% 8% 7% 4%
3%

(Tranche 1)
3%

(Tranche 2)
1%

(Tranche 3)
2% 1% Awaiting Data 7% On Target G h N/A N/A

8
Care leavers in employment, education or training (aged 19)
(From 2013/14 onwards this indicator changed and now includes 19, 20 and 21
year olds)

Children's Services 49.20% 48.65% 48.98% 40.40% 56.40% 44.1% 50.0% 48.0% 51% 51% 54% 60% On Target A  h
Not Yet

Publishe
d

45%

9 The percentage of Council employees form BME communities Human Resources 18.34% 18.47% 19.05% 21.28% 21.97% 22.39% 23.66% 24.60% 25.08% 27.25% 28.98% N/A N/A N/A h N/A N/A

Enabling Social Responsibility

10 The number of leisure centre visits Adult and Community Services --- --- 841,696 993,039 1,101,565 306,907 616,954 909,741 1,244,668 332,838 659,947 1,270,000 On Target G n Local Measure

11 The number of Active Age (over 60's) leisure memberships Adult and Community Services --- --- 2,648 3,123 3,245 3,260 3,324 3,293 3,513 3,649 3,881 3,800
Exceeding

Target G h Local Measure

12 The number of active volunteers Adult and Community Services Not Available - New Local Measure 1,733 510 901 1,282 1,719 344 565
200

Per Month
Below Target A i Local Measure

13
The proportion of social care clients accessing care and support in the home via
direct payments

Adult and Community Services --- --- --- 51.6% 49.07% 57.0% 65.5% 69.4% 72.3% 74.7% 75.2% Increase
Exceeding

Target G h Local Measure

14
Number of successful smoking quitters aged 16 and over through cessation
service

Public Health 1,022 1,303 1,115 1,115 1,069 431
325

(756)
233

(989)
185

(1,174)
124

109
(233)

700
(175 Per Qtr)

Below Target R i Local Measure

15
Percentage uptake of MMR (measles, mumps and rubella)  vaccination (2
doses) at 5 years old

Public Health 52.9% 69.9% 70.5% 81.96% 85.5% 83.8% 85.4% 80.9%

81.7%
(Jan 14-Mar 14

only)

Awaiting final
2013/14 end of

year data

82.2% Awaiting Data 95% Below Target R h 79.9% 88.5%

16
Percentage uptake of DTaP/IPV (diphtheria, tetanus, whooping cough and
polio) vaccination at age 5

Public Health N/A 71.43% 70.5% 82.65% 86.4% 85.1% 85.5% 82.4%

82.4%
(Jan 14-Mar 14

only)
Awaiting final

2013/14 end of
year data

82.8% Awaiting Data 85.1% Below Target A h 77.3% 88.6%

17
The total Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC)  Days in month (per 100,000)
(Better Care Fund Indicator)

Adult and Community Services
372.1

(Average)
435.2

(Average)
302.2

(Average)
187.0

(Average)
121.8

(Average)
146.8

(Average)
143.2

(Average)
123.5

(Average)
165.3

(Average)
225

(Average)
Exceeding

Target G i N/A 280

18 Children's Social Care Assessments completed within timescales (45 days) Children's Services Not available due to definition change 48.1% 56% 67% 78% 70% 76% 80% On Target A h Not Yet
Publishe

d

Not Yet
Publishe

d19 The number of child weight referrals Public Health Awaiting Data Awaiting Data Awaiting Data N/A N/A N/A N/A
20 The number of child weight referrals completed Public Health Awaiting Data Awaiting Data Awaiting Data N/A N/A N/A N/A

21 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or training (NEET) Children's Services 8.9% 7.9% 6.9% 6.5% 5.4% 7.6% 15.3% 6.6% 5.80% 6.50%
At National

Level
Below Target R i 3.8% 5.2%

22 The percentage of primary schools rated as outstanding or good Children's Services 50.0% 47% 55% 59% 64% 64% 64% 64% 67% 67% 71%
100%

By Dec 2015
Below Target R h 84.0% 80.0%

23 The percentage of secondary schools rated as outstanding or good Children's Services 56.0% 63% 67% 67% 89% 89% 89% 78% 67% 67% 75%
100%

By Dec 2015
Below Target R h 83.0% 71.0%

24 Pupil attendance at primary school Children's Services --- 94.7% 94.9% 95.7% 95.6% --- --- --- 96% Awaiting Data
Above National

Average
On Target G N/A 96.0% 96.1%

25 Pupil attendance at secondary school Children's Services --- 93.1% 93.5% 94.7% 94.9% --- --- --- 95% Awaiting Data
Above National

Average
On Target A N/A 95.3% 94.9%

26
Timeliness of children in care placed for adoption following an agency decision
that the child should be placed for adoption

Children's Services --- --- 81.8% 63.6% 66.70% 100% 100% 60% 53% 54% 58% 65-70% Below Target A h
Not Yet

Publishe
d

74.0%

27
The number of Common Assessment Frameworks / Family Common
Assessment Frameworks (CAFs/fCAFs) initiated

Children's Services --- --- 1054 832 721 206
186

(392)
260

(652)
339
(991)

303
250

(553)
N/A N/A N/A i N/A N/A

28
The percentage of children referred to Children's Social Care with Common
Assessment Frameworks / Family Common Assessment Frameworks
(CAFs/fCAFs) in place

Children's Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure 7% 6% N/A N/A N/A h N/A N/A

Growing the Borough

29 The number of long-term empty properties Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure Awaiting Data 292 < 300 On Target G N/A Local Measure

30 Average time taken to re-let local authority housing (calendar days) Housing Services
No Data

Available
52.47 days 30 days 29 days 43 days 63.33 days 76 days 68 days 71 days 73 days 68 days 30 days Below Target R h Local Measure

31 The number of licensed landlords Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure Awaiting Data
8749

(Applications)
N/A N/A N/A N/A Local Measure

32 The percentage of Council Housing rent collected Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure 97.49% 97.05% 97.35% 97.16% 96.80% 97.20% On Target  G h Local Measure

33 The percentage of housing repairs and maintenance appointments made and
kept

Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure 70.7% 89.4% N/A N/A N/A h Local Measure

34 The percentage of all housing repairs and maintenance jobs completed on time Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure 90.5% 89.6% N/A N/A N/A i Local Measure

35 The percentage of urgent repairs completed within Government time limits Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure 95.5% 97.5% N/A N/A N/A h Local Measure

36 The number of homeless applications received Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure 396 452 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

37 The number of homeless applications accepted Housing Services
No Data

Available
224 269 246 664 205 474 707 874

161
(41%)

194
(43%)

45%
Exceeding

Target  G i N/A N/A

38 The number of households living in temporary accommodation Housing Services 636 568 709 1,155 1,188 1,240 1,312 1,375 1,393 1,433 1,376 1,400
Exceeding

Target  G h N/A N/A

39 Take up of housing offer by new social workers in Children's Services Housing Services Not Available - New Local Measure Not Available - New Local Measure 0 0 N/A N/A N/A n N/A N/A

40 The percentage of economically active people in employment Strategy Team 63.40% 62% 62.0% 64.3% 62.5% 63.7% 64.5% 63.2% Awaiting Data Awaiting Data N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

41 The number of apprenticeships within the Council Employment & Skills Data Will Be Supplied By Qtr 3 89 85 N/A N/A N/A i N/A N/A

P
age 131



Ref.
No.

Key Performance Measure Departmental Responsibility
Historical Performance Last Year's Performance 2014/15 Current Performance Results

2014/15 Target
Performance
against
Target

Target RAG Direction Of Travel
Benchmarking

2008/09
Result

2009/10
Result

2010/11
Result

2011/12
Result 

2012/13
Result

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3
End of Year
2013/14

Qtr 1 Qtr 2  Qtr 3 
End of Year
2014/15

London
Average 

National
Average 

A Well Run Organisation

42 The percentage of Council Tax collected Elevate 93% 92.9% 92.9% 94.1% 94.6% 29.40% 55.60% 81.30% 94.10% 29.50% 55.70% 94.00% Below Target A  i N/A N/A

43 The percentage of rent collected including arrears brought forward Elevate Not Available - New Local Measure 96.95% Not Available - New Local Measure Awaiting Data Awaiting Data N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

44 The time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax benefit new claims Elevate Old BVPI 26 days 27 days 20.05 days 22.77% 28 days 25 days 25 days 25 days 23 days 23 days 25 days
Exceeding

Target G n N/A N/A

45 The time taken to process Housing Benefit / Council Tax benefit change events Elevate Old BVPI 14 days 16 days 13.7 days 17.92% 16 days 15 days 15 days 9 days 10 days 11 days 14 days
Exceeding

Target G i N/A N/A

46 The average number of days lost due to sickness absence Human Resources 10.27 days 10.5 days 9.08 days 9.06 days 9.76% 8.12 days 7.84 days 7.81 days 7.88 days 7.38 days 6.26 days N/A N/A N/A h N/A N/A

47 The percentage of Stage 1 complaints responded to within deadline Elevate No Data Available 60% 76% 68%
89%

(78% YTD)
95%

(83% YTD)
96%

(87% YTD)
97% Awaiting Data 100% On Target A h Local measure

48 The percentage of Stage 2 complaints responded to within deadline Elevate No Data Available 58% 65% 61%
85%

(71% YTD)
92%

(75% YTD)
85%

(78% YTD)
69% Awaiting Data 100% Below Target R i Local measure

49 The percentage of Stage 3 complaints responded to within deadline Elevate No Data Available 71% 86% 79%
68%

(75% YTD)
82%

(79% YTD)
82%

(77% YTD)
100% Awaiting Data 100% On Target G h Local measure

50 The percentage of complaints upheld Elevate No Data Available 48% 34% 34%
34%

(34% YTD)
37%

(35% YTD)
35%

(35% YTD)
Awaiting Data Awaiting Data N/A N/A N/A N/A

51 The percentage of member enquiries responded to within deadline Elevate No Data Available 82% 83% 87%
90%

(89% YTD)
98%

(91% YTD)
96%

(93% YTD)
99% Awaiting Data 100% Below Target A h Local measure

52  The percentage of staff who are satisfied working for the Council Human Resources Not Available - New Local Measure 65% No Survey 62% No Survey 72%
70%

(Target  To Be
Agreed)

Exceeding
Target G h Local measure

53 The percentage of staff who believe change is managed well in the Council Human Resources Not Available - New Local Measure 64% No Survey 56% No Survey 31%
50%

(Target  To Be
Agreed)

Below Target R i Local measure

54
The percentage of staff who believe our IT systems meet the needs of the
business

Human Resources Not Available - New Local Measure Not Asked No Survey Not Asked No Survey 37%
45%

(Target  To Be
Agreed)

Below Target R i Local measure

55 The current revenue budget account position (over or under spend) Finance
No Data

Available
£4.4m

Over Spend
£2.8m

Over Spend
£2m

Under Spend
£3.11m

Under Spend
£1.043m

Under Spend
£1.793m

Under Spend
£3.193m

Under Spend
£4.6m

Under Spend
£2.5m

Over Spend
£2.9m

Over Spend
N/A N/A N/A n Local measure

56 The percentage of the planned in year capital programme delivered in year Finance New Performance Indicator
78%

Delivered
Forecast Of

100%
Forecast Of

98%
Forecast Of

93.8%
85.50% Forecast Of 99% Forecast Of 93% N/A N/A N/A i Local measure

P
age 132



Priority Performance 2014/15 - Annual Indicators Appendix A

Ref.
No.

Key Performance Measure Departmental Responsibility

Historical Performance Last Year's Performance
Current Year's Performance

2014/15 Performance
this time last

year

Percentage improvement /
decline

Benchmarking

2008/09
Result

2009/10
Result

2010/11
Result

2011/12
Result 

2012/13
Result

End of Year
2013/14

2013/14
Target

Target RAG
End of Year
2014/15

2014/15 Target
London
Average 

National
Average 

Encouraging Civic Pride

57
The percentage of people who believe people from different backgrounds get
on well together

Strategy Team -
Sal Asghar

49.1% 56.0%
Survey not
conducted

52% Survey not conducted Survey not conducted Local measure

58
The percentage of people who perceive people not treating one another with
respect and consideration to be a problem in their area

Strategy Team -
Sal Asghar

59.2% 56.0%
Survey not
conducted

58% Survey not conducted Survey not conducted Local measure

59
The percentage of Looked After Children (LAC) achieving 5 GCSE grades A*-C
(including English and Maths)

Children's Services -
Vikki Rix

2014/15 data
relates to

Summer 2015
exams

i h n %

60
The percentage of pupils eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) achieving 5 GCSE
grades A*-C (including English and Maths

Children's Services -
Vikki Rix

33.3% 38.5% 45.5% 49.5% 49.1%

2014/15 data
relates to

Summer 2015
exams

i h n %

Enabling Social Responsibility

61 The percentage of children in Reception recorded as obese
Children's Services -
Vikki Rix

12.1% 14.1% 13.8% 13.7% 13.2%
Data due
December
2014

14.0% Awaiting data i h n %

62 The percentage of children in Year 6 recorded as obese
Children's Services -
Vikki Rix

24.2% 23.6% 24.2% 26.9% 25.1%
Data due
December
2014

24% Awaiting data i h n %

63
The percentage of pupils achieving 5 GCSE grades A* - C (including Maths and
English)

Children's Services -
Vikki Rix

45.1% 51.7% 57.2% 58.6% 60.2% Awaiting data
At or above

national
average

2013/14 data
relates to

Summer 2014
exams

2014/15 data
relates to

Summer 2015
exams

i h n %

64
The percentage of pupils achieving Level 4 or above in both English and Maths
at Key Stage 2

Children's Services -
Vikki Rix

72% 70% 71% 78.3% 75.0% Awaiting data
At or above

national
average

2013/14 data
relates to

Summer 2014
exams

2014/15 data
relates to

Summer 2015
exams

i h n %

Growing the Borough

65 The number of affordable homes delivered
Regeneration -
Dan Pope

144 372 347
575

(provisional)
472 by 2014 G i h n % Local measure

66 The percentage of Council homes made decent
Housing Services -
Tom Hart i h n %

67 The percentage of working age population with no qualifications
Strategy Team -
Stuart Whitaker

23.9%
(2008)

18.9%
(2009)

17%
(2010)

13.8%
(2011)

13.9%
(2012)

15.7%
(2013)

Achieve London
average by

2015 
R i h n %

68 The percentage of working age population qualified to at least Level 4
Strategy Team -
Stuart Whitaker

20.5%
(2008)

22.4%
(2009)

26.6%
(2010)

27.1%
(2011)

26%
(2012)

28.2%
(2013)

3%-4% gap
with London

average
R i h n %

69 Median weekly earnings for full-time workers living in the area
Strategy Team -
Stuart Whitaker

£499.40
(2008)

£523.70
(2009)

£496.70
(2010)

£500.80
(2011)

£549.20
(2012)

£521.60
(2013)

£25 gap with
London
average

(£588.30)  
R i h n %

70 The percentage of working age people on out of work benefits
Strategy Team -
Stuart Whitaker

16.9%
(May 2008)

18.3%
(May 2009)

17.7%
(May 2010)

17.2%
(May 2011)

17.1%
(May 2012)

16.1%
(May 2013)

Not
applicable

n/a Increase / decrease %

P
age 133



Welfare Reform Indicators - 2014/15 Performance

Indicator Source Frequency

Historical Performance Results 2012/13 Performance Results
Target
2012/13

2013/14  Performance Results 

Target 2013/14

2014/15 Performance Results

Target 2014/15

Benchmarking data Trend since
same period
last year

% change
Target
RAG
rating

End of Year
2008/09

End of Year
2009/10

End of Year
2010/11

End of Year
2011/12

Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13
End of Year
2012/13

Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 End of Year 2013/14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 End of Year 2014/15 London National

Benefits

Percentage of Council Tax collected Elevate Monthly 93% 92.9% 92.9% 94.1% --- 29.4% --- 55.5% --- 82.06% --- 94.6% 94.5% --- 29.40% --- 55.60% --- 81.30% --- 97.35% 93.5% 11.60% 20.70% 29.50% 38.50% 46.70% 55.70% 94.0% 96.3% 97.3%  0.17% G
The projected percentage of Council Tax collected Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 89.5% 92.0% 93.5% Local Measure i -2.5% A
Percentage non domestic rates collected Elevate Monthly 96.1% 95.9% 94.8% 96.4% --- 32.76% --- 55.5% --- 79.1% --- 95.1% 97.1% --- 32.1% --- 56.10% --- 80.32% --- 96.96% 97.4% 8.62% 24.80% 32.80% 40.60% 48.20% 98.2% 97.8%  1.9% A
Total housing benefit recipients Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator 27,384 27,540 27,367 27,393 27,414 27,379 27,500 27,399 27,481 27,456 24,340

Awaiting
confirmation

N/A 22,960 23,166 23,207 23,159 23,102 23,047 23,048 23,037 22,948 22,814 22,876 22,799 N/A 22,719 22,734 22,831 22,874 22,913 N/A Local Measure Reduction -6.0% N/A

Total Council Tax Support recipients Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 23,694 23,679 22,656 23,644 23,632 23,617 N/A 23,603 23,594 23,576 22,480 22,408 N/A Local Measure Reduction -2.6% N/A

Residents claiming Jobseekers Allowance NOMIS Monthly
6,075

(5.4%)
6,844

(6.0%)
6,889

(5.8%)
7,526

(6.3%) 
7,375

(6.2%)
7,217

(6.1%)
6,997

(5.9%)
6,943

(5.8%)
6,791

(5.7%)
6,954

(5.8%)
7,155
(6%)

7,212
(6.1%)

7,131
(6%)

7,233
(6.1%)

7,401
(6.2%)

7,323
(6.1%)

N/A
7,156

(6.0%)
6,937

(5.8%)
6,659

(5.6%)
6,432

(5.4%)
6,244

(5.2%)
5,874

(4.9%)
5,546

(4.6%)
5,350

(4.4%)
5,153

(4.3%)
5,197

(4.3%)
5,142

(4.3%)
5,101
(4.2%)

N/A
4,905

(4.0%)
4,789

(3.9%)
4,453

(3.6%)
4,409

(3.6%)
4,286
(3.5%)

N/A 2.5% 2.3% Reduction -33% N/A

The number of people affected by the Benefit Cap Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 194 448 624 804 905 1,019 1,163 1,277 N/A 278 552 788 1,050 1,220 N/A Local Measure Increase N/A

The number of people affected by the Benefit Cap who have
returned to work / got jobs

Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 0 2
22

(24)
6

(30)
10

(40)
4

(44)
1

(45)
45 N/A 1

1
(2)

0
(2)

6
(8)

0
(8)

N/A Local Measure Reduction N/A

Total Discretionary Housing Payment budget Elevate Annual New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator Annual Indicator £1,310,802 N/A Annual Indicator £1,182,437 N/A Local Measure N/A

Total amount of Discretionary Housing Payments committed spend Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator £0.00
£5,146.56

(£5,146.56)
£29,082.61

(£34,229.17)
£11,218.20

(£45,447.37)
£34,212.87

(£79,660.24)
£103,414.15

(£183,074.39)
£24,492.17

(£207,566.56)
£259,814.69

(£467,381.25)
£177,325.44

(£644,706.69)
£190,096.43

(£834,803.12)
£266,742.19

(£1,101,545.30)
£188,150.20

(£1,289,695.59)
£1,114,182 £18,683.10

£131,118.28
(£149,801.38)

£174,868.13
(£324,669.551)

£100,665.24
£425,334.75)

£57,504.29
(£482,839.04)

£80,596.77
(£563,435.81)

Local Measure N/A G
Percentage of Discretionary Housing Payments committed spend
against budget

Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 0% 0.39% 2.61% 3.47% 6.08% 13.97% 15.84% 35.66% 49.18% 63.69% 84.04% 98.39% 85% 1.58% 12.67% 27.46% 35.97% 40.83% 47.65% Local Measure N/A G
Number of Monthly discretionary Housing Payments made
(cumulative)

Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator 36 82 127 153 201 205 246 319 383 403 503 611 N/A 0 11 48 79 143 312 340 510 677 863 1,138 1,380 N/A 22 108 300 435 499 588 Local Measure N/A

Percentage of all school children eligible for Free School Meals
(FSM)

Children's Services Annual
No data

available
No data

available
24.8% 28.7% Annual Indicator 27% N/A Annual Indicator 24% N/A Annual Indicator 24.20% 16.90% N/A

Of those eligible, the percentage of children who take up Free
School Meals (FSM) 

Children's Services Annual
No data

available
No data

available
81.7% 74.5% Annual Indicator 78.9% 74.3% Annual Indicator 75% 74.0% Annual Indicator 85.0% 83.2%  4.4% G

Housing and Homelessness

Percentage of rent collected   Elevate Quarterly 97.2% 96.0% 96.8% 95.5% --- 97.18% --- 96.56% --- 96.24% --- 96.95% 96.8% --- 97.49% --- 97.05% --- 96.73% --- 97.35% 96.5% 95.15% 95.23% 97.16% 96.96% 95.63% 96.80% 97.20% Local Measure i -0.25% G
The percentage of people in rent arrears Elevate Quarterly New Performance Indicator --- 45.4% --- --- --- 42.8% N/A --- 41.8% --- 48.18% --- 42.66% 40.83% 41.21% 35.85% N/A 38.15% 40.99% 38.92% Local Measure Reduction 0.1% N/A

The number of homeless application
Housing and
Environment

Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 120
118

(238)
151

(389)
159

(548)
173

(721)
179

(900)
207

(1,107)
197

(1,304)
121

(1,425)
147

(1,572)
165

(1,737)
160

(1,897)
N/A Local Measure Increase N/A

The number of homeless applications accepted
Housing and
Environment

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
113 246 --- 48 --- 119 --- 203 --- 664 N/A 61

77
(138)

67
(205)

98
(303)

69
(372)

102
(474)

94
(568)

91
(659)

48
(707)

55
(762)

57
(819)

55
(874)

N/A 359.4 359.4 N/A Increase 31.6% N/A

The number of households living in temporary accommodation
Housing and
Environment

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
709 1,155 --- 1,172 --- 1,190 --- 1,187 --- 1,188 N/A 1218 1299 1240 1294 1299 1312 1314 1373 1,375 1,382 1,377 1,393 N/A 1409 1438 1433 1423 1424 1189 1189 N/A i 17.25% N/A

The number of homeless applications from families 
Housing and
Environment

Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator Data available at the end of year Data not available Local measure Awaiting data

The number of families whose homeless applications were
accepted 

Housing and
Environment

Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator Data available at the end of year
120

(Jan 2014)
Local measure Awaiting data

The number of evictions from Council homes
Housing and
Environment

Quarterly
No data

available
No data

available
97 29 --- --- --- --- 17 N/A 12

13
(25)

8
(33)

10
(43)

7
(50)

10
(60)

12
(72)

6
(78)

3
(81)

12
(93)

3
(96)

9
(105)

N/A 11
11

(22)
7

(29)
8

(35)
6
(41)

Local measure Increase 517% N/A

The number of harassment and illegal evictions
Housing and
Environment

Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 41
14

(55)
9

(64)
16

(80)
9

(89)
9
(98)

N/A 12
17

(29)
18

(45)
24

(69)
12

(81)
8
(89)

Local measure
Average monthly

decrease
N/A

The number of people affected by under-occupancy / bedroom tax Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator n/a 1,646 1,629 1,594 1,599 1,636 1,607 1,626 1,636 1,606 1,548 1,620 N/A 575 648 622 1,254 Local measure  -1.6% N/A

The percentage of those affected by under-occupancy / bedroom
tax who are in arrears (all charges incl. water and sewage charges;
heating; caretaking; non dependant deductions)

Elevate Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator n/a 52.74% 51.38% 49% 50.72% 48.72% 46.67% 51.58% 51.80% 45.45% 41.41% 41.1% N/A 48.7% 47.3% 50.0% 40.80% Local measure  -22.1% N/A

How many people have down-sized their property as a result of
under occupancy / bedroom tax

Housing and
Environment

Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 10
9

(19)
10

(29)
12

(41)
6

(47)
10

(57)
10

(67)
8

(75)
6

(81)
3

(84)
10

(94)
5
(99)

N/A 2
2

(4)
4

(8)
1

(9)
2

(11)
2
(13)

Local measure Increase N/A

How many people want to downsize and are on the waiting list as a
result of under occupany / bedroom tax

Housing and
Environment

Monthly New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator New Performance Indicator 176 187 --- 213 227 N/A Local measure Increase N/A

Skills and Employment

Percentage of 16 to 18 year olds who are NEET Children's Services Quarterly 9.0% 7.9% 6.90% 6.50% --- 6.2% --- 7.9% --- 5.1% --- 5.40% < 6% --- 7.6% --- 15.3% --- 6.6% --- 5.8% < 6% --- 6.5% ---
Data not yet
published

--- ---
At national

level
3.8% 5.2%  1.1% A

Percentage of working age population with no qualifications NOMIS Annual
23.9%
(2008)

18.9%
(2009)

17%
(2010)

13.8%
(2011)

Annual Indicator
13.9%
(2012)

Achieve London
average by 2015 Annual Indicator

15.7%
(2013)

Achieve London
average by 2015 Annual Indicator

Achieve London
average by 2015 7.8% 9.3% i 1.8% R

Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19 Children's Services Annual 35.6% 40.3% 42.90% 49.20% Annual Indicator 49% 55% by 2013 Annual Indicator Available Spring 2015 TBC Annual Indicator TBC Awaiting data

Working age population qualified to at least Level 1 NOMIS Annual
60.5%
(2008)

66.8%
(2009)

70.4%
(2010)

74.7%
(2011)

Annual Indicator
75.3%
(2012)

N/A Annual Indicator
71.9%
(2013)

N/A Annual Indicator N/A 84.2% 84.4% i -3.4% N/A

Working age population qualified to at least Level 2 NOMIS Annual
46.6%
(2008)

52.8%
(2009)

54.8%
(2010)

59%
(2011)

Annual Indicator
61.7%
(2012)

N/A Annual Indicator
56.9%
(2013)

N/A Annual Indicator N/A 75.6% 72.5% i -4.8% N/A

Working age population qualified to at least Level 3 NOMIS Annual
33.4%
(2008)

39.2%
(2009)

37.5%
(2010)

42.5%
(2011)

Annual Indicator
43.6%
(2012)

N/A Annual Indicator
42.7%
(2013)

N/A Annual Indicator N/A 64.0% 55.8% i -0.9% N/A

Working age population qualified to at least Level 4 NOMIS Annual
20.5%
(2008)

22.4%
(2009)

26.6%
(2010)

27.1%
(2011)

Annual Indicator
26%

(2012)
3%-4% gap

with London
average

Annual Indicator
28.2%
(2013)

3%-4% gap
with London

average

Annual Indicator
3%-4% gap

with London
average

49.1% 35.2%  2.2% R
Percentage of economically active people in employment NOMIS Quarterly 63.40% 62% 62.0% 64.3% --- 64.9% --- 63.2% --- 62.3% --- 62.9%

2%-3% gap
with London

average

--- 62.5% --- 63.7% --- 64.5% --- 63.2%
2%-3% gap

with London
average

---
Data not yet
published

---
Data not yet
published

--- ---
2%-3% gap

with London
average

70.1% 71.5%  3.5% A
Percentage of people unemployed NOMIS Quarterly 9.3% 12.3% 12.7% 12.4% --- 12.2% --- 12.5% --- 13.3% --- 13.4% N/A --- 14.6% --- 14.6% --- 13.5% --- 12.7% N/A ---

Data not yet
published

---
Data not yet
published

--- --- N/A 8.2% 7.2%  -0.7% N/A

Median earnings for full time workers living in the area (per week) NOMIS Annual
£499.40
(2008)

£523.70
(2009)

£496.70
(2010)

£500.80
(2011)

Annual Indicator
£549.20
(2012)

£25 gap with
London

average  
Annual Indicator

£521.60
(2013)

£25 gap with
London

average  
Annual Indicator

£25 gap with
London

average  
£613.30 £518.10 i -5.0% R

Health and Social Care

The number of children in care Children's Services Quarterly
No data

available
No data

available
410 427 --- 432 --- 433 --- 418 --- 420 < 440 --- 418 --- 444 --- 444 --- 460 < 440 443 448 467 450 429 430 N/A N/A Reduction -3.2% N/A

The number of Children's Social Care contacts Children's Services Monthly 583
880

(1,463)
664

(2,127)
729

(2,856)
559

(3,415)
611

(4,026)
821

(4,847)
650

(5,497)
613

(6,110)
820

(6,930)
763

(7,693)
8,475 N/A 661

663
(1,324)

769
(2,093)

726
(2,819)

722
(3,541)

601
(4,142)

755
(4,897)

711
(6,034)

602
(6,675)

680
(7,408)

625
(8,115)

8856 N/A 591
612

(1,203)
663

(1,866)
665

(2,531)
510

(3,041)
719

(3,760)
N/A Not available Reduction -9.2% N/A

The number of Children's Social Care referrals Children's Services Monthly 171
219

(390)
225

(615)
199

(814)
195

(1,009)
191

(1,200)
197

(1,397)
219

(1,616)
175

(1,791)
259

(2,050)
271

(2,321)
2,586 N/A 136

149
(285)

152
(437)

187
(624)

144
(768)

156
(924)

230
(1,154)

264
(1,722)

197
(1,935)

305
(2,271)

294
(2,609)

2890 N/A 242
309

(551)
357

(908)
406

(1,314)
270

(1,584)
411

(1,995)
N/A Not available Increase 116% N/A

The number of people receiving Mental Health Services NELFT Quarterly
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
New indicator - data not available

2,866
(Sept 2012)

N/A New indicator - data not available --- 3,126 --- 3,055 --- 3,166 N/A --- Awaiting data --- Awaiting data N/A Local Measure Increase N/A

The total number of Local Emergency Support Scheme (LESS)
applications 

Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
New indicator - data not available New indicator N/A 150

214
(364)

253
(617)

323
(940)

267
(1,207)

216
(1,423)

236
(1,659)

261
(1,920)

215
(2,135)

365
(2,500)

309
(2,809)

339
(3148)

N/A 297
276

(573)
325

(898)
383

(1281)
339

(1620)
339
(1959)

N/A Local Measure Steady monthly average N/A

The number of new credit union loans given
Adult and
Community Services

Quarterly
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
New indicator - data not available New indicator N/A --- 28 ---

43
(71)

---
33

(104)
---

38
(142)

N/A --- 38 ---
62
(100)

--- --- N/A Local Measure
Average quarterly

increase
N/A

Crime

The number of residential burglaries
Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
1710 152 283 397 526 638 770 915 1,102 1267 1,464 1649 1,835 Reduction 151 289 400 519 617 697 843 994 1,101 1,213 1,325 1,470 Reduction 83 173 262 366 479 Reduction 1896 n/a  -22.0% G

Serious acquisitive crime rate per 1,000 population
Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
29.88 30.6 27.78 27.94 27.47 26.88 26.68 26.63 26.71 26.72 26.46 26.63 26.58 29 26.78 27.02 26.93 27.02 26.93 26.86 26.68 26.40 25.80 24.88 22.37 22.18 Reduction 22.20 21.53 20.73 20.14 19.86 Reduction 22.63 n/a  -23.0% G

The number of domestic violence offences
Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
1,770 1706 110 250 384 534 667 787 943 1,060 1,195 1,333 1,454 1,588 Reduction 140 281 430 624 789 954 1,134 1,302 1,483 1,628 1,808 1,991 n/a 172 336 (+19%) 529 793 989 n/a Local Measure Increase 25..3% N/A

Repeat incidents of domestic violence
Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
22% --- 25% --- 25% --- 22% --- 21% Reduction --- 26% --- 23% --- 24% --- 25% Reduction N/A 20% 26% 23% 23% 28% 19% 24%  G

The number of serious youth violence offences
Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
207 236 19 27 42 47 63 74 89 98 113 120 135 145 TBC 4 25 31 45 60 75 94 107 120 135 158 176 Reduction 12 23 41 54 69 Reduction London up by 18% i 15.0% R

The number of motor vehicle offences (all crimes) 
Adult and
Community Services

Monthly
No data

available
No data

available
No data

available
2609 181 388 575 769 951 1121 1361 1596 1806 2080 2374 2609 Reduction 251 506 704 943 1,157 1,364 1,578 1,800 1,962 2,149 2 2,494 Reduction 187 377 516 659 814 Reduction Local Measure  -30.0% G

P
age 134



CABINET

16 December 2014

Title: Future Delivery of Vehicle Maintenance and Related Services

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment

Open Report For Decision

Wards Affected: None Key Decision: Yes

Report Author: Beau Stanford-Francis, Contracts 
and Compliance Manager, Assets & Transport 

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8227 5629
E-mail: beau.stanford-
francis@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Divisional Director: Robin Payne, Divisional Director, Environment

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director, Adult and Community and  
Services

Summary

The Council maintains a large and diverse fleet of vehicles and machinery that are used to 
support a wide range of services. In order to ensure that service delivery is not disrupted 
and that we meet our legal as well as health and safety obligations to staff and the public 
it is vital that our vehicles and plant are well maintained. 

The current maintenance arrangement is due to expire in August 2015. The nature and 
size of the fleet is likely to change significantly in the short to medium term as budget 
savings are implemented. During this time maintaining flexibility and reducing costs will be 
vitally important.

An options analysis has been completed that takes into account the need to provide a 
flexible, cost effective service that can support the objectives of the council by creating 
opportunities for young people through apprentice positions and providing high quality 
good value services to the community such as MOT’s.

As a result of the requirement to retain flexibility and based on the projected vehicle 
maintenance budget surplus this report recommends providing an in-house vehicle 
maintenance model supported by local specialist companies.

Recommendation(s)

The Cabinet is recommended to:

(i) Approve the recommended option to ‘in-source’ the Vehicle Maintenance 
Workshop at the expiry of the current contract on 31 August 2015, including the 
transfer of the current workforce back to the Council under Transfer of 

Page 135

AGENDA ITEM 8



Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE); and

(ii) Authorise the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, in consultation 
with the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, to 
explore the potential for the incorporation of a Trading Company to facilitate 3rd 
Party Vehicle Maintenance with the objective of income generation. 

Reason(s)

In line with the requirements of the Heavy Goods and Passenger Service Vehicle 
Operator Licence Undertakings the Council has a legal obligation to ensure that the fleet 
is maintained to the required standards.

Reinstatement of the apprenticeship programme supports the Councils vision to ‘Develop 
a local, skilled workforce and improve employment opportunities’.

The use of local businesses to provide specialised vehicle maintenance services support 
the Councils commitment to ‘Growing the Borough’ 

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 The Council is required to have a robust and auditable maintenance arrangement in 
place as part of the obligations of its Operators Licence. Failure to have adequate 
maintenance in place will lead to the suspension or removal of the Operators 
Licence. If this was to happen then front line services across the Council will be 
severely disrupted and in many cases cease completely.

1.2 The requirement for services to make savings has had an effect on the size of the 
fleet. Services are increasingly looking to alternative methods of service delivery for 
example; double shifting and the use of multi purpose vehicles to reduce the 
requirement for cover vehicles.  These changes have resulted in an ongoing 
reduction in the size of the fleet. The current round of savings proposals and the 
need to make savings on top of those means that the fleet size over the next 3 
years is very uncertain and likely to change considerably.

1.3 Services have been consulted to determine what maintenance requirements they 
have over and above satisfying the terms of the Operators Licence. The feedback 
from services is that they require a local and flexible solution. This service needs to 
be local to maintain transport cost, so that reactive maintenance can be undertaken 
quickly to minimise disruption to services and so that services that operate a split 
shift can have vehicles maintained in down time. As further savings are required 
flexible operating practices will need to be considered to reduce downtime during 
shifts. 

1.4 The Council currently operates 420 vehicles and over 600 items of machinery. 
These are maintained at the Vehicle Maintenance Workshop located at Frizlands 
Depot. The workshop employs 10 staff qualified in vehicle maintenance. In addition 
to maintaining the borough’s corporate fleet, the workshop maintains a number of 
community transport vehicles and also offers MOT’s to members of the public. The 
workshop building is owned by the Council and is fully equipped to carry out a wide 

Page 136



range of vehicle maintenance functions. 

1.5 In 2009 to address the Council’s ageing fleet profile a procurement process took 
place. The Council undertook the procurement process in 2009 prior to the Elevate 
Partnership. The contract included the supply of new vehicles on a lease basis, this 
included fixed price maintenance. The inclusion of fixed price maintenance in the 
vehicle agreements created TUPE implications. This ultimately led to the inclusion 
of the workshop facility in the letting of the contract. After extensive negotiations the 
contract was let to Translinc ltd in August 2011 for a 4 year term. The contract is 
currently run by Kier following a takeover of Translinc by May Gurney and the 
subsequent buy out of May Gurney by Kier.

2. Current status

2.1. The business case for the current contract has a number of fundamental problems:

2.1.1 The full volume of work delivered by the workshop was not considered. The current 
contract considers work that is related to the scheduled maintenance of vehicles 
only. This scheduled work was used as the basis for the calculation of the contract 
rates. There is however a large number of reactive works that take place which 
amount to £550,000 pa, these works are in effect ‘out of scope’ of the current 
contract. If this reactive activity was considered in the initial tender then the 
economies of scale that it would generate would have considerably reduced unit 
prices within the contract.

2.1.2 The contract was set up in such a way that all new vehicles would be leased at the 
start of the contract and on a 4 year lease term. This was not realistic; services 
were at different stages in the replacement cycle meaning that new fleet 
procurement has been staggered, and some vehicles have a working life of over 4 
years meaning that to procure on a 4 year basis would not have been best value for 
money. The Council is in a situation where at contract end the majority of the fleet 
has a significant period of time to run. Any incoming supplier would be required to 
maintain vehicles from a mid point in their lifespan. This makes a like for like re-
procurement exercise far more expensive.

Figure 1: Current Contract Spend 

Cost Category Cost Line £PA notes
Vehicle 
Finance £1,833,970.92

These costs are fixed 
for the duration of 
vehicle lease 
agreements.

Vehicle Contract 
Hire 

Generally Scheduled 
Maintenance Vehicle Fixed Price 

Maintenance £862,055.76
Variable cost upon 
contract expiry. 
Opportunity to save.

Out of Scope Works 

Generally 
Reactive 
Maintenance

Fair, Non-Fair Wear 
and Tear works and 
customer requests £600,000*

Variable cost 
Significant 
opportunity to save.

£3,296,027.00
*based on 2013/14 figures

Page 137



2.2. The workshop in partnership with the local college has traditionally employed a 
number of apprentices. Under the incumbent contractor the apprenticeship 
programme has ceased. Continuation of the apprenticeship programme was not 
written into the current contract, this means that the Council does not have the 
authority to compel the current contractor to recommence the scheme.

2.3. Corporate Procurement have advised that contract rules mean that there is not an 
option to extend the existing contract with Kier. Progressing with a Single Tender 
Action and direct award would result in a significant risk of challenge and would not 
represent best value for money or provide the flexibility that uncertain fleet sizes will 
require.

2.4. As an operator of both Heavy Goods and Passenger Service Vehicles the Council 
is required by law to hold an Operators Licence. The workshop is currently 
contracted to maintain fleet vehicles in line with legal requirements. The Council 
however cannot subcontract the actual ‘holding’ of the licence and has retained 
both day to day oversight and responsibility. The Operators Licence is managed by 
the Fleet Management Service.

3. Options Appraisal

3.1. Do nothing

3.1.1 This is not a feasible option; the Council needs to have in place adequate 
maintenance facilities to maintain its fleet. Failure to have maintenance provision in 
place would result in suspension or termination of the Council’s Operators Licence 
bringing front line services across the Council to a halt. 

3.2. To re-procure the service on a ‘like for like’ basis 

3.2.1. The value of the contract would be in the region of £1.25million pa and would be in 
scope of Public Contracts Regulations 2006. This enforces a standardised time 
table. Using the Cabinet date of December 2014 as a starting point and with 
adequate time set aside to specify the contract and advertise, the earliest that a 
compliant contract could be let is December 2015. This would in effect leave the 
Council without a vehicle maintenance provision for 4 months, again this is not 
feasible.

3.2.2 The current savings proposals, both approved and going through consultation will 
reduce fleet size. Even in cases where service provision is not reducing, fleet 
savings, are being generated by double shifting vehicles or modifying work patterns. 
The effect of these measures is a direct reduction in fleet, inevitably this will 
continue over time. Current and short term fleet volumes are uncertain.  Hence, 
there is a significant risk to re-procuring an outsourced maintenance service on a 
like for like basis. An answer to this could be to only advertise using indicative 
volumes, however in any potential outsource tender, potential suppliers will price 
this risk into bids again increasing maintenance costs.

3.2.3 Services have made it clear that flexibility is essential. Savings are still being 
considered and the picture of service delivery is still being determined, there is a 
requirement for vehicle maintenance arrangements to be adaptable. Until the 

Page 138



Council has a clear understanding of fleet size and maintenance requirements 
letting a contract over a standard 3 or 5 year term represents a significant risk. 

3.2.4 Re-procurement of a like for like contract would not represent best value for money. 
The fixed price maintenance agreements within the current contract are structured 
in such a way that any incoming supplier would be faced with increased 
maintenance risk, 3 year MOT requirements and outside of manufacturers’ warranty 
periods. These factors combined mean that any incumbent supplier will price in a 
large degree of risk. This will make any new like for like contract significantly more 
expensive than the current contract. Budget over and above the current vehicle 
maintenance cost is not available.

3.2.5 The workshop represents an excellent opportunity for the Council to generate 
income by providing high quality well priced services to the public and local 
businesses. Outsourcing the workshop will prevent the Council generating income 
using the asset. The Council currently misses out in £20,000 pa in MOT income. 
The workshop has the potential to offer services to residents, local business, other 
public sector bodies and community partners. Outsourcing the facility means that 
any third party revenue generated will go to the supplier and not the Council.

3.3 Bring the management of the Vehicle Maintenance Workshop back in-house - 
The recommended option

3.3.1 The most cost effective, lowest risk and most flexible option in the current savings 
driven environment is for the management of the Vehicle Maintenance Workshop to 
be brought back in-house. Analysis of the data available suggests that an in-house 
workshop will deliver a budget surplus of £147,508 per annum.

3.3.2 In-sourcing the workshop provides the Council with a degree of flexibility that a fixed 
term contract does not. With direct control over the workshop the Council can alter 
opening hours or service level agreements to support services to deliver savings as 
and when required. In the case of fluctuations in fleet size the workshop 
establishment can be tailored appropriately. Whilst the service is delivered in-house 
these changes can be implemented in good time and without the threat of any 
contractual issues or penalties. 

3.3.3 The workshop operation houses the skills and equipment required to provide a 
significant income for the Council. Under current legislation the Council can extend 
its offer to local publicly funded bodies and deliver public MOT’s. In the medium to 
long term future the formation of a trading company would allow the workshop to 
trade and provide further services to the public and local businesses. Additional 
income generation could offset the effect of any reduction in fleet size helping to 
retain jobs whilst delivering an income stream for the Council.

3.3.4 The performance of the workshop will be monitored via the use of defined Key 
Performance Indicators and via a service level agreement. Key Performance 
indicators will be set in line with consultation with key service users and will focus 
on cost. Initial consultation has suggested that performance indicators relating to 
‘vehicle downtime’, ‘maintenance on schedule’ and ‘response to breakdown’ are a 
priority. A service user group chaired by the relevant Group Manager will take place 
on a regular basis in order to ensure that common issues are identified and that any 
proposals from services are highlighted and reviewed.

Page 139



3.3.5 In this scenario at the end of the current contract the lease of the building and 
equipment will revert to the Council. The workshop will report through the existing 
Fleet Management Service and the employees engaged in the delivery of the 
workshop’s activity will return under TUPE, back to the Council. The finance 
element of the lease agreements with Kier will remain in place and will run to the 
end of each individual term.

3.3.6 Profit and Loss forecast using the incumbent supplier’s profit and loss figures 
suggests a surplus of £147,508 pa based on the current volumes (see fig 3). The 
fixed price maintenance element of the contract hire agreements will be pooled to 
fund the workshop and its activity. The combined value of scheduled and reactive 
maintenance (based on a 4 year period) amounts to an estimated revenue budget 
of £1.105 million. 

Figure 2: Forecast Workshop Profit & Loss Account 

Income  
* Fixed Price Vehicle Maintenance £856,284.00
# Out of Scope Works (labour only) £101,916.00
# Non Fair Wear & Tear  (labour only) £146,859.00
# MOT Income £20,000

total income £1,125,059.00
  
Expenditure  

* Workshop Staff (establishment cost) £402,207.96
# Parts £280,000.00
# PPE £4,754.00
# Plant and Tools £5,000.00
* Equipment £10,000.00
# Office Costs £7,336.00
# Utilities (Heat, Light, Power) £19,610.00
# Consumables £7,108.00
* Vehicles £11,755.00
# Vehicle Fuel £6,000.00

*
Premises (as per current lease rate/council 
owned) £147,000.00

 * Business Rates (as per rateable value) £76,780.00
total expenditure £977,550.96

Net surplus £147,508.04
These figures are based on a combination of actual figures (marked *) and 
estimates based on the current data available (marked #).

3.3.7 The in-source of the workshop presents the opportunity to employ young people in 
skilled apprentice positions. As previously identified the workshop has traditionally 
offered a number of apprentice positions. Since the initial outsource this has 
ceased. As part of the in-source model a minimum of one apprentice motor fitter 
position would be offered together with one other apprentice positions.

Page 140



3.3.8 Barking and Dagenham has a thriving sector offering commercial vehicle specialist 
services. A number of small and medium enterprises were previously engaged by 
the workshop to provide specialist work in areas such as bodywork, hydraulic 
repairs, steam cleaning, aluminum welding and vehicle modifications/conversions. If 
the in-source option is approved a contract for the provision of ‘Local Specialist 
Automotive Services’ would be let. This contract would place specialist vehicle 
maintenance work with local businesses. 

4 Procurement Strategy

4.1 Implementing the recommended in-source option will not require the letting of a 
large scale like for like contract, however there will be a requirement to let of a 
series of support contracts: 

4.2 Provision of Vehicle Maintenance Stores: A contract will need to be let provide parts 
and consumables for the workshop facility. This contract will operate along the lines 
of the Travis Perkins stock contract in Housing Repairs. The rear warehouse area 
of the workshop will be used for the storage of fast moving impress stock. There is 
the opportunity to lease this area to the stock supplier as a concession that they 
can use to fulfil orders to their other contracts. The benefits of this would be to 
increase the volume and range of stock held at the facility, avoid any direct cost of 
holding stock to the authority as well as delivering a lease income. 

4.3 Mobile Tyre Fitting Contract: The proposal is for the letting of a third party tyre fitting 
service. The range of stock required, staff cover cost and range of operations mean 
that in house tyre fitting would not be a viable option. This would be procured via 
one of many existing framework contracts, for example the Crown Commercial 
Services Framework

4.4 Vehicle Procurement Contract: The current contract ties the Council into procuring 
vehicles on a lease basis. Going forward the proposal is to procure vehicles on a 
case by case basis using the myriad number of framework contracts that exist. This 
will allow the Council to tailor any finance options to the requirements at the time of 
procurement. For example if funds are available it would be more cost effective to 
take advantage of internal borrowing then to lease via third party finance. 

4.5 Local Specialist Automotive Services: There will be an ongoing requirement for 
work to be placed with local specialist businesses. The value of this work will be 
well below EU thresholds. Formal tender exercises will be undertaken to ensure 
that the authority obtain best value whilst developing the extensive local market for 
specialist automotive services.

4.6 All Procurement exercises will be conducted in line with the council’s constitution 
and where appropriate in line with the Public Contract Regulations 2006. Any 
support contract will be required to be approved by Procurement Board and Cabinet 
as appropriate. Potential suppliers will be evaluated on their economic and financial 
standing, health and safety standards, relevant British Standard (BS) and corporate 
human resource policies, particularly in relation to recruitment and selection 
procedures and training, and customer references.  

4.7 Applicants will be assessed on a range of criteria relevant to the contract tender 

Page 141



process based on an 80% price 20% quality basis.  The quality assessment will 
include:

• Contract management and control
• Contract implementation
• Recording and reporting systems
• Risk management
• Complaints managements
• Customer references

4.8 Corporate Procurement has been consulted as to the content of this report and has 
raised no issue with its content or the approach contained within. As per 4.2 All 
Procurement exercises will be conducted in line with the council’s constitution and 
where appropriate in line with the Public Contract Regulations 2006. Any support 
contract will be required to be approved by Procurement Board and Cabinet as per 
the scheme of delegation.

5. Consultation

5.1 Consultation has taken place between the Divisional Director for Environment and 
the Head of Housing Repairs and Maintenance. Their key requirements are as 
follows:

o A local facility to reduce vehicle downtime and avoid the need for staff time to be 
spent transporting vehicles for repairs and servicing.

o No above inflation increase in maintenance costs. 

o Greater flexibility for services to be undertaken outside of traditional 9-5 hours to 
reduce vehicle downtime and the requirement for costly cover vehicles.  

5.2 Upon Cabinet decision formal consultation will need to take place with the 
workshop staff. Staff will be in scope of TUPE transfer to the Council. Informal 
discussion with the workshop staff and employee representatives indicates that 
they are in favour of a return to the Council. The majority of the workforce were 
previously Council employees and have been employed in the workshop for a 
significant period of time. 

6. Financial Implications

Implications completed by: Carl Tomlinson, Finance Group Manager

6.1 The budgets for this contract (fig 1) were decentralised when this service was 
outsourced and are now held across several Council services.  The costs for this 
service are charged to Vehicle fleet within Environmental services and then 
recharged in full across all the services that utilise.  These costs will continue to be 
recharged in full if this service is brought back in house and there is not expected to 
be any financial risk to Environmental services or the services where the budget 
sits, based on the proposals in section 3.3 above. 

6.2 The finance element of the Vehicle Contract hire agreements are shown in fig 1 as 
part of the overall contract value.  There is no change to the vehicle leasing 

Page 142



contracts and they sit outside the scope of this report.  If the decision is taken to 
move the service back in house this contract will still remain at £1.8m and be 
recharged out to all services in full. The vehicle contract hire agreements will be run 
down in each instance commensurate with the working life of each vehicle.

6.3 There are proposals to reduce the Council’s current fleet of vehicles in the current 
round of savings, by re-procuring on a like for like basis will leave the Council open 
to financial risk of the contract being more than our requirements, negating any 
potential savings we would make from reducing our fleet.  

6.4 The figures in Figure 2 are primarily based on estimates derived from actual data 
provided by Kier, the current supplier.  These could change when the service is 
brought back in house, but basing on current operational costs increases the 
validity of the figures in the proposal and the estimated saving of circa £147k, as 
shown below, based on current budgets:

Total current contract value: £1.125m
Total expected expenditure: £0.978m
Total Saving on current contract: £0.147m 

6.5 Bringing the service back in house offers the most flexibility and financial security 
and also appears to maximise the income generation possibilities, i.e.

o Provide an MOT service to local residents generating income for the Council 
and provide a quality low cost service to residents.

o Training local apprentices in vehicle maintenance and mechanics will save 
on staff costs and provide essential skilling for local youths.

o Utilising dead hours between jobs to provide vehicle maintenance services to 
local residents.

6.6 This report does not outline the potential income generation possibilities from the 
options above.  It is expected that once the service is re-established back in house, 
further income generation possibilities will be sought.

7. Legal Implications 

Implications completed by: Daniel Toohey, Principal Corporate Solicitor, Legal and 
Democratic Services)

7.1 This report is seeking the approval of Cabinet to bring the future delivery of vehicle 
maintenance ‘in-house’ following expiry of the current contract with Kier, which is 
due to expire on 31st August 2015.

7.2 In the event that the recommendation to bring the services of the workshop back 
‘in-house’ is authorised by Cabinet the provisions of the Transfer of Undertakings 
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (“TUPE”) will apply. The Council will 
need to ensure that it complies with the consultation requirements under TUPE. 
The responsible directorate should ensure that it receives support from HR in the 
first instance during this process and also contact Legal Services if necessary.

7.3 It is noted in the report that if the Council does proceed with bringing these services 
‘in-house’ the responsible directorate has indicated that a further report will be 

Page 143



produced, in the form of a Procurement Strategy Report, setting out the proposed 
series of support contracts it wishes to tender for and the possible procurement 
routes it wishes to utilise. Any such tender process will need to be conducted in 
compliance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 and the Council’s Contract 
Rules.

7.4 Legal Services will be available to advise and assist with any further queries that 
may arise in this process.

8. Other Implications

8.1 Risk Management - A risk analysis of the recommended in-source option has 
taken place. The key risks identified are as follows:

Significant Reduction in Council Fleet Size 
Details The Council is in the process reviewing all costs relating to 

service delivery. Inevitably this will result in a reduced fleet sizes 
going forward.

Consequence The level of fixed income from internal fixed price maintenance 
contracts will reduce.

Mitigation/Solution The workshop is currently under resourced. Permanent 
appointments will only be made once the full impact of savings 
proposals has been determined. Continued significant fleet 
reductions will need to be mitigated by a proportional reduction in 
the establishment. Income from external maintenance 
agreements need to offset any fleet size reductions.

How would this risk 
vary if we didn’t 

choose the 'In-source' 
option.

If instead of in-sourcing, the option to re-procure an ‘as-is’ 
contract was taken, a third party supplier would be faced with an 
identical risk and would likely take similar mitigating actions.

ICT Systems - not in place for contract handover
Details The workshop uses the ICT system of the incumbent supplier. 

The Council Fleet Management Department uses an identical 
system however the live data is stored within the system of the 
current supplier. There is a risk that this data migration may not 
have fully taken place by the contract handover date. 

Consequence At contract handover a number of workarounds will need to be 
implemented via existing corporate systems, in the short term 
this may result in limited access to performance information and 
the some administrative tasks taking longer due to additional 
data input. 

Mitigation/Solution Use of the existing corporate suite of IT applications. Vehicle 
Maintenance will be undertaken using the existing Tranman 
system invoices will be raised solely using Oracle. In order to 
resolve any issues relating to the retention of historical records 
hard copy maintenance data will need to be printed off prior to 

Page 144



contract end. This can be supported by an excel data file. 

How would this risk 
vary if we didn’t 

choose the 'In-source' 
option.    

Any new suppler would be faced with this issue. The incumbent 
supplier will take their ICT infrastructure with them at contract 
end. 

8.2 Contractual Issues - There is no option to extend the current contract with Kier. 
Upon expiry of the overarching current contract vehicles leases will continue as per 
each individual agreement, the fixed price maintenance element of the each vehicle 
contract hire agreement will cease upon contract expiry

The in-sourcing of the workshop will have TUPE implications for the staff that are 
currently employed maintaining the Corporate Fleet. Discussions will need to be 
held with Kier FPS to determine which staff that they believe are in scope. Kier will 
be required to issue to the Council with a detailed report outlining the staff details, 
wages and any additional information required. This will then need to be reviewed, 
ratified or disputed by the Corporate Legal Team.

8.3 Staffing Issues - It is assumed that all staff currently employed by Kier FPS at the 
workshop will transfer under TUPE to the Council. For the majority of the workforce 
this will mean a return to council employment. At present there are two vacant 
posts. As discussed in 8.1.2 the staff in scope of TUPE will need to be confirmed 
with both the incumbent supplier and legal services.

The apprenticeship programme has ceased entirely. If the in-source is confirmed 
the apprenticeship programme will recommence from September 2015 in line with 
the new academic year. Based on current fleet volumes 2 apprentice positions will 
be offered. 

8.4 Corporate Policy and Customer Impact - The reinstatement of the workshops 
apprentice programme supports the vision ‘Develop a local, skilled workforce and 
improve employment opportunities’. 

The use of local businesses for the delivery of specialist services supports the 
Council’s commitment to ‘Growing the Borough’.

The workshop is the support service for front line services across the Borough 
including Street Cleansing, Grounds Maintenance, Waste Collection, Housing 
Repairs and Passenger Transport. Without adequately maintained fleet these 
services would be restricted in their ability to support the Authority in delivering its 
Vision and Objectives. For example; Grounds Maintenance & Parks ‘Promote and 
Protect our Green and Open Spaces, Passenger Transport ‘Narrow the gap in 
attainment and realise high aspirations for every child’ and Housing Repairs 
‘Support investment in Housing…’ and ‘Build high quality homes and a sustainable 
community’. 

No specific equalities group will be affected by the proposed changes to the delivery 
of vehicle maintenance. 

8.5 Safeguarding Children - Due to the movement of vehicles and the operation of 
industrial machinery the workshop facility is not open to children.
The apprenticeship programme will be managed in line with wider council policy

Page 145



8.6 Health Issues - Workshop employees are in scope of Hand and Whole Body 
Vibration Legislation. The Council has a robust Hand Arm Vibration policy in place 
supported by health surveillance delivered by the Occupational Health Service. 
Workshop employees will be enrolled into the Council Hand Arm Vibration scheme

8.7 Crime and Disorder Issues - The workshop is located at Frizlands Depot. The 
depot has extensive security measures in place including alarm systems and closed 
circuit television cameras.

8.8 Property/Asset Issues - As a capital asset there will be an ongoing requirement to 
maintain the workshop building.

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: None

List of appendices: None

Page 146



CABINET 

16 December 2014 

Title: The Broadway Theatre – New Management Arrangements

Report of the Leader of the Council

Open Report For Decision 

Wards Affected: All Key Decision: Yes

Report Author: Paul Hogan, Divisional Director of 
Culture and Sport

Contact Details:
Tel: 020 8227 3576
E-mail: paul.hogan@lbbd.gov.uk

Accountable Divisional Director: Paul Hogan, Divisional Director of Culture and Sport

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director of Adult and Community 
Services

Summary: 

Cabinet agreed a new vision and strategy for Barking Town Centre at its meeting in 
September 2014.  A key part of that vision is for Barking to become East London’s cultural 
hub building on the sector’s presence at the Ice House Quarter. Central to that is enabling 
and supporting the Borough’s communities and businesses to realise their creative 
potential.  The Broadway Theatre is a key cultural asset for the Borough, a hub for creative 
ambition, a draw for London’s world class cultural institutions and a focus for live 
performance.  Enabling the theatre to develop and extend its role even further will support 
the achievement of the Council’s vision for the sector, the Borough and Barking town 
centre.

Cabinet has previously agreed in principle (8 April 2014; minute 110 refers) to transfer the 
management of the Broadway theatre to Barking and Dagenham College via a lease 
arrangement on a commercial rent and full repairing base; however, at that time Members 
raised a number of queries about the proposed new management arrangements that 
needed to be clarified to allow them to make an informed decision about whether to 
proceed with the assignment of the lease.

This report provides further information about the new way of working that is proposed for 
the Broadway, which is expected to bring the following benefits:

 An ongoing revenue saving for the Council.
 The future of the venue as the Borough’s only dedicated performing arts venue would 

be secured.
 Opportunities for local young people to gain skills and employment in the creative 

industries would be greatly enhanced. This will also support the development of the 
creative industries hub centred at the Ice House Cultural Quarter in Barking. 

 The range and quality of the venue’s professional and community programme would be 
improved through a partnership relationship with the Barbican Guildhall.

Page 147

AGENDA ITEM 9



The new role for the Broadway will also form a key element of the proposal to develop, in 
conjunction with the GLA, an Artist Enterprise Zone in the Borough, which would assist in 
improving international competitiveness by sustaining the capital’s world class artists and 
creative businesses in successful clusters, and would also address declining affordable 
workspace provision for artists and creative businesses in London.

The report seeks approval to transfer the venue to the Barking and Dagenham College.

Recommendation(s)

The Cabinet is asked to:

(i) Authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services and Chief Finance Officer, to grant a lease on 1 April 2015, or 
sooner, for the Broadway theatre to Barking and Dagenham College to expire on 31 
August 2023, on the following terms:

(a) a commercial rent and full repairing and insuring basis; or
(b) a peppercorn rent.

(ii) Agree, if a commercial rent is approved, to provide a grant to the College that is 
equivalent to the rent that would be paid for the duration of the lease on the basis 
that the shared vision for the theatre is being successfully delivered; 

(iii) Agree to commit to make an additional annual  revenue contribution of £50,000 to 
the Barking and Dagenham College for a guaranteed period of three years from 
April 2015, which will be used to support the ongoing provision of a professional 
performance programme at the venue and to enable access by local arts 
organisations and community groups;

(iv) Agree to commit up to £500,000 capital programme investment to address essential 
works that have been identified in the recent condition survey of the building and 
other improvements that will support the new way of working that is envisaged for 
the venue; 

(v) Agree to compensate the Barking and Dagenham College for redundancy costs that 
may be incurred by them for any Council employees who are redeployed to the 
College under TUPE legislation within  twelve months of transfer but payments will 
be capped at the level the staff would have received if they had remained 
employees of the Council; and

(vi) Agree, in principle, to Barking town centre becoming London’s first Artists 
Enterprise Zone and for officers to undertake further work with the Greater London 
Authority to define an AEZ programme, which will be the subject of a further report 
to Cabinet for approval prior to implementation.

Reason(s)

The proposal is intended to assist the Council in making better use of its resources and 
assets. Through its performance and participatory activity programmes, the Broadway 
provides positive cultural and employment related activities for young people as well as 
opportunities for social interaction, improving physical and emotional health, lifelong 

Page 148



learning for work, and volunteering for the wider community.  In doing so the venue 
contributes to the achievement of the Council’s priority to: 

 Growing the borough – develop a skilled workforce and improve employment 
opportunities; and support investment in housing, leisure, the creative industries and 
public spaces to enhance our environment.

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 At its meeting on 8 April 2014 (minute 110 refers) Cabinet resolved:

(i) To approve, in principle, the lease of the Broadway Theatre to Barking and 
Dagenham College on a commercial rent and full repairing base; and

 
(ii) That a further report be presented to Cabinet to seek approval to formally 

assign the lease, which may include a variation of the rental terms.

1.2 However, the report identified a number of key issues which required clarification 
before it would be possible for Members to make an informed decision about the 
merits of this proposal. These are set out in the issues section of this report at 
paragraph 2.9.

1.3 The focus of this report is to provide Members with further information about these 
issues so that a decision can be taken on whether to proceed with the transfer of 
the venue to the Barking and Dagenham College via a lease.

The Broadway theatre

1.4 The Broadway was originally the Barking Assembly Hall, designed in the 1930s as 
an extension to the Barking Town Hall and completed in 1962. It was used 
sporadically for a variety of events ranging from ballet to boxing. 

1.5 In 2003, following capital investment by Barking and Dagenham College and the 
Council, the Broadway opened its doors as a professional theatre and home to the 
College’s Department of Performing Arts and Technical Theatre.

Facilities

1.6 The venue has the following facilities:

 an auditorium with flexible seating that can seat up to 341 or up to 850 for a 
standing event.

 an attractive foyer area that is used for informal performances, social events and 
corporate hospitality.

 high quality work spaces for Barking and Dagenham College Performing Arts 
and Technical Theatre Department, including music studio, media suite, dance 
studio and two rehearsal rooms.

 café, bar and box office.

Page 149



Programme

1.7 The Broadway theatre is the principal performing arts venue in the area and a 
cornerstone of the cultural offer in the Borough. 

1.8 The main areas of current activity are as follows:

 Providing a popular performance programme – developing new audiences for 
professional theatre, comedy and dance that are entertainment based, 
accessible in both content and price, with a focus on attracting greater numbers 
of families and members of diverse communities.

 Participation/education programme – the Broadway Youth Theatre, professional 
work for and with schools, including workshops and residencies, partnerships 
with other local arts groups, schools networks and placements for young people.

 Home to the Barking and Dagenham College School of Performing Arts and 
Technical Theatre, where young adults are trained for employment in the 
creative industries in a real and commercial learning environment.

 Hiring out – the venue is hired out to other arts organisations and for social 
events and meetings.

1.9 In 2012/13 the venue presented a total of 187 performances and events which 
attracted a total audience of 27,282. It is estimated that this will increase to c30,000 
for 2013/14.

1.10 Further information on the Broadway programme can be found on the theatre’s 
website: www.thebroadwaybarking.com.

Governance arrangements 

1.11 In 2003, the Council entered into a twenty year facility management agreement with 
the Barking and Dagenham College for the operation of the theatre and established 
a new company with limited liability and charitable status (The Broadway Theatre 
Company Ltd.) to manage the venue on a day to day basis. 

1.12 The College invested £1.8 million to renovate the theatre and makes an annual 
contribution of £100,000 towards running costs. In return they are guaranteed 
exclusive use of the theatre’s facilities for about three days each week so that their 
students can gain experience in a real work training environment. It is not possible 
to programme the theatre for professional or community use during these times.

1.13 There are no break clauses in the Facility Management Agreement, which also sets 
out that if the Council were to terminate the agreement with the College then a 
repayment of their capital investment would fall due but which reduces on a sliding 
scale over the life of the agreement. 

1.14 If, for example, the Facility Management Agreement was terminated by the Council 
in 2014 (the eleventh year of the agreement) then the payment to the College 
would be £618,000. 

1.15 The Council and College subsequently decided to wind up the Broadway theatre 
company and the venue was brought ‘in house’ by the Council in July 2012, which 
is the current management arrangement.

Page 150



1.16 The terms and conditions set out in the Facilities Management Agreement remain in 
place and are legally binding. When the venue came back ‘in house’, the College’s 
use of space at the Broadway was formalised via a lease for those areas of the 
building that are solely used by them and through a licence for those areas that are 
shared with the Council. Both the lease and licence are co-terminus with the end of 
the original Facilities Management Agreement in 2023.

2. Proposals and issues

Proposal

2.1 The proposal is to transfer the management and operation of the Broadway theatre 
to the Barking and Dagenham College via a lease that would be co-terminus with 
the existing Facility Management Agreement and would end in 2023.

 
2.2 It was resolved by Cabinet in April 2014, that in principle the lease will be on a 

commercial rent basis but that there may be a variation of the rental terms.

2.3 It would be against normal Council policy to offer leases on a peppercorn basis, 
however, it is included as a choice for Members in this instance in order to secure a 
successful conclusion to the negotiations with the College, enable the transfer and 
realise revenue savings. This does give away control of the asset with much more 
limited ability to influence its use and hold to account the lessee compared to a 
commercial rent and rent subsidy arrangement, as reflected in the advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer, but is believed that the wider benefits of the arrangement 
with the College in this example outweigh that. Accordingly Members are 
recommended to consider a peppercorn rent as an alternative. 

2.4 If a commercial rent arrangement is the preferred option for Members, it is proposed 
that the Council agrees to provide a grant to the College that is equal to the rent 
that would be paid for the duration of the lease, The grant payment would be 
dependent on the College continuing to work towards delivering the joint vision for 
the venue that is set out in this report and the practical arrangements for this will be 
contained in a Community Use Agreement.

2.5 It is also proposed that the Council will make an additional revenue contribution of 
£50,000 for a guaranteed period of three years, which would be used to support the 
ongoing provision of a professional performance programme at the venue and to 
enable access by local arts organisations and community groups.

2.6 Furthermore that up to £500,000 capital programme investment will be made by the 
Council  to address essential works that have been identified in the recent condition 
survey of the building and other improvements that will support the new way of 
working that is envisaged for the venue, but in that order.

2.7 TUPE legislation will apply and so the staff on the establishment at the Broadway 
will be redeployed to the College. 

2.8 Finally it is proposed that redundancy costs that may subsequently be incurred by 
the College in relation to former-LBBD employees within the first twelve months of 
operation following transfer will be met by the Council.

Page 151



Benefits

2.9 If realised, it is considered that this proposal will provide the following benefits to the 
Council:

 An ongoing revenue saving of c£240,000 but this would reduce if any borrowing 
costs are incurred in relation to condition survey related works that may be 
required.

 The future of the Broadway as the Borough’s only dedicated performing arts 
venue would be secured and so further strengthen Barking town centre’s role as 
East London’s cultural hub.

 Opportunities for local young people to gain skills and employment in the 
creative industries would be greatly enhanced. This will also support the 
development of the creative industries hub centred at the Ice House Cultural 
Quarter in Barking. 

 The range and quality of the venue’s professional and community programme 
could be improved through a partnership relationship with the Barbican 
Guildhall.

2.10 The new role for the Broadway will also form a key element of the proposal to 
develop, in conjunction with the GLA, London’s first Artists Enterprise Zone (AEZ) in 
the Borough, which would assist in improving international competitiveness by 
sustaining the capital’s world class artists and creative businesses in successful 
clusters, and would also help to address declining affordable workspace provision 
for artists and creative businesses in London.  

2.11 The Council will work closely with the Greater London Authority to develop an AEZ 
programme to achieve outcomes such as support for the competitiveness of the 
sector in the Borough, opportunities for creative businesses and young people, and 
an enhanced reputation for the Borough and for London. 

2.12 Due to the unique nature of this development, only in-principle support for the Artist 
Enterprise Zone is requested from Members at this time. A further report will be 
presented to Cabinet that clearly sets out the benefits as well as any cost 
implications that may result from the establishment of the Artist Enterprise Zone to 
enable Members to make an informed decision about whether to proceed.

2.13 The proposed vision for the Broadway is attached at Appendix 1.

Issues

2.14 A response to the issues that were identified in the report to Cabinet (8 April 2014) 
is set out below:

(a) The transfer of responsibility of all revenue costs associated with the 
operation of the Broadway to the College has not been confirmed

The Principal and Chief Executive of the College has written to the Leader of the 
Council (01/10/14) to confirm that the College “will be responsible for all of the 
costs associated with the operation and management of the venue from the date 
that the lease is assigned”.

Page 152



However, this does not mean that the Council will not be providing support to the 
venue after it has been transferred to the College.  

Members should note that this report recommends that the Council commits to 
the following: to meet the cost of any redundancy payments  that may be 
incurred following the transfer of the venue to the College for a period of up to 
12 months (it is estimated that the maximum liability in this respect will be 
£25,000);  a financial contribution of £50,000 per year for at least three years to 
support the delivery of the venue’s performance and participatory programme; a 
grant to cover the commercial rent; and £500,000 capital programme investment 
in the venue. 

(b) At this time it is unclear what the College’s proposed governance 
arrangements will be for the Broadway and how the Council can ensure 
that it retains an appropriate level of influence in relation to service 
development and delivery. 

As part of the discussions around the draft heads of terms for the lease, it has 
been agreed that the existing Facilities Management Agreement will be 
amended to incorporate a Community Use Agreement (CUA) to be updated on 
an annual basis.

The CUA will embed partnership working to ensure that the venue is 
successfully delivering against the priority objectives of the Barking & 
Dagenham College and the Council and provide a structure that will enable and 
encourage effective joint working between the Broadway and local arts 
organisations to get more local people involved in the arts.

(c) A lease could hamper any future development of the Broadway site by the 
Council, if this were to be considered appropriate. To mitigate against this 
it is proposed that a condition of the lease is that it can be wound up by 
the Council if it is intended to re-develop the site.

It is intended that the lease will be co-terminus with the existing Facility 
Management Agreement (FMA) and that the current and legally binding position 
in relation to termination as set out in the FMA will also apply in the new lease.

Whilst there are no break clauses envisaged for either party, the FMA allows the 
Council to terminate the lease at any time; however, as set out above a penalty 
payment will apply.  

(d) There has as yet been no clarity provided by the Barbican Guildhall on the 
‘offer’ they will be providing to support the development of the quality and 
range of Broadway programme and over what period.

It is envisaged by the College that the Barbican and London Guildhall School of 
Music & Drama will base provision at the Broadway extending the cultural links 
to the east. In partnership with the Broadway, the Barbican and Guildhall will 
augment their commitment to building sustainable relationships with 
communities within East London. 

Page 153



Initial joint planning has led to the Broadway already housing Young Peoples’ 
Academy, Open Arts Lab activities, Barbican in a Box, apprenticeship provision 
and links to their new Performance, Enterprise and Outreach degree. 

Other ventures currently being discussed by the College include guest 
programming at The Broadway, supporting extensive art award provision for the 
region and programming for the Borough’s 50th anniversary celebrations.

The Creative Industries in the UK covers a range of sectors, from advertising 
and film, media, design and digital.  It is anticipated that the Broadway will offer 
affordable workspaces for digital start-ups. (Links with the Barbican Open Artist 
Lab will help populate the venue with artists who can demonstrate a 
commitment to living and working in the borough). 

It is expected that new creative companies will be offered spaces, resources and 
offices in exchange for their support for creative and education programmes. 
(Regular Open Lab events will introduce new arts practitioners to the Broadway 
audiences, but also establish relationships with SME’s.  This will create a 
sustainable creative ecology: from training through to employment; and 
encouraging business and artist to stay in the borough). 

(e) There is a risk that in becoming a ‘learning centre’ the Broadway could be 
predominantly student focussed to the detriment of the professional and 
community performance programme, which is valued by the Council.

The vision and programming plan for the Broadway is to be a ‘hub’ for the 
cultural and education network locally. In addition, primarily, it will enhance the 
creative and employment opportunities for the residents of the borough, through 
SMEs in creative industries and through its attraction to new and established 
artists to work in the Broadway and in its local network of creative industries.

The proposed vision for the venue is attached at Appendix one. It will be 
important that the Community Use Agreement, referred to above, clearly sets 
out what the expectations and targets will be in relation to the venue’s 
performance and participatory programmes.

(f) Until the condition survey has been produced, it is unclear what 
investment may be required to the structure, mechanical and electrical 
installations and fabric of the building. 

The condition survey has been produced and accordingly this report 
recommends that up to £500,000 capital funding is committed to meet the costs 
of essential works and other improvements.

The College will be responsible for all repairs and maintenance for the venue for 
the duration of the lease.

(g) The extent to which the new management arrangement will impact on the 
ability to lever in funding for the Broadway from Arts Council England 
(ACE) is unclear. However, it is considered unlikely that ACE will fund a 
‘learning centre’ arrangement. 

Page 154



It should be the case that there will be elements of the Broadway’s programme 
that would be eligible for Grants for the Arts funding from Arts Council England. 
However, this is an increasingly competitive process.

3. Financial implications

Financial implications completed by: Roger Hampson, Group Manager – Finance

3.1 The net controllable budget for the Broadway in 2014/15 is £380,000. 

3.2 This budget includes committed funding of £40,000 as match funding for the 
Creative Barking and Dagenham project. A final payment of the same amount will 
be due in 2015/16.

3.3 The revenue budget also includes an element of the costs associated with staff who 
spend a proportion of their time supporting the management and operation of the 
Broadway but who will not transfer to the venue under TUPE legislation.

3.4 Further points to be considered are that this report recommends that the Council 
commits to meet redundancy costs that may subsequently be incurred by them for 
any Council employees who are redeployed to the College under TUPE legislation 
within the first twelve months of operation following transfer.  It is estimated that the 
maximum liability for this will be £25,000.

3.5 The report also recommends that a revenue payment of £50,000 per year for a 
guaranteed period of three years will be made to the College to support the 
development and delivery of a professional arts programme at the venue and to 
encourage community access.

3.6 When these various factors are taken into account, and assuming that the 
Broadway transfers to the College on 1 April 2015 or sooner, it is estimated that a 
revenue saving of £200,000 will be realised in 2015/16, rising to £240,000 in 
2016/17.  There will be sufficient budget available to fund an annual revenue 
payment of £50,000.

3.7 It is proposed to lease the theatre to the College either on a peppercorn rent or on a 
commercial rent and full repairing basis.  If Members agree to a commercial rent it 
is intended that a grant will be provided to the College to subsidise the amount of 
market rent payable.  This will be cost neutral to the Council as the commercial rent 
income will fund the rent subsidy payment.  A commercial rent and rent subsidy 
arrangement would be in line with the Council’s market rent policy. The amount of 
the market rent and the annual grant is to be determined.  The granting of a 
peppercorn rent would have the same financial outcome for the Council but would 
result in the relinquishing of substantially more control and influence over the use of 
the asset.  An arrangement with a rent subsidy payment which has the scope to be 
reviewed periodically to ensure that the organisation is complying with the terms for 
the subsidy is a much stronger tool to ensure the delivery of the Council’s objectives 
than the granting of a long term lease with a peppercorn rent.  It is therefore the 
recommendation that the lease should be on commercial rent terms with a rent 
subsidy offered to the College.

Page 155



3.8 Up to £500,000 of capital is to be committed from the Council’s invest to save 
budget to address essential works identified in a recent condition survey and other 
improvements. If the service has to meet the cost of borrowing this amount, there 
will be an annual cost of c£40,000, which will need to be top sliced from any saving 
that is anticipated from the Broadway revenue budget on top of the figures outlined 
above.

4. Legal Implications 

Implications completed by: Jason Ofosu, Property Lawyer

4.1 This report seeks approval to grant a lease to 2023 for a commercial rent or 
peppercorn rent to the Barking and Dagenham College with the Council retaining 
the freehold interest. 

4.2 The Council and College will agree heads of terms for the leasing arrangements. 
The Chief Executive in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer should have final 
approval of the Heads of Terms in consultation with the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services.

4.3 Section 123 Local Government Act 1972 and the Council’s Land Disposal rules 
require land to be disposed of at market value. The Council has a general power of 
competence under section 1 of the Localism Act, although as always its application 
of these powers must be carefully considered and appropriate to the relevant 
circumstances. Section 1 of the Localism Act allows the Council “to do anything that 
individuals generally may do”. Therefore the Council can decide the rent does not 
have to be market value since the lease holder is acting for the benefit of the 
Council, its area or persons' resident or present in the area. 

4.4 Any lease that may be agreed should be a full repairing and insuring lease so that 
the Council does not bear the cost of repair and maintenance of the Property. The 
Legal Practice should be consulted on the preparation and completion of the lease.

5. Other Implications

5.1 Risk Management - The risks association with this proposal are considered in the 
issues section of this report (para 2.9).

5.2 Contractual issues - The legal implications section sets out the Council’s powers 
in relation to this matter. Legal Services will be fully consulted and will prepare all 
the necessary legal documentation.

5.3 Staffing issues - If Cabinet agrees to a lease then the Council employees working 
at the Broadway will transfer to the College in line with TUPE legislation. 

Staff have been briefed around the implications of the specific proposals set out in 
this report. Formal consultation has started (20/10/14) in line with the Council’s 
change management policies. 

As part of the negotiations with the College, it will be necessary for the Council to 
meet any redundancy costs that may be incurred for any former Council employees 
within the first twelve months of operation following transfer.

Page 156



5.4 Customer impact - It is expected that, if implemented, this proposal would see a 
greater focus on provision for young people. It will be important to ensure that the 
accessibility and attractiveness of the venue’s professional performance 
programme for the current customer base and the commitment to provide 
opportunities for local people and groups to participate in the arts is maintained.

5.5 Crime and Disorder Issues - The Council has a statutory duty to consider crime 
and disorder implications in all its decision making. It is expected that the Broadway 
will continue to provide a wide range of activities and quality facilities, which will 
provide positive activities for all residents. 

5.6 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults and Children - It will be a condition of use that 
the College has appropriate safeguarding procedures in place. 

5.7 Property/Asset issues – it is intended that the terms of the lease will require the 
College as lease holder to repair, maintain and insure the facilities at the Broadway. 

There are capital investment requirements that have been identified in a condition 
survey of the venue that will need to be implemented by the Council over the next 
five years.  These can be summarised as follows:

Mechanical £145,000
Electrical £30,000
Building £413,000 

The condition survey sets out a schedule for the improvement works, which shows 
that about half of the expenditure will not be required until year five (2018/19).

This report recommends that the Council commits up to £500,000 capital 
programme investment to address essential works that have been identified in the 
recent condition survey of the building and other improvements that will support the 
new way of working that is envisaged for the venue, but in that order.  Whilst this 
commitment will not address all of the works identified in the condition survey, it is 
considered to be adequate to address the key issues.

On assignment of the lease the College will be responsible for all repairs and 
maintenance that is required at the venue for the duration of the lease.

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: None

List of appendices:

Appendix 1 – The Broadway Theatre New Vision

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Our Vision for the Broadway Theatre

London is a global centre for the creative industries, drawing students and workers from 
across the world to want to learn from the best. We are right on the doorstep: by working 
together the London Borough of Barking & Dagenham, The Broadway Theatre and the 
College have an unprecedented opportunity to take advantage of our proximity to London 
to maximise the career opportunities for our community, especially our young people. 
Barking & Dagenham College fully supports the Council’s ambitions, and proposes 
focusing on 4 key areas:

1. Lead the employment generation, youth employment and education and training 
agendas

2. Establishing a hub of expertise and support for creative start-ups 
3. Attracting new creative industries to the area 
4. Expanding the community outreach programme

1. Contribute to employment generation, youth employment and education and training 
agendas

The College provides training that gives a clear line of sight to work in the UK economy. 
Our role is to ensure that all students develop relevant knowledge, practical skills, and 
have access to real life work experience opportunities. All of which help students develop 
‘T-shaped’ skills’: those softer skills such as good communication, resilience, team work, 
confidence etc. that employers look for. 

The Broadway can provide competitively priced workspace for creative businesses, start-
up or established. Tenants will be supported by the College to create employment 
opportunities for local young people through traineeships, internships and apprenticeships. 
The Broadway ‘community’ will lead the agenda by raising awareness and opportunities. 

2. Establish a hub of expertise and support for creative start-ups 

The Broadway will provide advice, support and guidance for businesses start-ups and 
entrepreneurial graduates. A programme of networking opportunities will create a hub of 
excellence where creative entrepreneurs can access the information and practical support 
they need to thrive.

3. Attract new creative industries to the area 

The Creative Industries in the UK covers a range of sectors, from advertising and film, 
media, design and digital.  The College is currently in discussions with a numbers of 
partners about providing affordable workspaces for digital start-ups.  We propose that the 
scheme be extended to the Broadway. This would help change perceptions of the sector 
and help to educate the wider public about the range of career opportunities available in 
the sector.

4. Expand the community outreach programme

The Broadway currently acts as a hub/base for community projects. The programme will 
be reviewed to ensure it reaches a broader audience. 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet

16 December 2014

Title: Debt Management Performance and Write-Offs 2014/15 (Quarter 2)

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance

Open Report For Information

Wards Affected: None Key Decision: No

Report Author: Steve Cooper, 
Head of Revenues

Contact Details: 
Tel: 07972003726
E-mail: steve.cooper@elevateeastlondon.co.uk 

Accountable Director:  Jonathan Bunt, Chief Finance Officer

Summary

This report sets out the performance of the Council’s partner, Elevate East London, in 
carrying out the debt management function on behalf of the Council and covers the second 
quarter of the year 2014/15.  It also includes details of debt written off in accordance with 
the write off policy approved by Cabinet on 18 October 2011.

Recommendation(s)

The Cabinet is recommended to:

(i) Note the contents of this report as it relates to the performance of the debt 
management function carried out by the Revenues and Benefits service operated 
by Elevate East London, including the performance of enforcement agents; and

(ii) Note the debt write-offs for the second quarter of 2014/15 and that a number of 
these debts will be published in accordance with the policy agreed by Cabinet.

Reason

Assisting in the Council’s Policy aim of ensuring a well run organisation delivering its 
statutory duties in the most practical and cost-effective way.  It will ensure good financial 
practice and adherence to the Council’s Financial Rules to report on debt management 
performance and total debt write-off each quarter.

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1 The Council’s Revenues, Benefits, General Income and Rents Service are operated 
by the Council’s joint venture company, Elevate East London LLP (Elevate).  The 
service is responsible for the management of the Council’s debt falling due by way 
of statutory levies and chargeable services.  Debts not collected by Elevate are not 
included in this report such as parking and road traffic debt prior to warrants being 
granted, hostel and private sector leasing debt.

Page 161

AGENDA ITEM 10

mailto:steve.cooper@elevateeastlondon.co.uk


1.2 This report sets out the performance for the second quarter of the 2014/15 
municipal and financial year and covers the overall progress of each element of the 
service since April 2014.  In addition it summarises the debts that have been agreed 
for write off in accordance with the Council’s Financial Rules. All write offs are 
processed in accordance with the Council’s debt management policy agreed on 18 
October 2011. 

2. Proposal and Issues 

2.1 Set out in table 1 below is the performance for quarter 2 of 2014/15 achieved for the 
main areas of debt managed by Elevate.

Table 1: Collection Rate Performance – 2014-15 Quarter 2

Type of Debt Annual
Target Target for 

Quarter 2
Performance Variance

Actual 
collected

£m
Council Tax 94.0% 55.6% 55.7% 0.10% 32.252*

NNDR 98.1% 56.9% 57.0% 0.10% 34.680
Rent 97.20% 96.75% 96.80% +0.05% 52.245

Leaseholders 97.50% 49.60% 52.75% +3.15% 1.949
General Income 95.0% 60.00% 64.21% +4.21 27.910

          *Includes 23% collected for the GLA. 

           Council Tax collection performance 

2.2 Council Tax collection at the end of the second quarter was 0.1% above the target. 
Collection of Council Tax, from those in receipt of Council Tax Support (CTS) and 
with a sum to pay, so far this year stands at 51.1%. The Council has adopted the 
same CTS Scheme for 2014/2015 as it administered in 2013/2014 meaning that the 
calculation for any working age claimant is based upon 85% of the relevant Council 
Tax liability. The Council also adopted the following discretionary areas within the 
CTS Scheme:

i. The ability to backdate working age claims to a maximum of three 
months.

ii. To disregard war widows and war disablement pension income.
iii. To adopt the extended payment scheme and align it with the main 

Housing Benefit scheme 

           Council Tax Arrears

2.3 By the end of the second quarter of 2014/15 £899,416 had been collected for 
previous years’ arrears. The target is to collect £1.5m of arrears by 31 March 2015.

2.4 The collection of Council Tax arrears outstanding at the end of each financial year 
continues over subsequent years. The table below shows the percentage of 
collection since 2009/10. The charge year figure below is the in-year collection rate 
achieved by 31 March of each year.

Page 162



As at 31 March 2014
Council tax collection (percentage)

Year Charge year Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4
2009/10 92.9 95.0 95.7 96.1 96.4
2010/11 92.9 95.0 95.6 96.0
2011/12 94.1 95.7 96.3
2012/13 94.6 96.2
2013/14 94.1

           Changes and improvements

2.5 During the second quarter, debt recovery action was initiated against non payers.

2.6 Enforcement action has been continued against those with arrears from 2013/14 
and earlier years.  Where appropriate, attachments to earnings or benefit are 
applied to a debtor’s account.  These are identified via a segmentation process 
which identifies those debtors receiving benefit or where we hold employers details 
prior to referral to enforcement agent action. This minimises the cases that are 
referred to the enforcement agent.

2.7 The payment arrangement procedure ensures that those requiring more time to pay 
are managed appropriately. Those that fail to adhere to the terms of the 
arrangement are quickly identified and recovery action is continued. 

Business Rates (NNDR) collection performance 

2.8 The NNDR collection rate at the end of the second quarter was 57.0%, which was 
0.1% above the profile target. The annual target for 2014/15 is 98.1% compared to 
97.57% in 2013/2014.  

2.9 The financial climate continues to have a detrimental effect upon businesses within 
the Borough making collection of Business Rates increasingly challenging.

2.10 Ratepayers are contacted as soon as they fall behind with payments in order to try 
and stop them slipping further into arrears and therefore avoid recovery action and 
additional costs.

2.11 Where recovery is required, debts are now being placed with two enforcement 
agents compared to only one in 2013/14. A third enforcement agent will also be 
used to try and effect recovery should the first placement of debts be unsuccessful. 

Rent collection performance 

2.12 At the end of the second quarter collection reached 96.80% exceeding the profile 
target of 96.75% by 0 05%.  

2.13 During the second quarter of 2014/15 various actions have been taken to improve 
performance in rent collection:

Page 163



i. The recovery processes have been improved to ensure that avoidable arrears 
are minimised with the procedures agreed between the Council and Elevate 
having been revised to prevent further arrears. 

ii. Work has continued ensuring that new staff in the contact centre have been 
trained on rents so that they can ensure that callers are fully advised on their 
obligation to put rent payment first.

iii. Elevate proactively seeks to backdate housing benefit entitlement for tenants 
who have experienced a loss of entitlement due to vulnerability which prevents 
them being able to comply with the standard claim submission timescales. 
Elevate have included messages on rent statements and on-line reminding 
tenants to prioritise rent payments and of the possible consequences of non-
payment.

           Reside collection performance

2.14 In addition to collecting the direct monies owed to the Council, Elevate also collect 
the rent for the Barking & Dagenham Reside portfolio on behalf of the Housing 
department.  In the last quarter, the portfolio continued its progress towards being 
fully let and the total value of the collectable debt increased.  A number of issues in 
relation to the tenancies, which inhibited our ability to pursue debts, were resolved 
late into the quarter. This means that recovery action by Elevate can now escalate 
to the service of legal notices and potential eviction as necessary during quarter 3.  
It is anticipated that this will result in improved rent collection performance through 
the rest of the financial year.

Rent raised £2,228,201
Total; paid £2,112,854
Percentage paid 94.82

Leaseholders’ debt collection performance

2.15 The leasehold collection target for 2014/15 is 97.5%, an increase of 5.7% on the 
2013/14 target.  At the end of the second quarter collection reached 52.75%, which 
is 3.15% above profile target.  Elevate has achieved this ongoing improvement by 
maintaining a rigorous recovery timetable throughout the year ensuring late payers 
are consistently reminded to pay as early as possible.

General Income collection performance 

2.16 General Income is used to describe the ancillary sources of income available to the 
Council which support the cost of local service provision.  Examples of areas from 
which the Council derives income collected by Elevate include: social care charges; 
rechargeable works for housing; nursery fees; trade refuse; hire of halls and football 
pitches.  The Oracle computer system is used for the billing and collection of these 
debts and is also used to measure the performance of Elevate for its activities 
across all lines of debt.  During the first quarter preparation for the implementation 
of Oracle R12 took place.  This included data cleansing in readiness for the go live 
of the new system that took place on 4 August 2014.

Page 164



2.17 The collection target for 2014/15 is set at 95.00%.  The target for the end of the 
second quarter was 64.00%. Collection reached 64.21%, which was 4.21% above 
the profile.  It should be noted that monthly targets are based upon trends in 
previous years. While collection is above the profile the collection of General 
Income has been affected by teething problems since the new system went live.  
These problems include the fact that reminder notices are unable to be issued. A 
number of attempts to resolve the problem have been tried without success and 
work continues towards a solution. In addition there are ongoing issues relating to 
the production of management information which remain outstanding so while an 
overall collection rate for quarter 2 has been reported other more detailed 
information is yet to be produced.  

ACS Homes and ACS Residential - Collection of social care charges (home 
and residential)

2.18 The Council’s Fairer Contribution Policy commenced from October 2011 and 
applies to home care.  Residential care charges are covered by the Department of 
Health’s Charging for Residential Accommodation Guide (CRAG).

2.19 Collection of debt for Home and Residential Care are reported separately.  The 
agreed measure for 2014/15 is the amount collected against the in year debt that 
has been invoiced.

2.20 Residential care debt which the Council has secured with a charging order against 
the client’s assets, usually their property, is not included in these figures.

2.21 The collection rate for Home Care for the second quarter cannot be reported and 
this is affected by the issues referred to in 2.17 above

2.22 The collection rate for residential care debt for the second quarter is also not 
available.

2.23 The debt recovery process for these debts is similar to that of other debts, but with 
added recognition given to particular circumstances.  In order to ensure that the 
action taken is appropriate and to maximise payments each case is considered on 
its own merits at each stage of the recovery process and wherever possible 
payment arrangements are agreed.  In addition a further financial reassessment of 
a client’s contribution is undertaken where there is extraordinary expenditure 
associated with the care of the service user. 

Environment: Penalty Charge Notices

2.24 This recovery work only includes debts due to Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) for 
parking, bus lane and box junction infringements once a warrant has been obtained 
from the Traffic Enforcement Centre (TEC).  Elevate enforce these warrants 
through enforcement agents acting on behalf of the Council and closely monitor the 
performance of these companies.  Overall collection rates on PCNs will be reported 
by Environmental and Enforcement Services (Parking Services).  Performance is 
measured once a batch of warrants has expired, i.e. after 12 months.  Since April 
2014 nine batches of warrants have expired for which the collection rate was 
13.60%.

Page 165



Housing Benefit Overpayments

2.25 For the second quarter of 2014/15 collection totalled £1.627m. This is £214,000 
above the profile target. 

Enforcement Agent (Bailiff) Performance

2.26 Enforcement agent action is a key tool for the Council to recover overdue debts but 
is only one area of collection work.  The start of a local Council Tax Support (CTS) 
scheme in 2013/14 meant around 13,000 additional households became liable to 
pay Council Tax. The additional debt recovery action seen in 2013/14 as a result of 
CTS has been repeated so far during 2014/15. This is not a static group as 
residents move in and out of work.  Elevate’s ability to collect sums due on behalf of 
the Council continues to be made progressively harder as welfare reforms take 
effect alongside the cumulative yearly effect of CTS on arrears leading to residents 
overall indebtedness increasing.  

2.27 Information on the performance of the enforcement agents is set out in the table 
below by type of debt for 2014/15.  It should be noted the debt recovery process for 
in year collection does not reach the stage of enforcement action generally for 
Council Tax and Commercial rent until later in the second quarter. We would 
therefore expect to see a significant increase in the total collected over the third and 
fourth quarters.  

Service
Value sent to 

enforcement agents 
£

Total collected by 
enforcement agents

£
Collection rate

Council Tax 3,195,000 65,000 2.05%

NNDR 984,093 74,481 8.7%

Commercial rent 0.00 0.00 NA

General Income £15,259 £6,477 42%

Arrears and Debt Write-off: Quarter 2 2014/15

2.28 At the end of quarter 2 across all lines of debt the total amount of arrears 
outstanding was £37.63m. This reduced from £43.7m at the start of the year. A 
proportion of this debt is being collected by arrangement, deductions from earnings 
and benefits and through enforcement action. Other areas of debt require tracing to 
establish current whereabouts and processing for write off.    

2.29 A comparison of arrears outstanding at the start of the year and the end of quarter 2 
is provided below:

Page 166



Debt Council 
Tax 

NNDR General 
Income

HBOP Rents
Former 
Tenant

Lease-
hold

Rents 
Current 
Tenants

Total

Value
1/4/14

£18m £4m £2.5m £11m £2m £2.20m £4.0m £43.7

Value
30/9/14

£16.2m £3.6m £0.6m £10m £1.8m £2.13m £3.3m £37.63

2.30 All debt recommended for write off is administered within the Council’s policy. The 
authority to write off debts remains with the Council.  The value of debt 
recommended to the Chief Finance Officer and subsequently approved for write off 
during the second quarter of 2014/15 totalled: £1,085,216. The value and number of 
cases written off in quarter two is provided in Appendix A.

2.31 Forty-eight percent of the debt written off in quarter 2 related to Business Rates.  
This is most commonly due to the failure of the company concerned leaving no 
option but to write off the debt. 

2.32 699 debts were written off in quarter 2 for which the reasons are set out below.  The 
percentage relates to the proportion of write offs by value:

Absconded/not 
traced

Uneconomic 
to pursue

Debtor 
Insolvent

Deceased Other reasons

268 debts
38%

172 debts
25%

75 debts
11%

44 debts
6%

140 debts
20%

(The ‘Other reasons’ category includes examples such as: where the debt liability is 
removed by the Court or the debtor is living outside the jurisdiction of the English 
Courts and is unlikely to return).

2.33 The figures in Appendix B show the total write-offs for 2011/12, 2012/13 and 
2013/14.  

Publication of individual details of debts written off (Appendix C)

2.34 In line with Council policy established in 2007, due to the difficulties of finding 
absconding debtors, a list showing the details of some debtors who have had debts 
written off is attached to this report at Appendix C.  The list has been limited to the 
ten largest debts only and can be used in the public domain.

3. Financial Implications 

Implications completed by: Carl Tomlinson, Group Finance Manager

3.1 Collecting all sums due is critical to the Council’s ability to function.  In view of this, 
monitoring performance is a key part of the monthly meetings with Elevate.  

3.2 The monthly meetings between Elevate and the Council focus on the areas where 
the targets are not being achieved and discuss other possibilities to improve 
collection.  

Page 167



3.3 As at the end of quarter two 2014/15, Elevate are exceeding collection targets for all 
debt types. The Council has written off debts of £1,085,216 in quarter two bringing 
cumulative write-offs year to date to £1,374,887, with the majority of write offs 
attributable to business rates. Maximising income collection is essential for the 
council and the pursuit of newer collectable debts before they become older 
uncollectable debts is key to this. It is important that bad debts are written off 
promptly for budgeting purposes so the Council can maintain appropriate bad debt 
provision.

4. Legal Implications 

Implications completed by: Paul Feild, Senior Governance Lawyer

4.1 Monies owned to the Council in the form of debts are a form of asset that is the 
prospect of a payment sometime in the future. The decision not to pursue a debt 
carries a cost and so a decision not to pursue a debt is not taken lightly. 

4.2 The Council holds a fiduciary duty to the ratepayers and the government to make 
sure money is spent wisely and to recover debts owned to it. If requests for 
payment are not complied with then the Council seeks to recover money owed to it 
by way of court action once all other options are exhausted.  While a consistent 
message that the Council is not a soft touch is sent out with Court actions there can 
come a time where a pragmatic approach has to be taken with debts as on 
occasion they are uneconomical to recover in terms of the cost of process and the 
means of the debtor to pay. The maxim no good throwing good money after bad 
applies. In the case of rent arrears, the court proceedings will be for a possession 
and money judgement for arrears. However a possession order and subsequent 
eviction order is a discretionary remedy and the courts will more often than not 
suspend the possession order on condition the tenant makes a contribution to their 
arrears. 

4.3 Whilst the recent use of Introductory Tenancies as a form of trial tenancy may have 
some impact as only those tenants with a satisfactory rent payment history can 
expect to be offered a secure tenancy, the best approach is to maintain a dialogue 
with tenants and highlight the importance that payment of rent and Council tax 
ought to be considered as priority debts rather than credit loans as without a roof 
over their heads it will be very difficult to access support and employment.

4.4 The decision to write off debts has been delegated to Chief Officers who must have 
regard to the Financial Rules. 

5. Other Implications

5.1 Risk Management - No specific implications save that this report acts as an early 
warning system to any problems in the area of write offs.

Public Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: None

List of appendices:
Appendix A – Debt Write Off Table for Quarters 1 and 2 for 2014/15.
Appendix B – Total debts written off in 2011/12, 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15.
Appendix C – Ten Largest Debts Written Off in Quarter 2, 2014/15

Page 168



Appendix A 
Table 1: Debts Written Off during Qtr 1 2014/15

Write-offs
Housing 
Benefits

General 
Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears Rents Council Tax NNDR TOTAL

Under 2k 5,683 3,502 0 0 0 0 9,185
Over 2k 0 0 0 0 68,034 0 68,034
Over 10k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0A

pr
-1

4

Total 5,683 3,502 0 0 68,034 0 77,219
Under 2k 5,357 338 27,505 0 0 0 33,199
Over 2k 6,924 4,991 0 0 0 0 11,915
Over 10k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

M
ay

-1
4

Total 12,281 5,328 27,505 0 0 0 45,114
Under 2k 24,839 17,317 121,487 211 0 0 163,855
Over 2k 3,483 0 0 0 0 0 3,483
Over 10k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Ju

n-
14

Total 28,322 17,317 121,487 211 0 0 167,338

         
Quarter 1 

Totals  
46,286 26,148 148,992 211 68,034 0 289,671

P
age 169



Table 2: Debts Written Off during Qtr 2 2014/15

Write-offs
Housing 
Benefits

General 
Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears Rents Council Tax NNDR TOTAL

Under 2k 36,615 1,331 38,583 201 21,835  98,565
Over 2k 51,981 0 0 0 0  51,981
Over 10k 22,544 11,227 0 0 0 337,986 371,757Ju

l-1
4

Total 111,140 12,558 38,583 201 21,835 337,986 522,303
Under 2k 6,354 1,593 15,141 0 0 0 23,087
Over 2k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Over 10k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A
ug

-1
4

Total 6,354 1,593 15,141 0 0 0 23,087
Under 2k 56,321 532 10,157 1,400 0 0 68,410
Over 2k 9,842 2,944 256,086 0 0 179,215 448,086
Over 10k 0 0 23,329 0 0 0 23,329Se

p-
14

Total 66,163 3,476 289,572 1,400 0 179,215 539,826

         
Quarter 2 

Totals  
183,657 17,627 343,295 1,601 21,835 517,201 1,085,216

P
age 170



COUNT

Write-offs
Housing 
Benefits

General 
Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears Rents Council Tax NNDR TOTAL

Under 2k 99 5 92 1 49 0 246
Over 2k 17 0 0 0 0 0 17
Over 10k 2 1 0 0 0 19 22Ju

l-1
4

Total 118 6 92 1 49 19 285
Under 2k 27 8 61 1 0 0 97
Over 2k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Over 10k 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A
ug

-1
4

Total 27 8 61 1 0 0 97
Under 2k 100 4 110 0 0 0 214
Over 2k 3 1 57 0 0 40 101
Over 10k 0 0 2 0 0 0 2Se

p-
14

Total 103 5 169 0 0 40 317

         
Quarter 2 

Totals  
248 19 322 2 49 59 699

P
age 171



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Table 2: Debts written off during 2011/12 

Write Offs Housing 
Benefits

General 
Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears Rents Council Tax NNDR TOTAL

2011/12 
Totals £260,487 £145,284 £987,383 £2,808 £205,789 £772,683 £2,374,434

Table 3: Debts written off during 2012/13

Write Offs Housing 
Benefits

General 
Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears

Rents Council
Tax NNDR TOTAL

2012/13 
Totals £110,876 £141,896 £886,890 £23,360 £1,015,408 £569,842 £2,748,272

Table 4: Debts written off during 2013/14

Write Offs Housing 
Benefits

General 
Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears

Rents Council
Tax NNDR TOTAL

2013/14 
Totals £141,147 £256,804 £806,989 £8,681 £80,755 £221,380 £1,515,756

Table 5: Debts written off during 2014/15 

Write Offs
Housing 
Benefits

General Income 
Debts

Former 
Tenant 
Arrears Rents Council Tax NNDR TOTAL

2014-15 
Totals £229,943 £43,775 £492,288 £1,812 £89,869 £517,201 £1,374,887

P
age 173



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

NAME AMOUNT DEPARTMENT REASON
Mr ZESHAN AHMED £13,180.96 NNDR  Account start date was 01.09.2010 and was closed 01.08.2012.

 All bills were sent according to legislation, i.e. bill, reminders, final 
notice, summons to court and Liability Order.  

 The debt was issued to enforcement agents who were unable to 
effect recovery.

 Credit check searches have been conducted multiple times but the 
NNDR team was unable to locate Mr Ahmed at any address 
therefore the account was passed for write off.  

MR KINKELA MATEZO £11,165.93 FTA  Tenancy start date 11.03.2002. 
 Introductory Notice of Possession was issued in October 2010 

when arrears were £4775.12. 
 Court hearing 17th March 2011. Arrears were £6,788. Hearing was 

adjourned as the tenant had put in a claim for housing benefit. No 
benefit was awarded following the claim.

 A further hearing was set for 19th July 2011. Arrears were £8,304. 
An Outright Order of 14 days was granted however there were 
typing errors made by the Court on the Order so it had to be 
returned for amendment.  

 The tenant then advised he has made a further benefit claim so 
proceedings were suspended. No benefit was awarded following 
the claim. 

 Both issues delayed the warrant which was submitted to court in 
December 2011 when an eviction date was then set for the 7th 
February 2012.  

 Tenant left with no forwarding address. 
 The account was re-checked several times for a forwarding address 

without success.
 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 

debtor. 
   

P
age 175



MISS RACHAL LAWERENCE £9,666.01 FTA  Tenancy start date 30.07.2007
 Application to evict was made in October 2010. The court gave the 

tenant a chance to pay off the debt in instalments. 
 In March 2011 eviction was again requested but the Court refused 

as the tenant promised to pay in the future. Arrears were £2,115. 
 A further application was made in April 2011 as payments were not 

made. The hearing was postponed until June. 
 A further eviction was cancelled by the Court in August 2011 when 

arrears were over £4k. 
 The warrant was re-issued but as it was then over 1 year old it was 

returned by the court. Due to a backlog of work a new warrant 
request was not made until February 2012.  

 It took until October 2012 before a Secure Eviction notice was hand 
delivered to confirm eviction would take place 10.10.2012. Eviction 
finally effected 24.02.2012. During this time the tenant made no 
payments as was not in receipt of benefit so the debt rose to £9.6k.  

 A forwarding address was found on 21.02.2013 and we attempted 
to recover the debt as a former tenant arrears.

 Debtor again moved but no new forwarding address has been 
found.  

 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 
debtor. 

MISS DONNA BULL £8,722.61 FTA  This was a tenancy succession which was granted from 23rd March 
2009 but not opened until February 2010 so the tenancy started 
with £1210.56 arrears. 

 The tenant made an arrangement to clear the arrears and made 
some payments but fell further behind over time. 

 Introductory Notice of Possession was issued in August 2011. 
Arrears were £4884.86  

 Papers were submitted to Ilford County Court 25th October 2011. 
Arrears were £5801.06.

 Court Hearing 1st December 2011. Arrears were £6411.03
 LBBD gave authority for the eviction to proceed on 29.03.2012, 

when the arrears balance was £8040.66. 
 Secure Eviction Date notification letter sent to confirm Eviction 

P
age 176



would take place 17.04.2012.
 Tenant left with no forwarding address. 
 The account was re-checked several times for a forwarding address 

without success.
 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 

debtor.  
THE COMMUNION CHURCH £7,532.98 NNDR  Account start date was 17.08.2009 and was closed 24.10.2012.

 The Communion Church was a registered Charity who applied for 
Discretionary Relief after they were granted the 80% mandatory 
relief.  This was refused and shortly after the company dissolved 
and the account was closed. 

 All bills were sent according to legislation, i.e. bill, reminders, final 
notice, Court Summons and Liability Order.  

 The debt was issued to enforcement agents to collect the debt 
without success.  

 As the debt was uncollectable it was passed for write-off.  

MR DEVON SPENCER £6,629.95 FTA  Tenancy start date was 20.07.2009. 
 Introductory Notice of Seeking Possession sent 27.06.2011. 

Arrears were £2493.10. 
 On 3.08.2011 Final warning letter sent. Arrears were £2886.10.
 Eviction decision ratified 19.04.2012, arrears balance £5972.18. 
 On 24.04.2012 Eviction date Notification letter sent to confirm 

Eviction will take place 01.05.2012. 
 24.07.2012, system note made stating tenant iwas n prison and 

release date unknown.
 06.02.2014 Experian search done, no forwarding address located.  
 7.07.2014 a further Experian check was done no forwarding 

address found. 
 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 

debtor. 

MR SCOTT RUSSELL £6,115.50 FTA  Tenancy start date 25.05.2011. 
 Introductory Notice of Possession sent 14.12.2011. Arrears were 

£495.08. 
 Tenant made contact and promised to make payments and set up a 

P
age 177



direct debit. He was given several chances to pay but failed to.
 On 18.07.2012 Final warning letter sent. Arrears were £3218.28.
 A possession order was obtained at Court on 24.5.12. 
 Eviction decision ratified 03.10.2012, arrears balance £5972.18. 
 On 07.01.2013 Eviction Date Notification letter sent to confirm 

eviction would take place 05.02.2013. 
 Account re-checked several times for a forwarding address without 

success.
 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 

debtor. 

MR CHRISTOPHER GROOM £5,405.78 FTA  Tenancy start date 07.03.2012.
 Introductory Notice of Possession sent 15.06.2012. Arrears were 

£88.50. Final warning letter sent 03.08.2012. Arrears were £173.10.
 This account was referred to the Court team 22.11.2012 and took 

over a month to process due to Court officers liaising with tenants 
support worker to try and work with tenant to reduce/clear arrears - 
to no avail.

 09.07.2013 arrears were £4814.26 Notification to confirm Eviction 
will take place 25.07.2013. 

 13.12.2013 forwarding address found on Council Tax system. 
 1st Former tenant arrears letter sent. A gentleman from the 

forwarding address telephoned to advise this there was no such 
person living at that address; Further investigations continued via 
Experian to find forwarding address, these were unsuccessful.

 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 
debtor. 

MS LISA OWEN £4,918.92 FTA  Tenancy start date 05.06.2000. 
 Introductory Notice of Seeking Possession issued 06.11.2009. 

Arrears were £891.41. On 12.01.2010 a Final warning letter was 
sent. Arrears were £1284.26.

 Eviction date Notification letter hand delivered through letter box on 
7.03.2011 to confirm Eviction will take place 28.04.2011. 

 On 8.08.2011 Former tenant arrears were passed to Enforcement 
Agent. Returned back on 29.06.2012 unable to trace and recover.

P
age 178



 Account re-checked several times, the last being on the 21.03.2014 
when Experian search was carried out, results no forwarding 
address.   

 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 
debtor. 

MR DANIEL MANSFIELD £4,818.85 FTA  Tenancy start date 30.11.2009. 
 Notice of Seeking Possession issued 09.11.2010. Arrears were 

£758.47. 
 On 19.01.2011 a Final warning letter was sent. Arrears were 

£1145.87.
 Eviction decision ratified 12.03.2012, arrears balance £4041.32. 
 On 28.02.2012 Eviction date Notification letter sent to confirm 

Eviction will take place13.03.2012.
 21.06.2012 new searches done on Academy, Locta and Experian. 

No forwarding address found. 
 Account re-checked several times, the last being 7.07.2014. 

Experian search done, no forwarding address found. 
 Debt was passed for write off as we were unable to trace the 

debtor. 

P
age 179



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 181

AGENDA ITEM 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 197

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 203

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 205

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 211

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 213

AGENDA ITEM 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 223

AGENDA ITEM 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 233

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2014
	4 Call-In of Decision re: Employment of a Political Assistant and a Leader and Members' Services Manager
	Call In Report - App. 1 (PAASC Minutes)

	5 Budget Monitoring 2014/15 - April to October 2014 (Month 7)
	Budget Monitoring Report - App. A (GF Expenditure)
	Budget Monitoring Report - App. B (Savings)
	Budget Monitoring Report - App. C (HRA)
	Budget Monitoring Report - App. D (Capital Programme)

	6 Budget Strategy 2015/16
	Budget Strategy Report - App. A (Proposed Savings Amendments)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. B (Revised Savings Proposals)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. C (Add. Savings Proposals)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. D (Add. Savings Presented to PASSC)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. E (CSSC Comments)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. F (HASSC Comments)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. G (LWSC Comments)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. H (PAASC Comments)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. I (SSCSC Comments)
	Budget Strategy Report - App. J (PAASC Add. Savings Comments)

	7 Corporate Delivery Plan 2014/15 - Quarter 2 Update
	141205 Appendix 1 Priority projects update
	141205 Appendix 2 Implementation Plan update
	141205 Appendix 3 - Key Performance Indicators

	8 Future Delivery of Vehicle Maintenance and Related Services
	9 The Broadway Theatre - New Management Arrangements
	Broadway Theatre Report - App. 1

	10 Debt Management Performance and Write-Offs 2014/15 (Quarter 2)
	Debt Management Q2 2014-15 Report - App  A
	Debt Management Q2 2014-15 Report - App  B
	Debt Management Q2 2014-15 Report - App C

	13 Rationalisation of Corporate Office Portfolio
	Review of Corporate Buildings Report - App. 1
	Review of Corporate Buildings Report - App. 2
	Review of Corporate Buildings Report - App. 3
	Review of Corporate Buildings Report - App. 4

	14 Review of the Elevate Contract
	15 Compulsory Purchase of Eyesore Properties
	CPO Report - App. 1 (Location Map)


